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PART |
Item 1. Business

The following discussion contains trend informatéond other forward-looking statements that invaveumber of risks and uncertainties. Forwdodking statements include, t
are not limited to, statements such as those mati®verview” regarding the costs and impact of resture plans, the Company’'s DRAM development getdsive to Nanya, royalty
payments from Inotera production, capital committedar the Compar's joint ventures with Nanya Technology Corporatithe supply of DRAM wafers from Inotera Memories,
and manufacturing plans for CMOS image sensorsptRicts” regarding new product offerings in 200 ri@ased sales of DDR3 DRAM products and growtremahd for NAND
Flash and solistate drives, and market growth for CMOS imagesses) and in “Manufacturing” regarding the transith to smaller line-width process technologies dralsupply of
DRAM wafers from Inotera Memories, Inc . The Cony's actual results could differ materially from t@®mpany’s historical results and those discussetiérforward-looking
statements. Factors that could cause actual regaltliffer materially include, but are not limitéanl those identified in “Item 1A. Risk Factors.ll Aeriod references are to the
Company’s fiscal periods unless otherwise indicated

Corporate Information

Micron Technology, Inc., and its subsidiaries (eaéer referred to collectively as the “Companyd)Delaware corporation, was incorporated in 197i8e Company’s executive
offices are located at 8000 South Federal Way,Bdikaho 83716-9632 and its telephone number 8)(268-4000. Information about the Company is latée on the internet at
www.micron.com. Copies of the Company’s Annual &epn Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-@ @urrent Reports on Form 8-K, as well as any ammemds to these
reports, are available through the Company’s welastsoon as reasonably practicable after thegl@cgonically filed with or furnished to the Seities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”"). Materials filed by the Company withetSEC are also available at the SEC’s Public Refer Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C420%nformation on the
operation of the Public Reference Room is availallealling 1-800-SEC-0330. Also available on @@mpany’s website are its: Corporate GovernandddéBnes, Governance
Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Chakigdit Committee Charter and Code of Business Conand Ethics. Any amendments or waivers of the gamy’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics will also be postetherCompany’s website at www.micron.com within fbusiness days of the amendment or waiver. Capiteese documents are
available to shareholders upon request. Informat@ntained or referenced on the Companygbsite is not incorporated by reference and doeform a part of this Annual Report
Form 10-K. In January 2008, the Company’s Chieddtive Officer certified to the New York Stock Evange that he was not aware of any violation byGbmpany of the NYSE's
Corporate Governance Listing Standards.

Overview

The Company is a global manufacturer and markdtsemiconductor devices, principally DRAM and NANAlash memory and CMOS image sensors. The Companydicts
are offered in a wide variety of package and camfiion options, architectures and performanceatteristics tailored to meet application and custoneeds. Individual devices take
advantage of the Company’s advanced semicondurtoegsing technology and manufacturing experfi$ee Company aims to continually introduce new gatiens of products that
offer lower costs per unit and improved performacicaracteristics. The Company operates in two saggnMemory and Imaging. (See “Item 8. FinanSiatements and
Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated FinaStéements — Segment Information.”)

In 2008 and 2007 the semiconductor memory indwestperienced a severe downturn due to a significeatsupply of products. Average selling pricesgigabit for the
Company’s DRAM products and NAND Flash product2@®8 were down approximately 50% and 65%, respalgtias compared to 2007 and down approximately 666685%,
respectively, as compared to 2006. As a resutiese market conditions, the Company and othercggrductor memory manufacturers have reported neggtbss margins and
substantial losses in recent periods. In 2008Cimpany reported a net loss of $1.6 billion andynaf its competitors reported negative cash flénos operations. In response to
these market conditions, on October 9, 2008 theamy announced a plan to restructure its memorgatipas. The Company’s IM Flash joint venture witkel Corporation (“Intely
will discontinue its production of 200mm wafer NANsh memory products at Micron’s Boise facilitfhe NAND Flash production shutdown will reduce Bash’s NAND flash
production by approximately 35,000 200mm wafersrpenth. In addition, the Company and Intel agreeslispend tooling and the ramp of NAND Flash potida at IM Flash’s
Singapore wafer fabrication plant. As part of tté@structuring, the Company plans to reduce itbajlavorkforce by approximately 15 percent durin@2@nd 2010. Cash costs for
restructuring and other related expenses




incurred in connection with this restructuring argicipated to be approximately $60 million, ane benefit to the Compars/cash operating results for 2009 is expecteddeak$17
million.

The effects of the worsening global economy andigtgening credit market are also making it insiegly difficult for semiconductor memory manufaetts to obtain external
sources of financing to fund their operations.haligh the Company believes that it is better pmsitil than some of its peers, it faces challengd®icurrent and near term that req
it to continue to make significant improvementstincompetitiveness. The Company is pursuing finanalternatives, delaying capital expenditured iamplementing further cost-
cutting initiatives.

Memory: The Memory segment’s primary products are DRAM BAND Flash, which are key components used inoadarray of electronic applications, includingsoeral
computers, workstations, network servers, mobikengls, Flash memory cards, USB storage devices,M#8yers and other consumer electronics produdie. Company sells
primarily to original equipment manufacturers, disitors and retailers located around the world.

The Company is focused on improving its Memory segtis competitiveness by developing new produatsaacing its technology and reducing costs. Intamd the Company
increased its manufacturing capacity in 2008 ar@72€y ramping NAND Flash production at two 300mnfevdabrication facilities and converting anothacifity to 300mm DRAM
wafer fabrication.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company and Nahgehnology Corporation (“Nanya”) formed MeiYa,ant venture to manufacture stack DRAM products seltithose
products exclusively to the Company and Nanyapds of this transaction, the Company transferredilacensed certain intellectual property to Naaya licensed certain intellectual
property from Nanya. The Company and Nanya alseeajto jointly develop process technology andgiesto manufacture stack DRAM products with eaatydzearing its own
development costs until such time that the devetagmosts exceed a specified amount, following tvisiech costs would be shared. The Compadgvelopment costs are expecte
exceed Nanya's development costs by a significartuet. Under this arrangement, the Company is to receivaggregate of $232 million from Nanya and MeiYatilgh 2010
for licensing and technology transfer fees, of wattlte Company realized $40 million of revenue i080The Company will also receive royalties fromnya on the sale of stack
DRAM products manufactured by or for Nanya.

On October 12, 2008, the Company announced thatlientered into an agreement to acquire Qimonda B8%6% ownership stake in Inotera Memories, (flootera”), a
Taiwanese DRAM memory manufacturer, for $400 millio cash. The Company received commitments f8638illion of term loans to fund this acquisitionpart. Inotera is
expected to implement the Company’s stack DRAM gssdechnology, and it is anticipated that the Gomgwill receive royalties on Inotera’s productiiat is delivered to Nanya, a
35.6% stakeholder in Inotera. The Company willreuelly gain access to approximately 60,000 300nfRAABI wafers per month, 50% of Inotera’s output. cbmnection with this
acquisition, the Company expects to enter intori@sef agreements with Nanya to restructure Meilas anticipated that both parties will ceaseifa resource commitments to
MeiYa and redirect those resources to Inoterae (8em 8. Financial Statements and Supplementata B Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemedtsnt Ventures DRAM Joint
Ventures with Nanya Technology Corporation.”)

Imaging: The Company’s Imaging segment operates undekpkiea brand name. Imaging’s primary products@kOS image sensors, which are key components uasad i
broad array of electronic applications, includinghbite phones, digital still cameras, webcams ahérotonsumer, security and automotive applicatidrtee Company’s primary
customers are camera module integrators locateshdriie world. The Company is exploring partneangngements with outside parties regarding tharsg¢ion of its Aptina
imaging business to an independent entity in wkiiehCompany would retain a significant minority @sship interest. To that end, the Company beganatipg its Imaging business
as a separate wholly-owned subsidiary in Octob8B20Jnder the arrangements being considered, thgp@ny expects that it will continue to manufactGMOS image sensors for
some period of time.

Products

Memory: The Company’s Memory segment has two primary gcotypes: DRAM and NAND Flash. Sales of Memorggucts were 89%, 88% and 86% of the Compsutgtal
net sales in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.




Dynamic Random Access Memory“ORAM") : DRAM products are high-density, low-cost-per-bétndom access memory devices that provide bjgfed data storage ¢
retrieval. DRAM products were 54%, 65% and 76%hef Company’s total net sales in 2008, 2007 an® 2@3pectively. The Company offers DRAM prodweith a variety of
performance, pricing and other characteristicsuidiclg high-volume DDR2 and DDR3 products as webpecialty DRAM memory products including DDR, SDRAMobile DRAM
and PSRAM.

DDR2 and DDR3: DDR2 and DDR3 are standardized, high-densityhtviglume, DRAM products that are sold primarily f&re as main system memory in
computers and servers. DDR2 and DDR3 products bifgh speed and high bandwidth at a relatively tmst compared to other DRAM products. DDR2 praslwere the
highest volume parts in the DRAM market in 2008 amile 28%, 32% and 25% of the Company’s total aletssin 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The fizmy began
volume production of DDR3 products in 2008 and expé¢hat sales of these products will increaseifsigntly in 2009.

The Company offers DDR2 products in 256 megabitl{®M512 Mb, 1 Gb and 2 Gb densities. The Compaffgrs DDR3 products in 1 Gb and 2 Gb densitiese T
Company expects that these densities will be nacgss meet future customer demands for a broay afrproducts. The Company also offers its DDR@ BDR3 products
in multiple configurations, speeds and packagesype

DDR: In 2008, DDR was primarily used in networking @eg, servers, consumer electronics, communicagqogment and computer peripherals as well as
memory upgrades to legacy computers. Sales of pDRucts were 9%, 15% and 26% of the Company’s t&tasales in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivBBR sales have
declined as personal computer manufacturers hamsitioned to DDR2 and DDR3 products. The Compaifers 128 Mb, 256 Mb and 512 Mb and 1 Gb DDR puisiu

Synchronous DRAM (“SDRAM”):  In 2008, 2007 and 2006, SDRAM was primarily usedetworking devices, servers, consumer electsprsommunications
equipment and computer peripherals as well as meopmgrades to legacy computers. Sales of SDRAMuymts were 9%, 11% and 16% of the Company’s tatabales in
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. SDRAM sale lifaclined as personal computer manufacturersthansitioned to DDR and DDR2 products. The dedfias been
partially offset by increased usage of SDRAM prddlic other applications. The Company offers 64 W28 Mb, 256 Mb and 512 Mb SDRAM products.

Other Specialty DRAM Memory Products: The Company also offers other specialty memoogpcets including Mobile DRAM, Pseudo-static RAM S8RAM”)
and Reduced Latency DRAM (“RLDRAM"). Mobile DRAMrpducts are specialty DRAM memory devices desigoedpplications that demand minimal power
consumption, such as personal digital assista#¢f, smart phones, GPS devices, digital still caas@nd other handheld electronic devices. Thepaomsells SDRAM
and DDR mobile memory products in 64 Mb, 128 M6 B&b, 512 Mb and 1Gb densities. The Company’s tedDRAM products feature its proprietary Endur-IC™
technology, which the Company believes provideSmiisadvantages to its customers in terms of lower, high quality and high reliability. PSRAM phacts, marketed by
the Company under the proprietary brand name GeRAM™, are DRAM products with an SRAM-like inteca PSRAM combines the minimal power consumption o
SRAM with a much lower cost-per-bit to provide ameomical alternative to SRAM. PSRAM products ased primarily in cellular phone applications. RRBM products
are low-latency DRAM memory devices with high claeles targeted at network applications.

NAND Flash Memory (*“NAND") : NAND products are electrically re-writeable, neviatile semiconductor memory devices that retaintent when power is turned
off. NAND sales were 35%, 23% and 6% of the Conyfmatotal net sales in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respeygt NAND is ideal for masstorage devices due to its faster erase and
times, higher density, and lower cost per bit tN@@R Flash, which is the primary competing Flasth#ecture. The market for NAND products has graapidly and the Company
expects it to continue to grow due to demand foraeable and embedded storage devices. Removalségstdevices such as USB and Flash memory cardssad with applications
such as personal computers, digital still camevé®3/4 players and mobile phones. Embedded NANRdbatorage devices are utilized in MP3/4 playexshile phones, computers
and other personal and consumer applications.




NAND and DRAM share common manufacturing processeabling the Company to leverage its product andgss technologies and manufacturing infrastrecigross
these two product lines. The Company’s NAND desifgrature a small cell structure that allows fghleir densities for demanding applications. The @amg offers Single-Level Cell
(“SLC") products and Multi-Level Cell (“MLC") NANDproducts, which have double the bit density of $ir@ducts. In 2008, the Company offered SLC NANDdurcts in 1 Gb, 2
Gb, and 4 Gb densities. In 2008, the Company eff& Gb and 16 Gb MLC NAND products. In 2008, @@npany began sampling 32 Gb MLC NAND products nfectured using
industry-leading 34 nanometer (“nm”) process tetbgy In 2008, the Company announced developmofnéw high-speed NAND products that can reachdpep to 200
megabytes per second (MB/s) for reading data afdVIB's for writing data as compared to 40 MB/sfeading data and less than 20 MB/s for writing dataventional SLC
NAND. The high speeds are achieved by leveradiegnew ONFI 2.0 specification and a f-plane architecture with higher clock speeds. 088 the Company introduced next-
generation RealSSD™ solid-state drives for entsepserver and notebook applications which offendénigrerformance, reduced power consumption andheslaeliability as
compared to typical hard disk drives. Using MicsadLC NAND process technology, the solid-stateesiwill be offered in 2.5-inch and 1.8-inch foratfors, with densities up to
256 gigabytes for the 2.5 inch form factor and frd2ngigabytes to 128 gigabytes in the 1.8-inch féantor. The Company expects that demand for stk drives will increase
significantly over the next few years.

The Company’s Lexar subsidiary sells high-perforogadigital media products and other flash-basedg®products through retail and original equipnmeatufacturing
(OEM) channels. The Company’s digital media praslireclude a variety of Flash memory cards witlrege of speeds, capacities and value-added featlihesCompany'’s digital
media products also include its JumpDrive™ produstsch are high-speed, portable USB flash drivesbnsumer applications that serve a variety esuscluding floppy disk
replacement and digital media accessories suchrdgeaders and image rescue software. The Congfterg Flash memory cards in all major media faswaurrently used by digital
cameras and other electronic host devices, inapid@®ompactFlash, Memory Stick and Secure DigitaldS. Many of CompactFlash, Memory Stick and Meng&tick PRO products
sold by the Company incorporate its patented ctlatrtiechnology. Other products, including Seddigital Card Flash memory cards and some JumpDOmieducts, incorporate third
party controllers. The Company also resells Frasmory products that are purchased from suppli€h&e Company offers Flash memory cards in a vaoégpeeds and
capacities. The Company sells products underat@at™ brand and also manufactures products thatoddeunder other brand names. The Company hasgtayear agreement with
Eastman Kodak to sell digital media products utderKodak brand name.

Imaging: Complementary Metal-Oxide Semiconductor (“CMOMiage sensors are the primary product of the Cogipamaging segment. CMOS image sensors are
semiconductor devices that capture and processeisnatp pictures or video for a variety of consured industrial applications. The Company’s CM@@ge sensors are used in
products such as cellular phone cameras, digitetameras, pill cameras for medical use, andutomotive and other emerging applications. The gamy offers image sensors in a
range of pixel resolutions from its VGA (video ghégs array) products to its higher resolution 9-apEgel products. The Company manufactures a nueb@MOS image sensors
featuring an advanced pixel size of 1.4 squareanithat enables a smaller form factor productagensensors are sold either as individual compermerdombined with integrated
circuitry to create complete camera system-on-p-¢180OC”) solutions.

The Company’s CMOS image sensors incorporate ggd@Clarity™ technology, featuring “active pixel#iat enable better sensor performance that prechigber-quality
images at faster frame rates. The Company’s CM@gé sensors’ active-pixel design architecture ledabe Company to achieve CMOS image sensor paafioce that in 2008 was
comparable to high-end CCD sensors. The Comp&MOS image sensors consume substantially less pinaerrCCD devices, providing an advantage in batiependent portable
device applications where most image sensors & By combining all camera functions on a sirgyl#, from the capture of photons to the outputigftal bits, CMOS image
sensors reduce the part-count of a digital camestes, which in turn increases reliability, easésiaturization, and enables on-chip programminfrafe size, windowing, exposure
and other camera parameters. The Company’s CM@8edrsensors are also capable of producing higlitgimhges in low-light conditions. The Companidsv-leakage DRAM
processes are particularly well-suited for the nfacture of CMOS image sensors.

The Company conducts its Imaging operations urfteAptina brand name. Sales of Imaging producte W&%, 12% and 14% of the Compatotal net sales in 2008, 2007
2006, respectively. The overall market for imagesors is expected to increase over the next dexgaes due to the growth forecasted for applicetisuch as phone cameras and
digital still cameras. CMOS image sensors are exgected to capture an increasing percentagesaftérall image sensor market.




Manufacturing

The Company’s manufacturing facilities are locatethe United States, China, Italy, Japan, Pueito Bnd Singapore. The Company’s manufacturingjties generally operate
24 hours per day, 7 days per week. Semiconducaoufacturing is extremely capital intensive, reipgjlarge investments in sophisticated facilities quipment. Most
semiconductor equipment must be replaced everg tioréve years with increasingly advanced equipmen

The Company’s process for manufacturing semicomlymbducts is complex, involving a number of psecsteps, including wafer fabrication, assemblytest Efficient
production of semiconductor products requiresagtion of advanced semiconductor manufacturingrtiectes and effective deployment of these technigaesss multiple
facilities. The primary determinants of manufattgrcost are die size, number of mask layers, numbfabrication steps and number of good die poeduon each wafer. Other
factors that contribute to manufacturing costsveater size, cost and sophistication of manufactugquipment, equipment utilization, process comiplerost of raw materials, labor
productivity, package type and cleanliness of tlaauafiacturing environment. The Company is contirslyoenhancing its production processes, reduciagidies and transitioning to
higher density products. In 2008, the Company rfeartured most of its DRAM products using its 78nmd #8nm line-width process technology and begarsfearing its DRAM
production to 58nm line-width process technolo@jre Company expects to continue to transfer mois @RAM production to 58nm ling4dth process technology in 2009. In 20
the Company manufactured most of its NAND Flash wrgmproducts using its 50nm line-width process tedbgy and began transferring its NAND productior8#nm line-width
process technology. The Company expects that0® #e majority of its NAND Flash memory productdl Wwe manufactured using its 34nm line-width preg¢echnology. In 2008
and 2007, the Company significantly increased®3n3m wafer production as IM Flash ramped producsibiwo 300mm wafer fabrication facilities and tbempany’s TECH joint
venture converted its DRAM production to 300mm wsfe

Wafer fabrication occurs in a highly controlleceah environment to minimize dust and other yiefd} quality-limiting contaminants. Despite stringemanufacturing controls,
dust particles, equipment errors, minute impuritiesiaterials, defects in photomasks and circwsiglemarginalities or defects can lead to wafersdscrapped and individual circuits
being nonfunctional. Success of the Company'’s rfzexturing operations depends largely on minimizilegects to maximize yield of high-quality circuitk this regard, the Company
employs rigorous quality controls throughout thenofacturing, screening and testing processes. Ciimepany is able to recover many nonstandard debigéssting and grading them
to their highest level of functionality.

After fabrication, silicon wafers are separatea iimdividual die. The Company sells semiconduptaducts in both packaged and unpackaged (i.ee“tha’") forms. For
packaged products, functional die are sorted, atfedeio external leads and encapsulated in plpatikages. The Company assembles products inetyafipackages, including
TSOP (thin small outline package), TQFP (thin gfiadpackage) and FBGA (fine pitch ball grid arraygare die products address customer requirenfiengsnaller form factors and
higher memory densities and provide superior fldigjb Bare die products are used in packagindgtetogies such as systems-in-a-package (SIPs) altdahip packages (MCPs),
which reduce the board area required.

The Company tests its products at various stagéeimanufacturing process, performs high tempezdturn-in on finished products and conducts nuoeeguality control
inspections throughout the entire production fldw.addition, the Company uses its proprietary AMBY line of intelligent test and burn-in systemsgrform simultaneous circuit
tests of DRAM die during the burn-in process, captuquality and reliability data and reducing tegttime and cost.

The Company assembles a significant portion ahigsnory products into memory modules. Memory maslatensist of an array of memory components attathednted circuit
boards (“PCBs”") that insert directly into compusgstems or other electronic devices. The Compdmsxsr subsidiary contracts with an independentéisy and assembly and testing
organizations to manufacture flash media produatt &s memory cards and USB devices.

The Company is pursuing alternatives to reducassembly, test and module assembly costs, includiogation of current operations to lower costatins and
outsourcing. These alternatives could affect the@any’s manufacturing processes in future periods.

In recent years the Company has produced an inoghasroad portfolio of products, which enhandes €Company'’s ability to allocate resources to itshprofitable products but
increases the complexity of its manufacturing pssceAlthough new product lines such as NAND FI&MOS image sensors and specialty memory can befaxanred using
processes that are very similar to the processehéadCompany’s predominant DRAM products, frequemtversions to new products and the allocatiomafiufacturing capacity to
more complex, smaller-volume parts can affect tben@any’s cost efficiency.




NAND Flash Joint Ventures with Intel Corporation: The Company has formed two joint ventures witlellto manufacture NAND Flash memory products far éxclusive
benefit of the partners: IM Flash TechnologiesClLand IM Flash Singapore LLP (collectively, “IM Bla). IM Flash manufactures NAND Flash memory pratd pursuant to NAND
Flash designs developed by the Company and Intelieensed to the Company. The parties shareutpubof IM Flash generally in proportion to theiwestment in IM Flash. The
Company owned a 51% interest in IM Flash at Au@8st2008. IM Flash’s financial results are incldde the consolidated financial statements of tbenany.

On October 9, 2008, the Company announced thatléighFwill discontinue production of 200mm wafer NBNMlash memory products at Micron’s Boise facilitfhe NAND
Flash production shutdown will reduce IM Flash’s NIB flash production by approximately 35,000 200mafavs per month. The Company will continue to nfacture a
significantly reduced level of NAND Flash at thei@ofacility outside of the IM Flash joint venturin the first quarter of 2009, IM Flash substahtiaompleted construction of a new
300mm wafer fabrication facility structure in Sipgae. The Singapore facility has not been equigetin October 2009 the Company and Intel agresdspend tooling and the
ramp of NAND Flash production at the facility. €S#tem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementatg B Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemedtsnt Ventures — NAND
Flash Joint Ventures with Intel.”)

TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“TECH”): TECH is a memory manufacturing joint venture ingapore among Micron Technology, Inc., Canon &md Hewlett-
Packard Company. The Company owned an approxif@ieinterest in TECH at August 28, 2008. TECHm®&®nductor manufacturing facilities use the Conyaproduct and
process technology. Subject to specific termsamdiitions, the Company has agreed to purchasé tie products manufactured by TECH. In 2008, HEEcounted for
approximately 12% of the Company'’s total wafer pretébn. TECH completed its conversion of its matiring production from 200mm to 300mm wafers@& TECH's
financial results were included in the consoliddtadncial statements of the Company beginnindvénthird quarter of 2006. (See “ltem 8. Finan&8tdtements and Supplementary
Data — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemedtsnt Ventures — TECH Semiconductor Singapore|RtkE”)

DRAM Joint Ventures with Nanya: On October 12, 2008, the Company announced thatlientered into an agreement to acquire Qimorg%a&9% ownership stake in Inotera,
a Taiwanese DRAM memory manufacturer. Inoterxpeeted to implement the Company’s stack DRAM pssdechnology. The Company will eventually gaicess to
approximately 60,000 300mm DRAM wafers per mon®905of Inotera’s output. (See “ltem 8. Financiat8ments and Supplementary Data — Notes to Coasatid=inancial
Statements — Joint Ventures — DRAM Joint Venturite ttanya Technology Corporation.”)

MP Mask Technology Center, LLC (“MP Mask”): The Company produces photomasks for leading-addeadvanced next generation semiconductors thribliyMask, a joint
venture with Photronics, Inc. (“Photronics”). T@empany and Photronics have 50.01% and 49.99%estteespectively, in MP Mask. The Company andi@héas also have supply
arrangements wherein the Company purchases a stiistaajority of the reticles produced by MP Maskhe financial results of MP Mask are includedhe consolidated financial
results of the Company. (See “Item 8. Financiat&hents and Supplementary Data — Notes to Coasetid-inancial Statements — Joint Ventures — MPkMashnology Center,
LLC.")

Availability of Raw Materials

The Company’s production processes require rawna&te¢hat meet exacting standards, including sehtbat are customized for, or unique to, the Camgpal’he Company
generally has multiple sources and sufficient amlity of supply; however, only a limited numbedrsuppliers are capable of delivering certain raaterials that meet the Company’s
standards. Various factors could reduce the aviliffaof raw materials such as silicon wafers, fasks, chemicals, gases, lead frames, moldinggeond and other materials. In
addition, any transportation problems could deley@ompany'’s receipt of raw materials. Althouglv materials shortages or transportation problems hat interrupted the
Company’s operations in the past, shortages mayrdmam time to time in the future. Also, lead &mfor the supply of raw materials have been extémad the past. If the Compasy’
supply of raw materials is interrupted, or leadeare extended, results of operations could bersely affected.




Marketing and Customers

The Company’s products are sold into computingsaarer, networking, telecommunications, and imagiagkets. Approximately 50% of the Company’s n&séor 2008 were
to the computing market, including desktop PCsyesst notebooks and workstations. Sales to Iptaharily for NAND Flash from the IM Flash joint néures, were 19% of the
Company’s net sales in 2008. Sales to Hewlett-Backompany were 10% of the Company’s net sal@8@7.

The Company’s Memory products are offered undeMtezon, Lexar, SpecTek and Crucial brand namespaivéite labels. The Company’s Imaging productsaffered under
the Aptina brand name. The Company markets itscsgrductor products primarily through its own dirsales force and maintains sales offices in itma@ry markets around the
world. The Company maintains inventory at locagiamclose proximity to certain key customers tilfete rapid delivery of product shipments. T®empany’s Lexar subsidiary
sells NAND Flash memory products through retail &M channels. The Company’s Crucial Technologysibn sells memory products through a web-basstbouer direct sales
channel. The Company'’s products are also offdrezligh independent sales representatives andodisirs. Independent sales representatives ohtd@rosubject to final acceptance
by the Company and are compensated on a commisagi. The Company makes shipments against thésesalirectly to the customer. Distributors cahgy Company’s products
in inventory and typically sell a variety of othemiconductor products, including competitors’ protg.

The Company offers products designed to meet thersé needs of computing, server, automotive, né&ing, security, commercial/industrial, consumezogionics, medical and
mobile applications. Many of the Company'’s custohrequire a thorough review or qualification ofnseonductor products, which may take several monfksthe Company further
diversifies its product lines and reduces the diessof existing products, more products becomgestin qualification which may delay volume inteadion of specific devices by the
Company.

Backlog

Because of volatile industry conditions customeesraluctant to enter into long-term, fixed-priatracts. Accordingly, new order volumes for thenfpany’s semiconductor
products fluctuate significantly. Orders are tyig accepted with acknowledgment that the termg beadjusted to reflect market conditions at thiee @f shipment. Customers can
change delivery schedules or cancel orders witkigwmificant penalty. For these reasons, the Compaes not believe that its order backlog as ofganyicular date is a reliable
indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period

Product Warranty

Because the design and manufacturing processitcsaductor products is highly complex, it is pbésithat the Company may produce products thatod@emply with
customer specifications, contain defects or areratise incompatible with end uses. In accordanite wdustry practice, the Company generally pregic limited warranty that its
products are in compliance with Company specifigatiexisting at the time of delivery. Under thexpany’s general terms and conditions of sale, litgfor certain failures of
product during a stated warranty period is usuattjted to repair or replacement of defective iteonseturn of, or a credit with respect to, amoypagl for such items. Under certain
circumstances the Company may provide more exterisiited warranty coverage and general legal fplas may impose more extensive liability than thatvided under the
Company’s general terms and conditions.

Competition

The Company faces intense competition in the semdigctor memory markets from a number of compaimetyding Elpida Memory, Inc.; Hynix Semiconductac.; Qimonda
AG; Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd; SanDisk CorporgtiToshiba Corporation and emerging companiesiwdn and China. Some of the Company’s competémedarge
corporations or conglomerates that may have greaseurces to withstand downturns in the semicatetduncarkets in which the Company competes, invegtéhnology and capitalize
on growth opportunities. The Company’s competis®ek to increase silicon capacity, improve yietdduce die size and minimize mask levels in theduct designs. These factors
have significantly increased worldwide supply and giownward pressure on prices.




The Company faces competition in the image sensokeh from a number of suppliers of CMOS image senscluding OmniVision Technologies, Inc.; Samgiectronics
Co., Ltd; Sony Corporation; STMicroelectronics NKgshiba Corporation and from a number of suppli#iSCD image sensors including Matsushita Eledtréustrial Co., Ltd.;
Sharp Corporation and Sony Corporation. In repenibds, a number of new companies have entereBM@S image sensor market. Competitors includeyntenge domestic and
international companies that may have greater poesie key markets, better access to certain custbases, greater name recognition and more establlstrategic and financial
relationships than the Company.

Research and Development

The Company'’s process technology research anda@veht (“R&D”) efforts are focused primarily on agepment of successively smaller line-width prodestinologies which
are designed to facilitate the Company’s transitinext generation memory products and CMOS insagesors. Additional process technology R&D efféotaus on advanced
computing and mobile memory architectures and nanufacturing materials. Product design and devedoyt efforts are concentrated on the Company’s arsb2 Gb DDR2 and
DDR3 products as well as high density and mobileNDAFlash memory (including MLC technology), spesiahemory products, memory systems and CMOS imagsass. The
Company’s R&D expenses were $680 million, $805iomlland $656 million in 2008, 2007 and 2006, retipely.

To compete in the semiconductor memory industry, @Gbmpany must continue to develop technologieadlyanced products and processes. The Companyédxetigat expansion
of its semiconductor product offerings is necessanyeet expected market demand for specific merandyimaging solutions. The Company has sevecalymt design centers arot
the world, the largest located at its corporatedhaarters in Boise, Idaho. In addition, the Conypdevelops leading edge photolithography mask telclyy at its MP Mask joint
venture facility in Boise.

R&D expenses vary primarily with the number of depenent wafers processed, the cost of advancegmeguit dedicated to new product and process developand personnel
costs. Because of the lead times necessary tofawure its products, the Company typically begmprocess wafers before completion of performamzereliability testing. The
Company deems development of a product complete tvecproduct has been thoroughly reviewed andddst performance and reliability. R&D expensan gary significantly
depending on the timing of product qualificatiothe Company and Intel share R&D process and desigts for NAND Flash equally. The Company and Naalgo jointly develop
process technology and designs to manufacture BtB&M products with each party bearing its own depeent costs until such time that the developneests exceed a specified
amount, following which such costs would be sharéde Company’s development costs are expectexiceee Nanya's development costs by a significarduarn Product
development costs are recorded as R&D expense.

Geographic Information

Sales to customers outside the United States tb$le! billion for 2008 and included $1.4 billiamsales to China, $559 million in sales to Eurdgell million in sales to Japan
and $1.7 billion in sales to the Asia Pacific reg{excluding China and Japan). International saiteded $4.0 billion for 2007 and $3.6 billion 2006. As of August 28, 2008, the
Company had net property, plant and equipment df B#lion in the United States, $2.3 billion inn§apore, $259 million in Italy, $171 million in Japand $32 million in other
countries. (See “Item 8. Financial StatementsSungblementary Data — Notes to Consolidated FinaBtéements — Geographic Information” and “ltem Résk Factors.”)

Patents and Licenses

In recent years, the Company has been recognizadeasier in volume and quality of patents issuksl.of August 28, 2008, the Company owned approteige 7,300 U.S.
patents and 2,600 foreign patents. In additiomGbmpany has numerous U.S. and foreign patenicafiphs pending. The Company’s patents have texpsing through 2026.

The Company has a number of patent and intellepnagerty license agreements. Some of these kcagseements require the Company to make one fiperidic
payments. The Company may need to obtain additatant licenses or renew existing license agregsria the future. The Company is unable to ptegditether these license
agreements can be obtained or renewed on accezaiie.




In recent years, the Company has recovered soibteinfestment in technology through sales of Ietglial property rights to joint venture partnemsl ather third parties. The
Company is pursing further opportunities to recdatemvestment in intellectual property throughtparing arrangements.

Employees

As of August 28, 2008, the Company had approxime&2|800 employees, including approximately 12,80the United States, 5,900 in Singapore, 2,10y, 1,500 in Japan,
500 in China and 300 in the United Kingdom. Therpany’s employees include 2,300 employees in it$-1d%h joint ventures that are located in the Uh@éates and Singapore and
2,200 employees in its TECH joint venture thatlacated in Singapore. Approximately 400 of the @amy’s employees in Italy are represented by labganizations that have
entered into national and local labor contractiie Company. The Company’s employment levelsveay depending on market conditions and the lefiéhe Company’s
production, research and product and process dawelot. Many of the Company’s employees are higkiljed, and the Company’s continued success depienglart upon its ability
to attract and retain such employees. The lokewp{Company personnel could have a material adeffset on the Company’s business, results of djperaor financial condition.

Environmental Compliance

Government regulations impose various environmestatrols on raw materials and discharges, emissaon solid wastes from the Company’s manufactysingesses. In 2008,
the Company’s wafer wholly-owned fabrication fa@ls continued to conform to the requirements @ 81001 certification. To continue certificatidthe Company met annual
requirements in environmental policy, compliandanping, management, structure and responsibit&yning, communication, document control, operaiacontrol, emergency
preparedness and response, record keeping and emeagreview. While the Company has not experigacy materially adverse effects on its operatfom® environmental
regulations, changes in the regulations could regeés additional capital expenditures, modificatod operations or other compliance actions.

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Officers of the Company are appointed annuallyHgyBoard of Directors. Directors of the Comparg elected annually by the shareholders of the CampAny directors
appointed by the Board of Directors to fill vacascbn the Board serve until the next election leystmareholders. All officers and directors sem@ their successors are duly chosen

or elected and qualified, except in the case dfezateath, resignation or removal.

As of August 28, 2008, the following executive offis and directors of the Company were subjedteaaporting requirements of Section 16(a) of teeuities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.

Name Age Position

Mark W. Adams 44 Vice President of Worldwide Sal

Steven R. Appleto 48 Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Kipp A. Bedard 49 Vice President of Investor Relatio

D. Mark Durcar 47 President and Chief Operating Offic

Ronald C. Foste 57 Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @if
Jay L. Hawkins 48 Vice President of Operatiol

Roderic W. Lewis 53 Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel &orporate Secreta
Patrick T. Otte 46 Vice President of Human Resour

Brian J. Shield: 47 Vice President of Worldwide Wafer Fabricati
Brian M. Shirley 39 Vice President of Memor

Teruaki Aoki 67 Director

James W. Bagle 69 Director

Robert L. Bailey 51 Director

Mercedes Johnsc 54 Director

Lawrence N. Mondn 48 Director

Robert E. Swit: 62 Director




Mark W. Adamgoined the Company in June 2006. From January 20@6he joined the Company, Mr. Adams was theeCQiperating Officer of Lexar Media, Inc. Mr. Adam
served as the Vice President of Sales and Marké&tinGreative Labs, Inc. from December 2002 to dan2006. From March 2000 to September 2002, MarAs was the Chief
Executive Officer of Coresma, Inc. Mr. Adams hoddBA in Economics from Boston College and an MBéni Harvard Business School.

Steven R. Appletdained the Company in February 1983 and has sérnvedrious capacities with the Company and its liéases. Mr. Appleton first became an officertbé
Company in August 1989 and has served in variofiseofpositions with the Company since that tinkgom April 1991 until July 1992 and since May 198%, Appleton has served
on the Company’s Board of Directors. From Septei884 to June 2007, Mr. Appleton served as thef®wxecutive Officer, President and Chairman ofBleard of Directors of the
Company. In June 2007, Mr. Appleton relinquishedposition as President of the Company but rethhis positions of Chief Executive Officer and Ghaan of the Board. Mr.
Appleton is a member of the Board of Directors atibinal Semiconductor Corporation. Mr. Appletordsca BA in Business Management from Boise Statiwéssity.

Kipp A. Bedardoined the Company in November 1983 and has seénvedrious capacities with the Company and its glidsses. Mr. Bedard first became an officer of th
Company in April 1990 and has served in variougeffpositions since that time. Since January 1884Bedard has served as Vice President of liovd¢lations for the
Company. Mr. Bedard holds a BBA in Accounting fr@oise State University.

D. Mark Durcanjoined the Company in June 1984 and has servedrinus technical positions with the Company andgutssidiaries since that time. Mr. Durcan was ayppd
Chief Operating Officer in February 2006 and Prestdn June 2007. Mr. Durcan has been an offiténe@Company since 1996. Mr. Durcan holds a BEMEhE in Chemical
Engineering from Rice University.

Ronald C. Fostejoined the Company in April 2008 after serving asember of the Board of Directors from June 200Agal 2005. From March 2005 to March 2008, he e
Chief Financial Officer for FormFactor, Inc. Mro$ter previously served in senior financial managrgnpositions for Hewlett-Packard, Applied Matesjallovell and JDS
Uniphase. Mr. Foster holds an MBA from the Univtgref Chicago and a BA in Economics from Whitmaall€ge.

Jay L. Hawkingoined the Company in March 1984 and has servediious manufacturing positions for the Company ismdubsidiaries. Mr. Hawkins served as Vice e,
Manufacturing Administration from February 1996ahgh June 1997, at which time he became Vice Ryesaf Operations. Mr. Hawkins holds a BBA in Metikg from Boise State
University.

Roderic W. Lewifined the Company in August 1991 and has servediious capacities with the Company and its sudsas. Mr. Lewis has served as Vice Presidertegfal
Affairs, General Counsel and Corporate Secretargesiuly 1996. Mr. Lewis holds a BA in Economiosl &sian Studies from Brigham Young University andD from Columbia
University School of Law.

Patrick T. Ottehas served as the Company's Vice President of HiReanurces since March 2007. Mr. Otte joined Midro1987 and has served in various positions aeiasing
responsibility, including Production Manager in et of Micron’s fabrication facilities, OperatioManager for Micron Technology lItalia S.r.l. andteDirector for the Company's
facility in Manassas, Virginia. Mr. Otte holds adB&lor of Science degree from St. Paul Bible CellegMinneapolis, Minnesota.

Brian J. Shieldgoined the Company in November 1986 and has senveadrious operational positions with the Compair. Shields first became an officer of the Company
March 2003.

Brian M. Shirleyjoined the Company in August 1992 and has servediious technical positions with the Company. Bhirley became an officer of the Company in Felyrua
2006. Mr. Shirley holds a BS in Electrical Engirieg from Stanford University.
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Teruaki Aokihas served as Vice Chairman of Sony FoundatioEdiarcation since July 2008. Dr. Aoki has been dassdt with Sony since 1970 and has held variousigie
positions, including Senior Executive Vice Presidamd Executive Officer of Sony Corporation as vesllPresident and Chief Operating Officer of Sokectonics, a U.S.
subsidiary. Dr. Aoki holds a Ph.D. in Material &utes from Northwestern University as well as arBSpplied Physics from the University of Tokyo.elvas elected as an IEEE
Fellow in 2003 and serves as Advisory Board Menufé¢ellogg School of Management of Northwesternwdnsity. Dr. Aoki also serves on the board of Z&iti Holdings Co.,
Ltd. Dr. Aoki is the Chairman of the Board’s Govance Committee.

James W. Bagldyecame the Executive Chairman of Lam Research €atipo (“Lam”), a supplier of semiconductor manutaing equipment, in June 2005. From August 1997
through June 2005, Mr. Bagley served as the Chairgina Chief Executive Officer of Lam. Mr. Bagleyasnember of the Board of Directors of Teradyne, Ihe has served on the
Company’s Board of Directors since June 1997. BAgley holds a MS and BS in Electrical Engineefiiogn Mississippi State University.

Robert L. Baileyvas the President and Chief Executive Officer of@®Bierra (“PMC”) from July 1997 until May 2008. RMs a leading provider of broadband communication
and storage semiconductor solutions for the neregation Internet. Mr. Bailey has been a direofd?MC since October 1996. Mr. Bailey served asd®vPresident and Chief
Executive Officer from July 1997 to May 2008. Hestbeen Chairman of PMC’s Board of Directors sRR@5 and also served as PMC’s Chairman from Fep2@00 until February
2003. Mr. Bailey served as President, Chief Exgeudfficer and director of PMC-Sierra, Ltd., PMCanadian operating subsidiary since December 1883Bailey was employed
by AT&T-Microelectronics (now a division of LSI Lég) from August 1989 to November 1993, where heeias Vice President and General Manager, andxasTinstruments in
various management positions from June 1979 to sub@89. Mr. Bailey holds a BS degree in Electrifrggineering from the University of Bridgeport aad MBA from the
University of Dallas.

Mercedes Johnsomas the Senior Vice President and Chief Financfit€ of Avago Technologies Limited, a semiconaduatompany, from December 2005 to August
2008. Prior to that, she served as the Senior Fiesident, Finance, of Lam from June 2004 to J3r2@05 and as Lam’s Chief Financial Officer fronay1997 to May 2004. Before
joining Lam, Ms. Johnson spent 10 years with AgpMaterials, Inc., where she served in variousaedinancial management positions, including Vigedtdent and Worldwid
Operations Controller. Ms. Johnson holds a deigrée&counting from the University of Buenos Airesdacurrently serves on the Board of Directors faeisil Corporation.

Lawrence N. Mondrwas the President and Chief Executive Officer oK@&ito Corporation, (“CSK”), a specialty retailef automotive aftermarket parts, from June 2006uty J
2008. Prior to his appointment at CSK, Mr. Mondeyved as the Chief Executive Officer of CompUSA. firom November 2003 to May 2006. Mr. Mondry @ihCompUSA in
1990. Mr. Mondry currently serves on the Boardaectors of CSK. Mr. Mondry is the Chairman of tBeard’s Compensation Committee.

Robert E. Switis currently Chairman, President and Chief Exeeu@ifficer of ADC Telecommunications, Inc., (“ADC’3,supplier of network infrastructure products and
services. Mr. Switz has been with ADC since 1994 prior to his current position, served ADC asdrive Vice President and Chief Financial Officér. Switz holds an MBA
from the University of Bridgeport as well as a dagin Marketing/Economics from Quinnipiac UniveysiMr. Switz also serves on the Board of DirecforsADC and Broadcom
Corporation. Mr. Switz is the Chairman of the BiiarAudit Committee.

There is no family relationship between any direcioexecutive officer of the Company.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the factors discussed elsewheraigiEorm 10-K, the following are important factevkich could cause actual results or events to iffaterially from those
contained in any forward-looking statements maderbyn behalf of the Company.

We have experienced dramatic declines in averagellggg prices for our semiconductor memory productswhich have adversely affected our business.

For 2008 average selling prices of DRAM productd BIAND Flash products decreased approximately 50806%5%, respectively, as compared to 2007. Fov 28@erage selling
prices of DRAM products and NAND Flash productsrdased 23% and 56%, respectively, as compared® 2@ other recent years, we also have experéesigmificant annual
decreases in per gigabit average selling pricesfomemory products including: 34% in 2006, 2492005, 17% in 2003, 53% in 2002 and 60% in 2001 tiMes, average selling
prices for our memory products have been belowcosts. We recorded inventory write-downs of $28an in 2008 and $20 million in 2007 as a resuflisignificant decreases in
average selling prices for our semiconductor menpooglucts. If the estimated market values of petglheld in finished goods and work in processineges at a quarter end date
below the manufacturing cost of these productstegegnize charges to cost of goods sold to writerdihe carrying value of our inventories to mankaue. Future charges for
inventory write-downs could be significantly larghan the amount recorded in 2008 and 2007. Ifeeyeeselling prices for our memory products rentiipressed or decrease faster
than we can decrease per gigabit costs, as thepthehave, our business, results of operatiorfhancial condition could be materially adverseffeated.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash floves obtain access to external financing necessary fond our operations and make adequate capital ilv&ments.

Our cash flows from operations depend primariljtimvolume of semiconductor memory sold, averaimgerices and per unit manufacturing costs. deselop new product
and process technologies, support future growthieae operating efficiencies and maintain prodwliy, we must make significant capital investnseintmanufacturing technology,
facilities and capital equipment, research and ldgweent, and product and process technology. Weietly estimate our capital spending to approxérztween $1.0 billion to $1.3
billion for 2009. Cash and investments of IM Flastd TECH are generally not available to financeather operations. In the past we have utilize@maal sources of financing and
access to capital markets has historically beey ingportant to us. As a result of the severe downin the semiconductor memory market, the downiigeneral economic
conditions, and the adverse conditions in the tredrkets, financing instruments that we have us¢de past are currently not available to us aag mot be available to us for
extended periods. There can be no assurance ¢hatlibe able to generate sufficient cash flowdid other sources of financing to fund our opierst; make adequate capital
investments to remain competitive in terms of tetbgy development and cost efficiency; or accepitalamarkets. Our inability to do the foregoinguéd have a material adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.

We may be unable to reduce our per gigabit manufaating costs at the rate average selling prices deécé.

Our gross margins are dependent upon continuingedses in per gigabit manufacturing costs achiéwedigh improvements in our manufacturing processetiding reducing
the die size of our existing products. In futuegipds, we may be unable to reduce our per gigahitufacturing costs at sufficient levels to inceegeoss margins due to factors,
including, but not limited to, strategic productelisification decisions affecting product mix, thereasing complexity of manufacturing processkanges in process technologies or
products that inherently may require relativelygkardie sizes. Per gigabit manufacturing costs aisy be affected by the relatively smaller prourctjuantities and shorter product
lifecycles of certain specialty memory products.

The semiconductor memory industry is highly competive.
We face intense competition in the semiconductanorg market from a number of companies, includitigida Memory, Inc.; Hynix Semiconductor Inc.; QimanAG; Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd.; SanDisk Corporation; Tosh@aporation and from emerging companies in Taiaat China, who have significantly expanded theescitheir

operations. Some of our competitors are largearatjpns or conglomerates that may have greateuress to withstand downturns in the semiconduttarkets in which we compe!
invest in technology and capitalize on growth opyaities.
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Our competitors seek to increase silicon capatitprove yields, reduce die size and minimize maskls in their product designs. The transitionsrballer line-width process
technologies and 300mm wafers in the industry lasealted in significant increases in the worldwstdgply of semiconductor memory and will likely le@dfuture increases. Increa
in worldwide supply of semiconductor memory alssulefrom semiconductor memory fab capacity expamsieither by way of new facilities, increasedaxaty utilization or
reallocation of other semiconductor productiongmi&onductor memory production. We and severaluofcompetitors have significantly increased praiducin recent periods
through construction of new facilities or expansidrexisting facilities. Increases in worldwidepgly of semiconductor memory, if not accompaniethwommensurate increases in
demand, would lead to further declines in averadieng prices for our products and would materia@tjversely affect our business, results of operatar financial condition.

Our NAND Flash memory operations involve numerousisks.

As a result of severe oversupply in the NAND Flasdrket, our average selling prices of NAND Flasbdpicts for 2008 decreased approximately 65% as amedpo 2007 after
decreasing 56% for 2007 as compared to 2006. rAsudt, we experienced negative gross margins les sdour NAND Flash products in 2008. In OctoB@68, we announced that
our IM Flash joint venture with Intel Corporationlidiscontinue production of 200mm wafer NAND flasnemory at Micron’s Boise facility. The NAND Flagroduction shutdown
will reduce IM Flash’s NAND flash production by apgimately 35,000 200mm wafers per month. In addjtwe and Intel agreed to suspend tooling andah® of production
NAND Flash at IM Flas’s Singapore wafer fabrication plant. A continoatof the challenging conditions in the NAND Flaskrket will materially adversely affect our busises
results of operations and financial condition.

Our joint ventures and strategic partnerships involle numerous risks.

We have entered into partnering arrangements tafaature products and develop new manufacturingge®technologies and products. These arrangemehitse our IM
Flash NAND flash joint ventures with Intel, our DRBjoint ventures with Nanya, our TECH DRAM jointnire and our MP Mask joint venture with Photronid$iese strategic
partnerships and joint ventures are subject tauarrisks that could adversely affect the valuewfinvestments and our results of operations.s&isks include the following:

« our interests could diverge from our partners mftiture or we may not be able to agree with pastoa the amount, timing or nature of further irtwents in our joint ventur

due to financial constraints, our partners mayrigble to meet their commitments to us or our jeérttures and may pose credit risks for our traimaswith them

the terms of our arrangements may turn out to fievonable;

cash flows may be inadequate to fund increasedatapguirements

we may experience difficulties in transferring tectogy to joint ventures

we may experience difficulties and delays in rargginoduction from joint ventures; al

political or economic instability may occur in theuntries where our joint ventures and/or partaeedocated

If our joint ventures and strategic partnershigswarsuccessful our business, results of operatiofisancial condition may be adversely affected.
Economic conditions may harm our business.

Economic and business conditions, including a ooirig downturn in the semiconductor memory industrshe overall economy could adversely affectlmsiness. Adverse
conditions may affect consumer demand for devieasihcorporate our products such as mobile phgerspnal computers, Flash memory cards and USBetevReduced demand
for our products could result in market oversupgtyl significant decreases in our selling pricescoAtinuation of conditions in credit markets wolifdit our ability to obtain external
financing to fund our operations and capital exjitemes. In addition, we may experience losseswrholdings of cash and investments due to failofdmancial institutions and oth
parties. Difficult economic conditions may alssukt in a higher rate of losses on our accountsivables due to credit defaults. As a result,baginess, results of operations or
financial condition could be materially adverseffeated.
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We may incur additional restructure charges or notrealize the expected benefits of new initiatives teeduce costs across our operations.

On October 9, 2008 we announced a plan to resteictur memory operations including IM Flash’s slowtd of 200mm wafer NAND flash memory productioroat Boise
facility. The NAND Flash production shutdown wi#duce IM Flash’s NAND flash production by approziely 35,000 200mm wafers per month. In additeaand Intel agreed to
suspend tooling and the ramp of production at IksRIs Singapore wafer fabrication plant. As pathis restructuring, we plan to reduce our globatkforce by approximately 15
percent during 2009 and 2010. Cash costs foruasiiing and other related expenses incurred imection with this restructuring are anticipatedhéoapproximately $60 million, and
the benefit to our cash operating results for 28@Xpected to exceed $175 million. We may inaldional restructure costs or not realize the etguebenefits of these new
initiatives. As a result of these initiatives, @xpect to lose production output, incur restrucigior other infrequent charges and we may expegidigruptions in our operations, loss
of key personnel and difficulties in delivering prets timely.

Our acquisition of a 35.6% interest in Inotera Memaies, Inc. involves numerous risks.

On October 12, 2008, we announced that we hadezhieto an agreement to acquire Qimonda AG’s 35@#tership stake in Inotera Memories, Inc., a Tars@anDRAM
memory manufacturer, for $400 million in cash. Weeived commitments of $285 million of term loansund this acquisition in part. Inotera is exjgecto implement the
Company’s stack process technology. We expeotdataally gain access to approximately 60,000 30adRAM wafers per month, 50% of Inotera’s outputur@cquisition of an
interest in Inotera involves numerous risks inahgdihe following:

« difficulties in converting Inotera production froQimond¢ s trench technology to our stack technolc

difficulties in obtaining financing for capital egpditures necessary to convert Inotera producti@ut stack technolog'

increasing debt to finance the acquisiti

uncertainties around the timing and amount of watgply received

obligations during the technology transition periogrocure product based on a compe's technology which may be difficult to sell and yide product support for d
to our limited understanding of the technolo

uncertainties relating to Qimor's purchase of certain agreed quantities of produeatie using Qimon(s trench technology during the technology transiperiod,;

uncertainties relating to Qimonda’s financial sliépprior to and after the final closing of thehsaction; and
« the inability to reach satisfactory joint ventugre@ements

As a result of these risks, we may be unable topbeta the Inotera acquisition or achieve our objestfor the acquisition, which may materially achedy affect our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

An adverse result in our litigation matters could naterially adversely affect our business, results afperations or financial condition.
On January 13, 2006, Rambus, Inc. (“Rambus”) fildadwsuit against us in the U.S. District Courttfoe Northern District of California. Rambus allsghat certain of our DDR2,
DDR3, RLDRAM, and RLDRAM II products infringe as maas eighteen Rambus patents and seeks monetaagds, treble damages, and injunctive relief. ddwised products

account for a significant portion of our net sal&€n June 2, 2006, we filed an answer and coumtiencigainst Rambus alleging, among other thingitrast and fraud claims. Trial ¢
the patent phase of that case is currently schédalbegin January 19, 2009.
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On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a lawsuit in the SigveCourt of the State of California (San Franci€munty) against us and other DRAM suppliers. @tmplaint alleges
various causes of action under California stateitamhuding conspiracy to restrict output and fixces on Rambus DRAM ("RDRAM"), and unfair competiti The complaint seeks
treble damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ émssts, and a permanent injunction enjoining themtidints from the conduct alleged in the complalital is currently scheduled to
begin in March 2009. (See “ltem 3. Legal Procegsii for additional details on these cases andrd&laenbus matters pending in Europe and Delaware.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of these lasvsiihe adverse resolution of these lawsuitsdoesult in significant liability and could havereaterial adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial caowlit

An adverse determination that our products or manuécturing processes infringe the intellectual propey rights of others could materially adversely affet our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

We are engaged in patent litigation with MosaidAresogies, Inc. ("Mosaid") in the U.S. District Gotor the Northern District of California. Mosaidleges that certain of our
DRAM and CMOS image sensor products infringe upvelve Mosaid patents and seeks monetary damagbe tlamages, and injunctive relief. The accygseducts account for a
significant portion of our net sales. Trial is @ntly scheduled for June 5, 2009. (See “Itenh&gal Proceedings” for additional details.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of assertibingringement made against us. A court detertiomathat our products or manufacturing processfsge the intellectual
property rights of others could result in signifitéiability and/or require us to make material mpas to our products and/or manufacturing procesaaeg of the foregoing results cot
have a material adverse effect on our businessitsesf operations or financial condition.

We have a number of patent and intellectual prgdeense agreements. Some of these license agréemequire us to make one time or periodic paysmewe may need to
obtain additional patent licenses or renew exidlitense agreements in the future. We are unalpeadict whether these license agreements cabta@ed or renewed on acceptable
terms.

Allegations of anticompetitive conduct.

A number of purported class action price-fixing $aits have been filed against us and other DRAMBens. Numerous cases have been filed in vastate and federal courts
asserting claims on behalf of a purported clasadifiduals and entities that indirectly purchag®AM and/or products containing DRAM from varioufRBM suppliers during the
time period from April 1, 1999 through at least 80, 2002. The complaints allege violations efvhrious jurisdictions’ antitrust, consumer prditat and/or unfair competition laws
relating to the sale and pricing of DRAM produatsi gseek treble monetary damages, restitution, dosésest and attorneys’ fees. A number of thezsses have been removed to
federal court and transferred to the U.S. DistBietrt for the Northern District of California (S&nancisco) for consolidated proceedings. On Jan2@y2008, the Northern District of
California Court granted in part and denied in ant motion to dismiss the plaintiff'second amended consolidated complaint. Thei@i§tourt subsequently certified the decisior
interlocutory appeal. On February 27, 2008, pifitnfiled a third amended complaint. On June 2808, the United States Court of Appeals for thettNCircuit accepted plaintiffs’
interlocutory appeal. (See “Item 3. Legal Prodegs!’ for additional details on these cases aratedl matters.)

Various states, through their Attorneys Generalghded suit against us and other DRAM manufagsiedleging violations of state and federal contfmetilaws. The amended
complaint alleges, among other things, violatiohthe Sherman Act, Cartwright Act, and certain otftates’ consumer protection and antitrust lawsseeks damages, and injunctive
and other relief. On October 3, 2008, the Calittorney General filed a similar lawsuit in Galinia Superior Court, purportedly on behalf ofdb€alifornia government entities,
alleging, among other things, violations of the t@aight Act and state unfair competition law. (S#em 3. Legal Proceedings” for additional detaih these cases and related
matters.)

A number of purported class action lawsuits hawentféded against us and other SRAM suppliers aisgpcdaims on behalf of a purported class of indiivls and entities that
purchased SRAM directly or indirectly from varicBRAM suppliers. The complaints allege price fixing/iolation of federal antitrust laws and statgitaust and unfair competition
laws and seek treble monetary damages, restitutasts, interest and attorneys' fees. The fiiagtitr these cases is currently scheduled for $eipée 2010. (See “Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” for additional details on these casekrelated matters.)
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Three purported class action lawsuits allegingepfiging of Flash products have been filed in Canadserting violations of the Canadian Competifion These cases assert
claims on behalf of a purported class of indiviguahd entities that purchased Flash memory diracitlyindirectly from various Flash memory suppliefSee “ltem 3. Legal
Proceedings” for additional details on these casekrelated matters.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of these lasvsAn adverse court determination in any of éhkesvsuits alleging violations of antitrust lawsuttbresult in significant
liability and could have a material adverse effatbur business, results of operations or finaramabition.

Allegations of violations of securities laws.

On February 24, 2006, a number of purported clessracomplaints were filed against us and centdiiour officers in the U.S. District Court for tiastrict of Idaho alleging
claims under Section 10(b) and 20(a) of the SeearExchange Act of 1934, as amended, and RuléIffomulgated thereunder. The cases purport tivdngght on behalf of a class
of purchasers of our stock during the period Fetyr@4, 2001 to February 13, 2003. The five lanshive been consolidated and a consolidated amefatedaction complaint was
filed on July 24, 2006. The complaint generallggés violations of federal securities laws basgdamong other things, claimed misstatements ossions regarding alleged illegal
price-fixing conduct. The complaint seeks unspeditiamages, interest, attorneys' fees, costsexgmehses. On December 19, 2007, the Court issuethar certifying the class but
reducing the class period to purchasers of oukstacdng the period from February 24, 2001 to Seyier 18, 2002. (See “Item 3. Legal Proceedingsafiditional details on these
cases and related matters.)

We are unable to predict the outcome of these caSesdverse court determination in any of theglaction lawsuits against us could result in §iganit liability and could have
material adverse effect on our business, resultefations or financial condition.

Covenants in our debt instruments may obligate usotrepay debt, increase contributions to our TECH jint venture and limit our ability to obtain financi ng.

Our ability to comply with the financial and othesvenants contained in our debt may be affectegicloypomic or business conditions or other eventsoffAugust 28, 2008, the
Company had notes payable of $108 million, denotathan Japanese yen, that were subject to coverinalisding the ratio of debt to equity. As a résid financing that we are
pursuing for our acquisition of a 35.6% intereskniatera, we may prepay all of this ydenominated debt in the first quarter of 2009 toiddefaulting on these covenants. In addit
as of August 28, 2008, our 73% owned TECH SemicormiSingapore Pte. Ltd., (“TECH”) subsidiary, I&D0 million outstanding under a credit facilityttvcovenants that, among
other requirements, establish certain liquidityhtdgervice coverage and leverage ratios for TECiHrastrict TECHS ability to incur indebtedness, create liens atliie or dispose ¢
assets. If TECH does not comply with these debéants and restrictions, this debt may be deembd tn default and the debt declared payable.itia@lly, if TECH is unable to
repay its borrowings when due, the lenders und€2H'E credit facility could proceed against substdhyt all of TECH's assets. We have guarantegar@ximately 73% of the
outstanding amount of TECH'’s credit facility, anar @bligation increases to 100% of the outstandimgunt of the facility upon the occurrence of dertanditions. If TECHS debt it
accelerated, we may not have sufficient assetspayramounts due. EXxisting covenant restrictioag limit our ability to obtain additional debt fineing and to avoid covenant
defaults we may have to pay off debt obligationd erake additional contributions to TECH, which @babversely affect our liquidity and financial cdrah.

Products that fail to meet specifications, are detgive or that are otherwise incompatible with end ges could impose significant costs on us.

Products that do not meet specifications or thatain, or are perceived by our customers to contiefects or that are otherwise incompatible witt eses could impose
significant costs on us or otherwise materiallyexdely affect our business, results of operatiorisyancial condition.

Because the design and production process for sedictor memory is highly complex, it is possitiiattwe may produce products that do not comply aitstomer

specifications, contain defects or are otherwisernnpatible with end uses. If, despite design reyguality control and product qualification procees, problems with nonconformir
defective or incompatible products occur after \aeenshipped such products, we could be adversfegtaél in several ways, including the following:
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« we may replace product or otherwise compensatewss for costs incurred or damages caused bytdefes incompatible product, ar
« we may encounter adverse publicity, which couldsesaidecrease in sales of our prodt
Our debt level is higher than compared to historichperiods.
We currently have a higher level of debt compacehiistorical periods. As of August 28, 2008, wel §2.7 billion of debt, and we will incur an addital $285 million of debt in
ggzlr:fction with our acquisition of a 35.6% inteiiedinotera. We may need to incur additional delthie future. Our debt level could have a negatiyeact on us. For example it

« make it more difficult for us to make payments am debt;

« require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaash flow from operations and other capital resesito debt servic

limit our future ability to raise funds for capitakpenditures, acquisitions, research and developarel other general corporate requireme
« increase our vulnerability to adverse economicserdiconductor memory industry conditio

« expose us to fluctuations in interest rates witipeet to that portion of our debt which is at Valearate of interest; and

« require us to make additional investments in jeintures to maintain compliance with financial aoaets.

New product development may be unsuccessful.

We are developing new products that complementraditional memory products or leverage their utydieg design or process technology. We have magtéfieant investment
in product and process technologies and anticggtending significant resources for new semicorafymoduct development over the next several ye@e process to develop
NAND Flash, Imaging and certain specialty memomduorcts requires us to demonstrate advanced fuiditipand performance, many times well in advanfica planned ramp ¢
production, in order to secure design wins with caustomers. There can be no assurance that odugirdevelopment efforts will be successful, thatwill be able to cost-effectively
manufacture these new products, that we will be &bkuccessfully market these products or thagimsugenerated from sales of these products vaver costs of development
efforts.

The future success of our Imaging business will bdependent on continued market acceptance of our pducts and the development, introduction and marketig of new
Imaging products.

We face competition in the image sensor market faamumber of suppliers of CMOS image sensors imetu®mniVision Technologies, Inc.; Samsung EledesiCo., Ltd; Sony
Corporation; STMicroelectronics NV; Toshiba Corpg@a and from a number of suppliers of CCD imagesses including Matsushita Electric Industrial Add.; Sharp Corporation
and Sony Corporation. In recent periods, a numnbaew companies have entered the CMOS image semstiet. Competitors include many large domestetiaternational
companies that have greater presence in key mabedter access to certain customer bases, greatez recognition and more established strategidinadcial relationships than the
Company.

In recent years, our Imaging net sales and grosginsadecreased and we faced increased competifibare can be no assurance that we will be aldeaw or maintain our
market share or gross margins for Imaging prodinctise future. The success of our Imaging busimééslepend on a number of factors, including:

« development of products that maintain a technokdgidvantage over the products of our competi

« accurate prediction of market requirements andwénvglstandards, including pixel resolution, outjnterface standards, power requirements, optiaa k&ze, inpt
standards and other requiremel
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« timely completion and introduction of new Imaging@ucts that satisfy customer requireme

« timely achievement of design wins with prospectustomers, as manufacturers may be reluctant togehtheir source of components due to the sigmificasts, time
effort and risk associated with qualifying a newlier; and

« efficient, cos-effective manufacturing as we transition to newdpiets and higher volume
Our efforts to restructure our Imaging business maybe unsuccessful.

We are exploring partnering arrangements with detgiarties regarding the separation of our Aptinagding business to an independent entity in whielwould retain a
significant minority ownership interest. To thade we began operating our Imaging business apaate, wholly-owned, subsidiary in October 2008.the extent we form a
partnering arrangement, the resulting business hmdg not be successful and the Imaging operatiemsnues and margins could be adversely affedtéel may incur significant cos
to convert Imaging operations to a new businesgttre and operations could be disrupted. In axditve may lose key personnel. If our effortsestructure the Imaging business
are unsuccessful, our business, results of opestiofinancial condition could be materially adsady affected.

We expect to make future acquisitions and alliancesvhich involve numerous risks.
Acquisitions and the formation of alliances sucljoast ventures and other partnering arrangemeémisjve numerous risks including the following:

difficulties in integrating the operations, techogies and products of acquired or newly formedtiesti

increasing capital expenditures to upgrade and taiaifacilities;

increasing debt to finance any acquisition or fdfamaof a new busines

difficulties in protecting our intellectual propgras we enter into a greater number of licensingrgements
« diverting manageme’s attention from normal daily operatiol

« managing larger or more complex operations anditiasiand employees in separate geographic aasak

« hiring and retaining key employe

Acquisitions of, or alliances with, high-technologympanies are inherently risky, and any futuredaations may not be successful and may mategéirgrsely affect our
business, results of operations or financial caowlit

Our net operating loss and tax credit carryforwardsmay be limited.

We have significant net operating loss and taxiteadryforwards. We have provided significantuetion allowances against the tax benefit of soskds as well as certain tax
credit carryforwards. Utilization of these net ogiéng losses and credit carryforwards is dependpah us achieving sustained profitability. Asoagsequence of prior business
acquisitions, utilization of the tax benefits fanse of the tax carryforwards is subject to limas imposed by Section 382 of the Internal Revé&@uge and some portion or all of
these carryforwards may not be available to offsgtfuture taxable income. The determination eflimitations is complex and requires significardgment and analysis of past
transactions.
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Changes in foreign currency exchange rates could rtexially adversely affect our business, results adperations or financial condition.

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbel.S. GAAP and are reported in U.S. dollafsross our multi-national operations, there arageations and balances
denominated in other currencies, primarily the eyem and Singapore dollar. We recorded a netdb$25 million from changes in currency excharges for 2008. We estimate
that, based on its assets and liabilities denomihit currencies other than the U.S. dollar asugjust 28, 2008, a 1% change in the exchange ratasvéhe U.S. dollar would result in
foreign currency gains or losses of approximate!$.\$1 million for the euro and yen. In the evibiatt the U.S. dollar weakens significantly comparethe euro, yen or Singapore
dollar, our results of operations or financial civioth will be adversely affected.

We face risks associated with our international sak and operations that could materially adverselyféect our business, results of operations or finanal condition.

Sales to customers outside the United States aippated 75% of our consolidated net sales for 20@8&ddition, we have manufacturing operations ing, Italy, Japan, Puerto
Rico and Singapore. Our international sales amdatjpns are subject to a variety of risks, inahgdi

« currency exchange rate fluctuatio
« export and import duties, changes to import andexegulations, and restrictions on the transfdunds;

political and economic instability

« problems with the transportation or delivery of puoducts:
« issues arising from cultural or language differenaed labor unrest;
« longer payment cycles and greater difficulty inlecting accounts receivable; a
« compliance with trade and other laws in a varidtjunsdictions.
These factors may materially adversely affect ausifess, results of operations or financial cooditi
If our manufacturing process is disrupted, our busness, results of operations or financial conditiosould be materially adversely affected.
We manufacture products using highly complex preesshat require technologically advanced equipmedtcontinuous modification to improve yields and
performance. Difficulties in the manufacturing gess or the effects from a shift in product mix oeguce yields or disrupt production and may ineeeaur per gigabit manufacturing
costs. Additionally, our control over operation®ar IM Flash, TECH, Inotera, MeiYa and MP Maslknjoventures may be limited by our agreements withpartners. From time to
time, we have experienced minor disruptions inraanufacturing process as a result of power outagespperly functioning equipment and equipmeniufas. If production at a
fabrication facility is disrupted for any reasoramafacturing yields may be adversely affected onvag be unable to meet our customers' requirenagntshey may purchase products
from other suppliers. This could result in a sfigaint increase in manufacturing costs or losseEnues or damage to customer relationships, vdoioll materially adversely affect
our business, results of operations or financiabddion.
Disruptions in our supply of raw materials could maerially adversely affect our business, results afperations or financial condition.
Our operations require raw materials that meettex@standards. We generally have multiple souofesipply for our raw materials. However, onlinaited number of suppliel

are capable of delivering certain raw material$ theet our standards. Various factors could redlveavailability of raw materials such as silisoafers, photomasks, chemicals,
gases, lead frames and molding compound.
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Shortages may occur from time to time in the futureaddition, disruptions in transportation liresuld delay our receipt of raw materials. Leades for the supply of raw
materials have been extended in the past. If applg of raw materials is disrupted or our leadeinextended, our business, results of operatiofisasrcial condition could be
materially adversely affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Iltem 2. Properties

The Company’s corporate headquarters are locatBdise, Idaho. The following is a summary of then@any’s principal facilities:

Location Principal Operations

Boise, Idahc Wafer fabrication, test and assembly, reticle maauwiring and R&L

Lehi, Utah Wafer fabricatior

Manassas, Virgini Wafer fabricatior

Singapore Two wafer fabrication facilities and a test, assgnamd module assembly facili
Nishiwaki City, Japai Wafer fabricatior

Avezzano, Italy Wafer fabricatior

Nampa, Idaht Test

Aguadilla, Puerto Rici Module assembly, te

Xi'an, Chine Test

The Company also owns and leases a number of fattiéities in locations throughout the world tha¢ aised for design, research and development,aes and marketing
activities. The Company’s facility in Lehi is owshand operated by its IM Flash joint venture witkel. (See “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Samphtary Data — Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements — Joint Ventaid&ND Flash Joint Ventures with Intel.”) One dEtCompany’s wafer fabrication facilities in Singagis owned by its TECH
joint venture and collateralizes, in part, TE's $600 million credit facility. (See “ltem 8. Fancial Statements and Supplementary Data — Not@snsolidated Financial Statements —
Joint Ventures — TECH Semiconductor SingaporelRte”) The Company’s other wafer fabrication fagilin Singapore is owned by its IM Flash Singapjmiat venture. The IM
Flash Singapore facility was substantially completethe first quarter of 2009 but has not beeripggmpd. In October 2008, the Company and Inteledjte suspend tooling and the
ramp of production at IM Flash’s Singapore wafdarieation plant. On October 9, 2008, the Compamyoanced that its IM Flash joint venture with In@drporation will discontinue
production of 200mm wafer NAND flash memory at Miots Boise facility.

The Company believes that its existing facilities suitable and adequate for its present purpoBles.Company does not identify or allocate assetsperating segment. (See
“Item 8. Financial Statements and SupplementanaBdtlotes to Consolidated Financial Statementseg@@hic Information.”)

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings
Patent Matters

On August 28, 2000, the Company filed a complagtimst Rambus, Inc. (“‘Rambus”) in the U.S. Dist@curt for the District of Delaware seeking mongtdamages and
declaratory and injunctive relief. Among othemig, the Company’s complaint (as amended) alleigéstion of federal antitrust laws, breach of cawetr fraud, deceptive trade
practices, and negligent misrepresentation. Theptaint also seeks a declaratory judgment (a)deetain Rambus patents are not infringed by the @y, are invalid, and/or are
unenforceable, (b) that the Company has an imfitedse to those patents, and (c) that Rambugagsd from enforcing those patents against thegaom On February 15, 2001,
Rambus filed an answer and counterclaim in Delawarging that the Company is entitled to relielegihg infringement of the eight Rambus patentsedin the Company’s
declaratory judgment claim, and seeking monetamyatges and injunctive relief. In the Delaware agtthe Company subsequently added claims and defdrased on Rambus’s
alleged spoliation of evidence and litigation misdoct. The spoliation and litigation misconducticis and defenses were heard in a bench trialdéfatge Robinson in October
2007. Post-trial briefing is complete, and a deai®n this phase is now pending.

A number of other suits involving Rambus are culyepending in Europe alleging that certain of @@mpany’s SDRAM and DDR SDRAM products infringeivas of Rambus’
country counterparts to its European patent 525 id88iding: on September 1, 2000, Rambus filetl against Micron Semiconductor (Deutschland) Gmbithe District Court of
Mannheim, Germany; on September 22, 2000, Ramlagsdicomplaint against the Company and Reptrandigtributor of the Company’s products) in the G@adi First Instance of
Paris, France; on September 29, 2000, the Comiladystiit against Rambus in the Civil Court of Mijdtaly, alleging invalidity and non-infringemenin addition, on December 29,
2000, the Company filed suit against Rambus inivél Court of Avezzano, Italy, alleging invaliditgnd non-infringement of the Italian counterparEtoopean patent 1 004
956. Additionally, on August 14, 2001, Rambusdiiiit against Micron Semiconductor (Deutschlandjb® in the District Court of Mannheim, Germany glfey that certain of the
Company’s DDR SDRAM products infringe Rambus’ coyrdounterparts to its European patent 1 022 842he European suits against the
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Company, Rambus is seeking monetary damages amttive relief. Subsequent to the filing of theiwas European suits, the European Patent Offfee“EPO”) declared Rambus’
525 068 and 1 004 956 European patents invalidevaked the patents. The declaration of invaliditth respect to the '068 patent was upheld onappEhe original claims of the
'956 patent also were declared invalid on appeslthe EPO ultimately granted a Rambus requesntend the claims by adding a number of limitations.

On January 13, 2006, Rambus filed a lawsuit ag#ies€Company in the U.S. District Court for the tern District of California. The complaint alleggthat certain of the
Company’s DDR2, DDR3, RLDRAM, and RLDRAM Il prodscinfringe as many as eighteen Rambus patentseshkd snonetary damages, treble damages, and injametief. On
June 2, 2006, the Company filed an answer and eaztlaim against Rambus alleging among other thiagstrust and fraud claims. The Northern DistatCalifornia Court
subsequently consolidated the antitrust and fréaiche and certain equitable defenses of the Compadyother parties against Rambus in a jury thial began on January 29,
2008. On March 26, 2008, a jury returned a vetidi¢avor of Rambus on the Compasyntitrust and fraud claims. Trial on the pafgrase of that case is currently scheduled to t
January 19, 2009.

On July 24, 2006, the Company filed a declaratodgment action against Mosaid Technologies, Ifdogaid”) in the U.S. District Court for the NortimeDistrict of California
seeking, among other things, a court determinatiahfourteen Mosaid patents are invalid, not ezéable, and/or not infringed. On July 25, 2006sid filed a lawsuit against the
Company and others in the U.S. District Court far Eastern District of Texas alleging infringemehbine Mosaid patents. On August 31, 2006, Mofiled an amended complaint
adding three additional Mosaid patents. On Oct@3eR2006, the California Court dismissed the Camyfsadeclaratory judgment suit based on lack dbgliction. The Company
appealed that decision to the U.S. Court of Appfalthe Federal Circuit. On February 29, 2008, thS. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuities$ an order reversing the
dismissal of the Company'declaratory judgment action filed in the U.S.tBi$ Court for the Northern District of Californend remanding the suit to that Court. The Texdi®n wa
subsequently transferred to the Northern DistricCalifornia. Mosaid alleges that certain of then@pany’s DRAM and CMOS image sensor products ig&inp to twelve Mosaid
patents and seeks monetary damages, treble danaagesjunctive relief. The accused products antéar a significant portion of our net sales. aliis currently scheduled for June
5, 2009.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome cfdlseiits. A court determination that the Compapyeglucts or manufacturing processes infringe teyct or process
intellectual property rights of others could resalsignificant liability and/or require the Compato make material changes to its products andémufacturing processes. Any of the
foregoing results could have a material adversecefin the Company’s business, results of opermmtorfinancial condition.

Antitrust Matters

A number of purported class action price-fixing $aits have been filed against the Company and @R&M suppliers. Four cases have been filed indt® District Court for
the Northern District of California asserting claimn behalf of a purported class of individuals antities that indirectly purchased DRAM and/ordarots containing DRAM from
various DRAM suppliers during the time period fréwpril 1, 1999 through at least June 30, 2002. @t¢mplaints allege price fixing in violation of fedéantitrust laws and various
state antitrust and unfair competition laws andkdezble monetary damages, restitution, costsresteand attorneys’ fees. In addition, at leadydiour cases have been filed in vari
state courts asserting claims on behalf of a pteparlass of indirect purchasers of DRAM. Caselieeen filed in the following states: Arkansaszéna, California, Florida,
Hawaii, lowa, Kansas, Massachusetts, Maine, Mighiféinnesota, Mississippi, Montana, North CaroliNarth Dakota, Nebraska, New Hampshire, New Jeidew Mexico, Nevadi
New York, Ohio, Pennsylvania, South Dakota, Teneesbltah, Vermont, Virginia, Wisconsin, and Westgifiia, and also in the District of Columbia anceRa Rico. The complain
purport to be on behalf of a class of individualsl @ntities that indirectly purchased DRAM and/ayducts containing DRAM in the respective jurisitios during various time perio
ranging from April 1999 through at least June 2002e complaints allege violations of the varioussidictions’antitrust, consumer protection and/or unfair cortipetlaws relating t
the sale and pricing of DRAM products and seeki¢relonetary damages, restitution, costs, interesiadtorneysfees. A number of these cases have been removederal court ar
transferred to the U.S. District Court for the Nhentn District of California (San Francisco) for sofidated proceedings. On January 29, 2008, ththisim District of California Court
granted in part and denied in part the Company’sando dismiss plaintiff's second amended consaakd complaint. Plaintiffs subsequently filed atimo seeking certification for
interlocutory appeal of the decision. On Febru2ify2008, plaintiffs filed a third amended complai®n June 26, 2008, the United States Court gfeps for the Ninth Circuit
accepted plaintiffs’ interlocutory appeal.
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Additionally, three cases have been filed in tHfeing Canadian courts: Superior Court, Disto€Montreal, Province of Quebec; Ontario Superiouf of Justice, Ontario; and
Supreme Court of British Columbia, Vancouver RegjdBritish Columbia. The substantive allegatiamtshese cases are similar to those asserted icetes filed in the United
States. In May and June 2008 respectively, pféshthotion for class certification was denied hetBritish Columbia and Quebec cases. Plaintdfgetfiled an appeal of each of those
decisions.

In addition, various states, through their Attorm&eneral, have filed suit against the Companycdiner DRAM manufacturers. On July 14, 2006, andGeptember 8, 2006 in an
amended complaint, the following Attorneys Genéitadl suit in the U.S. District Court for the Noeimn District of California: Alaska, Arizona, Arkaas, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, lowagKtucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachussttshigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevadew Hampshire, New
Mexico, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklah@n®regon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South @aroliennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, \Wasbn, West Virginia,
Wisconsin and the Commonwealth of the Northern ®tailslands. Three states, Ohio, New HampshiteTaras, subsequently voluntarily dismissed thieints. The remaining
states filed a third amended complaint on Octob@007. Alaska, Delaware, and Vermont subsequentiyntarily dismissed their claims. The amendexhplaint alleges, among
other things, violations of the Sherman Act, Caigivr Act, and certain other states’ consumer ptaie@nd antitrust laws and seeks damages, andditije and other
relief. Additionally, on July 13, 2006, the StateNew York filed a similar suit in the U.S. DigttiCourt for the Southern District of New York. &ttcase was subsequently transferred
to the U.S. District Court for the Northern Distraf California for pre-trial purposes. The StaefeNew York filed an amended complaint on Octobe2d07. On October 3, 2008, the
California Attorney General filed a similar lawsinitCalifornia Superior Court, purportedly on bdtadllocal California government entities, allegjragnong other things, violations of
the Cartwright Act and state unfair competition law

On February 28, 2007, February 28, 2007 and Mar@0@7, cases were filed against the Company dret atanufacturers of DRAM in the U.S. District Cofar the Northern
District of California by All American Semiconduetdnc., Jaco Electronics, Inc. and DRAM Claims widgtion Trust, respectively, that opted-out ofir@ct purchaser class action suit
that was settled. The complaints allege, amongrdtiings, violations of federal and state antitarsd competition laws in the DRAM industry, anélsélamages, injunctive relief, and
other remedies.

On October 11, 2006, the Company received a graydspbpoena from the U.S. District Court for therfiern District of California seeking informatioegarding an investigatic
by the DOJ into possible antitrust violations ie tistatic Random Access Memory” or “SRAM” industrfhe Company believes that it is not a targehefitvestigation and is
cooperating with the DOJ in its investigation of tBRAM industry.

Subsequent to the issuance of subpoenas to the SRA\Mtry, a number of purported class action latsave been filed against the Company and otR&Ns suppliers. Six
cases have been filed in the U.S. District Courttie Northern District of California assertingiota on behalf of a purported class of individuald antities that purchased SRAM
directly from various SRAM suppliers during the iperfrom November 1, 1996 through December 31, 2088ditionally, at least seventy-four cases hagerbfiled in various U.S.
District Courts asserting claims on behalf of apmuted class of individuals and entities that iadily purchased SRAM and/or products containing BRAm various SRAM
suppliers during the time period from Novemberd9@ through December 31, 2006. In September 200Bss of direct purchasers was certified, anidtiffs were granted leave to
amend their complaint to cover Pseudo-Static RANRSRAM” products as well. The complaints allggee fixing in violation of federal antitrust lavesd state antitrust and unfair
competition laws and seek treble monetary damagsstution, costs, interest and attorneys’ fees.

Three purported class action SRAM lawsuits alseetzeen filed in Canada, on behalf of direct andténtl purchasers, alleging violations of the CaaadCompetition Act. The
substantive allegations in these cases are sitniltwose asserted in the SRAM cases filed in thigedrStates.

In addition, three purported class action lawsaliesging pricefixing of Flash products have been filed in Canadserting violations of the Canadian Competitiah. AThese cas
assert claims on behalf of a purported class afiddals and entities that purchased Flash memwectlly and indirectly from various Flash memorypliers.

On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a complaint in theeSige Court of the State of California (San Frangi€ounty) against the Company and other DRAM sappl The complaint
alleges various causes of action under Califor@igedaw including a conspiracy to restrict outand fix prices on Rambus DRAM (“RDRAM") and unfaompetition. Trial is
currently scheduled to begin in March 2009. Tbmplaint seeks treble damages, punitive damagesnays’'fees, costs, and a permanent injunction enjoiriegdefendants from tt
conduct alleged in the complaints.
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The Company is unable to predict the outcome cfelawsuits and investigations. The final resolutf these alleged violations of antitrust lawsldaesult in significant
liability and could have a material adverse effatthe Company’s business, results of operatiofim@ncial condition.

Securities Matters

On February 24, 2006, a putative class action caimfplvas filed against the Company and certairtsodfficers in the U.S. District Court for the Dist of Idaho alleging claims
under Section 10(b) and 20(a) of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b-5 pgatted thereunder. Four substantially similar ctaimps subsequently were
filed in the same Court. The cases purport torbedht on behalf of a class of purchasers of themy’s stock during the period February 24, 2@0Bebruary 13, 2003. The five
lawsuits have been consolidated and a consoligateshded class action complaint was filed on Juy2286. The complaint generally alleges violatiohgederal securities laws
based on, among other things, claimed misstatensemmsissions regarding alleged illegal price-fixiconduct or the Company’s operations and finamesiilts. The complaint seeks
unspecified damages, interest, attorndgss, costs, and expenses. On December 19, 2@0Court issued an order certifying the class édticing the class period to purchasers ¢
Company’s stock during the period from FebruaryZB01 to September 18, 2002.

In addition, on March 23, 2006 a shareholder dérigaaction was filed in the Fourth District Cotot the State of Idaho (Ada County), allegedly @half of and for the benefit of
the Company, against certain of the Company’s atiaed former officers and directors. The Compalsp was named as a nominal defendant. An amerafedlaint was filed on
August 23, 2006 and was subsequently dismissetlebZourt. Another amended complaint was filed ept&@mber 6, 2007. The amended complaint is basédeosame allegations
fact as in the securities class actions filed &thS. District Court for the District of Idaho aallieges breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of congodss mismanagement, waste of
corporate assets, unjust enrichment, and insiddimg. The amended complaint seeks unspecifieddes) restitution, disgorgement of profits, equéamd injunctive relief,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses. The ameodeplaint is derivative in nature and does not saeketary damages from the Company. However, trepgany may be required,
throughout the pendency of the action, to advargengnt of legal fees and costs incurred by thendigfists. On January 25, 2008, the Court grante@dimepany’s motion to dismiss
the second amended complaint without leave to am@mMarch 10, 2008, plaintiffs filed a noticeaygpeal to the Idaho Court of Appeals.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome cfdleses. A court determination in any of theierscagainst the Company could result in signiftdability and could have
material adverse effect on the Company’s businmessjts of operations or financial condition.

(See “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”)
Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of sigchiolders during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART II

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skémlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market for Common Stock

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkY3tock Exchange and is traded under the symbol."MThe following table represents the high and lovsitig sales price
for the Company’s common stock for each quart&0ff8 and 2007, as reported by Bloomberg L.P.

2008:
4th quartel
3rd quartel
2nd quarte
1st quarte
2007:
4th quartel
3rd quartel
2nd quarte
1st quarte

Holders of Record

As of October 17, 2008, there were 3,212 sharehwloferecord of the Company’s common stock.

Dividends

The Company has not declared or paid cash dividsinde 1996 and does not intend to pay cash did&len its common stock for the foreseeable future.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

High Low
$ 852 §$ 4.2¢
8.84 5.4¢€
9.2¢ 5.7t
11.7¢ 7.94
$ 13.9¢  $ 10.6(
12.3¢ 10.9¢
14.9¢ 11.8¢
18.57 13.5%

The information required by this item is incorpecby reference to the information set forth imlt&2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company &egl) as payment of withholding taxes in connectigth the vesting of restricted stock and restdcdtock unit awards, 26,218

shares of its common stock at an average pricé.df7$per share. In the fourth quarter of 2008 Ghepany retired the 26,218 shares acquired ifiotlmth quarter of 2008.

(a) Total number

(c) Total number
of shares (or
units) purchased
as part of
publicly

(d) Maximum
number (or
approximate
dollar value) of
shares (or units)
that may yet be
purchased under

of shares (b) Average price  announced plans the plans or
Period purchased paid per share or programs programs
May 30, 200¢- July 3, 200¢ 15,607 $ 7/2E N/A N/A
July 4, 200¢- July 31, 200¢ 9 5.4t N/A N/A
August 1, 200¢ August 28, 200t 10,60: 4.61 N/A N/A
26,21¢ 6.17
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Performance Graph

The following graph illustrates a five-year compan of cumulative total returns for the Companytsrinon Stock, the S&P 500 Composite Index and tliledRHphia
Semiconductor Index (SOX) from August 28, 2003ptlyh August 28, 2008.

Note: Management cautions that the stock pricégperance information shown in the graph below isyided as of fiscal yeaend and may not be indicative of current stockeg
levels or future stock price performance.
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=& Micron Technology, Inc. =4 =35&P 500 Composite Index = # =Dhiladelphia Semiconductor Index (SOX)

The Company operates on a 52 or 53 week fiscalwhah ends on the Thursday closest to AugustAdcordingly, the last day of the Company’s fiscaby varies. For
consistent presentation and comparison to the indirglices shown herein, the Company has caladli#gestock performance graph assuming an Augugeat end. The performance
graph assumes $100 invested on August 31, 2008im@n Stock of Micron Technology, Inc., the S&P SD@mposite Index and the Philadelphia Semiconduntigx (SOX). Any
dividends paid during the period presented aremasduo be reinvested. The performance was plotéd the following data:

Performance Graph Data

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Micron Technology, Inc $ 00 $ 8 $ 83 % 12¢  $ 80 $ 30
S&P 500 Composite Inde 10C 111 12t 137 157 14C
Philadelphia Semiconductor Index (SC 10C 82 10E 10C 112 80
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Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in millions except per share amour
Net sales $ 5841 $ 568t $ 527: $ 488 $ 4,40¢
Gross margit (55) 1,07¢ 1,20( 1,14¢ 1,31¢
Operating income (los: (1,59%) (280) 35C 217 25C
Net income (loss (1,619 (320) 40¢ 18¢ 157
Diluted earnings (loss) per she (2.10 (0.42) 0.57 0.2¢ 0.24
Cash and shc-term investment 1,362 2,61¢ 3,07¢ 1,29( 1,231
Total current asse 3,77¢ 5,23¢ 5,101 2,92¢ 2,63¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 8,811 8,27¢ 5,88¢ 4,68 4,712
Total asset 13,43( 14,81¢ 12,22 8,00¢ 7,76(
Total current liabilities 1,59¢ 2,02¢ 1,661 97¢ 972
Long-term debr 2,451 1,987 40t 1,02( 1,02¢
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiari 2,86t 2,607 1,56¢ -- -
Total shareholde’ equity 6,17¢ 7,752 8,11« 5,847 5,61%

In 2008, the Company recorded a charge of $463amitb write off all the goodwill associated withet Company’s memory segment.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company and Nahgehnology Corporation (“Nanya”) formed MeiYa,ant venture to manufacture stack DRAM and selkthproducts
exclusively to the Company and Nanya. As parhidf transaction, the Company transferred and legiegrtain intellectual property related to the ofaature of stack DRAM
products to Nanya and licensed certain intellegwaperty from Nanya. The Company and Nanya ajseeal to jointly develop process technology andgesto manufacture stack
DRAM products with each party bearing its own depehent costs until such time that the developmesitscexceed a specified amount, following whicthstasts would be
shared. Under this arrangement, the Companyrisceive an aggregate of $232 million from Nanya fiedlYa through 2010 for licensing and technologansfer fees, of which the
Company realized $40 million of revenue in 200&e Tompany will also receive royalties from Nanpatee sale of stack DRAM products manufacturedtipoNanya. On Octob
12, 2008, the Company announced that it had entete@n agreement to acquire Qimonda AG’s 35.6%erehip stake in Inotera Memories, Inc. (“Inotera’)raiwanese DRAM
memory manufacturer, for $400 million in cash. Twmpany received commitments for $285 millionesfhi loans to fund this acquisition in part. Inater expected to implement -
Company’s stack process technology, and it is guatied that the Company will receive royalties patéra’s production that flows to Nanya, a 35.68&&sholder in Inotera. The
Company will eventually gain access to approxinya®€l,000 300mm DRAM wafers per month, 50% of Inateoutput. In connection with this acquisitione tCompany expects to
enter into a series of agreements with Nanya tougtsire MeiYa. It is anticipated that both pastigill cease future resource commitments to Meild redirect those resources to
Inotera. (See “Item 8. Financial Statements argp®umentary Data — Notes to Consolidated Finar@tatiements — Joint Ventures — DRAM Joint Venturgh iNanya Technology

Corporation.”)

The Company has formed two joint ventures, IM Flagth Intel Corporation (“Intel”) to manufactureAND Flash memory products for the exclusive bengffithe partners: IM
Flash Technologies, LLC, which began operatiorthénsecond quarter of 2006, and IM Flash SingapbRe which began operations in the third quarte2@®7. The Company owns
51% and Intel owns 49% of IM Flash. The financ&gults of IM Flash are included in the consoliddteancial statements of the Company. (See “iBefRinancial Statements and
Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidated FinaStéements — Joint Ventures — NAND Flash Joimtdee with Intel.”)

The Company began consolidating the financial teaflits TECH Semiconductor joint venture (“TECHIS of the beginning of the third quarter of 2006 the third quarter of

2007, the Company acquired all of the shares of HEG@GMmon stock held by Singapore Economic DevelogrBeard, which increased the Company’s ownersitgrést in TECH
from 43% to 73%. (See “Item 8. Financial Statermemd Supplementary Data — Notes to ConsolidateahEial Statements — Joint Ventures — TECH Semieoctod Singapore Pte.

Ltd.”)

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company acquirexar Media, Inc., a designer, developer, manufactand marketer of Flash memory products, imekstor-stock merger.
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In the third quarter of 2006, the Company formedirt venture, MP Mask Technology Center, LLC (“N#Rask”), with Photronics, Inc. to produce photomagkseading-edge
and advanced next generation semiconductors. dhg@ny owns 50.01% and Photronics, Inc. owns 49.8884P Mask. The financial results of MP Mask areluded in the
consolidated financial results of the Company.e(St&m 8. Financial Statements and Supplementata B Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemedtint Ventures — MP Mask
Technology Center, LLC.”)

(See “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and “Item 8. Finan@ahtements and Supplementary Data — Notes to Gdatsal Financial Statements.”)
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Iltem 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains trend informatéond other forward-looking statements that invaveumber of risks and uncertainties. Forwdodking statements include, t
are not limited to, statements such as those mati®verview” regarding the costs and impact of resture plans, the Company’'s DRAM development getdsive to Nanya, royalty
payments from Inotera production, capital committedar the Compar's joint ventures with Nanya Technology Corporatithe supply of DRAM wafers from Inotera Memories,
and manufacturing plans for CMOS image sensorSNiet Sales” regarding increases in NAND Flash megnproduction; in “Gross Margin” regarding future @rges for inventory
write-downs; in “Restructure” regarding the costadiimpact of restructure plans; in “Stock-basedh@ensation” regarding future stock-based compensatbsts; in Liquidity anc
Capital Resources” regarding capital spending ir020plans to pay off certain debt, future distribans from IM Flash to Intel and future contribut®to joint ventures; and in
“Recently Issued Accounting Standards” regarding tmpact from the adoption of new accounting statisla The Company’s actual results could differenatly from the Compang’
historical results and those discussed in the fadalaoking statements. Factors that could causealatesults to differ materially include, but aretdimited to, those identified in
“ltem 1A. Risk Factors.” This discussion shouldrkad in conjunction with the Consolidated Finan@&gatements and accompanying notes for the yededeAugust 28, 2008. All
period references are to the Comp’s fiscal periods unless otherwise indicated. TloenPany’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-week periodieg on the Thursday closest to August
31. All tabular dollar amounts are in millions.ll Aroduction data reflects production of the Compand its consolidated joint ventures.

Overview

The Company is a global manufacturer of semicorafudgvices, principally semiconductor memory pradymcluding DRAM and NAND Flash) and CMOS imagasors. The
Company operates in two segments: Memory and Imgadits products are used in a broad range ofrelgic applications including personal computersrkstations, network serve
mobile phones and other consumer applications dofuFlash memory cards, USB storage devices adigfill cameras, MP3/4 players and in automotgliaations. The Company
markets its products through its internal salesepindependent sales representatives and distribptimarily to original equipment manufacturens aetailers located around the
world. The Company’s success is largely dependethe market acceptance of a diversified portfofisemiconductor memory products, efficient usition of the Company’s
manufacturing infrastructure, successful ongoingetisoment of advanced process technologies anda@meof sufficient return on research and develept investments.

In 2008 and 2007 the semiconductor memory indwestperienced a severe downturn due to a significaatsupply of products. Average selling pricesgigabit for the
Company’s DRAM products and NAND Flash product2@®8 were down approximately 50% and 65%, respalgtias compared to 2007 and down approximately 666685%,
respectively, as compared to 2006. As a resutiege market conditions, the Company and othercggrductor memory manufacturers have reported neggtbss margins and
substantial losses in recent periods. In 2008Cimapany reported a net loss $1.6 billion and n@rits competitors reported negative cash flowsnfraperations. In response to these
market conditions, on October 9, 2008 the Compampanced a plan to restructure its memory opersitidihe Company’s IM Flash joint venture with In@srporation will
discontinue production of 200mm wafer NAND flashmeey at Micron’s Boise facility. The NAND Flashqafuction shutdown will reduce IM Flash’s NAND flaptoduction by
approximately 35,000 200mm wafers per month. hitaxh, the Company and Intel agreed to suspeniihpand the ramp of NAND Flash production at INa§H’s Singapore wafer
fabrication plant. As part of the restructuririge Company plans to reduce its global workforcajmyroximately 15 percent during 2009 and 2010.h@asts for restructuring and
other related expenses incurred in connection thithrestructuring are anticipated to be approxalya$60 million, and the benefit to the Companyastt operating results for 2009 is
expected to exceed $175 million.

The effects of the worsening global economy andigtgening credit market are also making it insiegly difficult for semiconductor memory manufaets to obtain external
sources of financing to fund their operations.haligh the Company believes that it is better pmsitil than some of its peers, it faces challengd®icurrent and near term that req
it to continue to make significant improvementstincompetitiveness. Additionally, the Companypissuing financing alternatives, delaying capitgdenditures and implementing
further cost-cutting initiatives.

The Company is focused on improving its competitass by developing new products, advancing its@olgy and reducing costs. In addition, the Conygaoreased its
manufacturing capacity in 2008 and 2007 by ramPAMND Flash production at two 300mm wafer fabricatfacilities and converting another facility to 30 DRAM wafer
fabrication. To reduce costs, the Company impla@eterestructure initiatives aimed at reducing maotufring and overhead costs through outsourcitgcaon of operations and
workforce reductions.
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The Company makes significant ongoing investmenmtievelop proprietary product and process techiydlogt is implemented in its worldwide manufactgrfacilities and
through its joint ventures to enable the productbsemiconductor products with increasing funciidy and performance at lower costs. The Compgamerally reduces the
manufacturing cost of each generation of produciuhh advancements in product and process technelagh as its leading-edge line width process teldyy and innovative array
architecture. The Company continues to introduee generations of products that offer improved grenfince characteristics, such as higher data @arees, reduced package size,
lower power consumption and increased memory deasil megapixel count. To leverage its signifigamestments in research and development, the Coynipas formed strategic
joint ventures under which the costs of developirggmory product and process technologies are shétkdts joint venture partners. In addition, frdime to time, the Company h
also sold and/or licensed technology to third partiThe Company is pursuing further opportuntbeecover its investment in intellectual propetyough partnering and other
arrangements.

DRAM Joint Ventures with Nanya Technology Corporah (“Nanya”): In the third quarter of 2008, the Company and Ndoyaed MeiYa, a joint venture to manufacture s
DRAM and sell those products exclusively to the @amy and Nanya. As part of this transaction, tben@any transferred and licensed certain intellégitaperty related to the
manufacture of stack DRAM products to Nanya anenged certain intellectual property from Nanyae Tompany and Nanya also agreed to jointly devetopess technology and
designs to manufacture stack DRAM products witthgaarty bearing its own development costs untihsiroe that the development costs exceed a speécfi@unt, following which
such costs would be shared. The Company’s devednpoosts are expected to exceed Nanya's develdpmusts by a significant amount. Under this aresmgnt, the Company is to
receive an aggregate of $232 million from Nanya Biedly a through 2010 for licensing and technologynsfer fees, of which the Company realized $40ionilbf revenue in
2008. The Company will also receive royalties friiamya on the sale of stack DRAM products manufactiby or for Nanya.

On October 12, 2008, the Company announced thatlientered into an agreement to acquire Qimonda B&6% ownership stake in Inotera Memories, (flootera”), a
Taiwanese DRAM memory manufacturer, for $400 millio cash. The Company received commitments f86%gillion of term loans to fund this acquisitianpart. Inotera is
expected to implement the Company’s stack DRAM gssdechnology, and it is anticipated that the Gomgwill receive royalties on the sale of Inotena’sduction that is delivered
to Nanya, a 35.6% stakeholder in Inotera. The Gompvill eventually gain access to approximatelyo80 300mm DRAM wafers per month, 50% of Inote@iput. In connection
with this acquisition, the Company expects to einttr a series of agreements with Nanya to restredvleiYa. It is anticipated that both partieslwéase future resource commitme
to MeiYa and redirect those resources to Inotégee “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemeitata — Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemegdtsint Ventures — DRAM
Joint Ventures with Nanya Technology Corporation.”)

Aptina Imaging Business: The Company is exploring partnering arrangemeiitts outside parties regarding the separationso€MOS image sensor business, operating under
the name “Aptina,” to an independent entity in wwhibe Company would retain a significant minoritynership interest. To that end, the Company begenating its Imaging
business as a separate wholly-owned subsidianciob@r 2008. Under the arrangements being coregidére Company expects that it will continue tonnfacture CMOS image
sensors for some period of time.

Goodwill Impairment: In the second quarter of 2008, the Company rexbednoncash impairment charge of $463 milliorheogoodwill recorded in its Memory segment. (See
“Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Consodiddtinancial Statements — Supplemental Balancet $tfeemation — Goodwill.”)

Inventory Write-Downs: The Company’s results of operations for the fousdtond and first quarters of 2008 and the fountirtgr of 2007 included charges of $205 millior5 $1

million, $62 million and $20 million, respectivelg write down the carrying value of work in prosesd finished goods inventories of Memory prodistsh DRAM and NAND
Flash) to their estimated market values.
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Results of Operations

2008 2007 2006
(in millions and as a percent of net sa
Net sales
Memory $ 5,18¢ 83 % $ 5,001 88 % $ 4,52¢ 86 %
Imaging 658 11 % 687 12 % 74¢ 14 %
$ 5,841 10C % $ 5,68¢ 10C % $ 5,27: 10C %
Gross margit
Memory $ (247) B % $ 84t 17 % $ 87¢ 19 %
Imaging 18€ 28 % 238 34 % 322 43 %
$ (55) @M% $ 1,07¢ 18 % $ 1,20( 23 %
Selling, general and administrati $ 45¢& 8 % $ 61C 11 % $ 46C 9 %
Research and developme 68C 12 % 80t 14 % 65€ 12 %
Goodwill impairment 462 8 % -- - -- -
Restructure 33 1 % 19 0 % -- --
Other operating (income) expense, (92) 2 % (76) 1) % (26€) (5) %
Net income (loss (1,619 (28) % (320) (6) % 40¢ 8 %

The Company'’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-weekqgzkending on the Thursday closest to August 31.
Net Sales

Total net sales for 2008 increased 3% as compar2@@7 primarily due to a 4% increase in Memorgsaartially offset by a 5% decrease in ImagingsaMemory sales for
2008 reflect significant increases in gigabits guadtially offset by significant declines in peggbit average selling prices as compared to 2008mory sales were 89% of total net
sales for 2008, 88% for 2007 and 86% for 2006. gimasales for 2008 decreased 5% from 2007 prigneeflecting pricing pressure. Total net salesZ@@7 increased 8% as
compared to 2006 primarily due to an 11% increasdemory sales partially offset by an 8% declinénraging sales.

Memory: Memory sales for 2008 increased 4% from 2007 aril;mdue to a 55% increase in sales of NAND Flasiducts offset by a 15% decrease in sales of DRdducts.

Sales of NAND Flash products for 2008 increasethf&®07 primarily due to an increase of approxinya810% in gigabits sold as a result of productizeréases partially offset
by a decline of approximately 65% in average sglprices per gigabit. Gigabit production of NANIagh products increased approximately 350% for 2308ompared to 2007,
primarily due to the continued ramp of NAND Flasibgucts at the Company’s 300mm fabrication faeitand transitions to higher density, advanced g&grdevices. Sales of
NAND Flash products represented approximately 35% e Compan'’s total net sales for 2008 as compared to appratétp 25% for 2007 and approximately 5% for 200®e
Company expects that its gigabit production of NARRsh products will continue to increase in 20094t a slower rate than 2008.

Sales of DRAM products for 2008 decreased from 20@#arily due to a decline of approximately 50%airerage selling prices (which included the effecta $50 million charg
to revenue in the first quarter of 2007 as a rasfudt settlement agreement with a class of diraathmsers of certain DRAM products), mitigated hyirecrease in gigabits sold of
approximately 70%. Gigabit production of DRAM pumds increased approximately 70% for 2008, primatile to production efficiencies from improvemeintproduct and process
technologies, including TECH's conversion to 300mvafer fabrication. Sales of DDR2 and DDR3 DRAMe thompany’s highest volume products, were approbelp@0% of the
Company’s total net sales for 2008 and 2007 andoxppately 25% for 2006.
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Memory sales for 2007 increased 11% from 2006 pilyndue to a 287% increase in sales of NAND Flpsdducts offset by an 11% decrease in sales of DRdducts. Sales
NAND Flash products for 2007 increased from 200farily due to significant increases in gigabit ¢guation and the Compa’s acquisition of Lexar Media, Inc. (which occurried
the fourth quarter of 2006), partially offset b$&%6 decline in average selling prices per gigaBiigabit production of NAND Flash products incredseer 800% for 2007 as
compared to 2006, primarily due to the ramp of NARIBsh products at the CompasyB00mm fabrication facilities and transitions tghter density, advanced geometry devices.
of DRAM products for 2007 decreased from 2006 pritpaue to a 23% decline in average selling prigebich included the effects of a $50 million chartg revenue in the first
quarter of 2007 as a result of a settlement agreewi¢h a class of direct purchasers of certain DRgroducts), which was partially mitigated by a 18%rease in gigabits
sold. Gigabit production of DRAM products incred23% for 2007, primarily due to transitions toleg density, advanced geometry devices.

Imaging: Imaging sales for 2008 decreased 5% from 20Q%Wauily due to significant declines in average sellprices by product type partially offset by aftsini product mix
from products with 1-megapixel or lower resoluttorproducts with 3-megapixel or higher resolutiahjch had higher average selling prices per uimitaging sales were 11% of the
Company’s total net sales in 2008 as compared %6 fb?2 2007 and 14% for 2006. Imaging sales for208creased 8% from 2006 primarily due to declines/erage selling prices as
a result of industry softness in mobile handsetssahd pricing pressure. Declines in averagenggiiiices for 2007 were mitigated by increasedssalénigher resolution products.

Gross Margin

The Company’s overall gross margin percentage miegtifrom 19% for 2007 to negative 1% for 2008 prilpalue to a decrease in the gross margin pergerfar Memory as a
result of the significant declines in per gigabieeage selling prices. The Company’s overall groasgin percentage for 2007 declined to 19% frof 28r 2006 due to a decrease in
both the gross margin percentages for Memory aradjing products.

Memory: The Company’s gross margin percentage for Merpoogucts declined from 17% for 2007 to negativef6%®2008 primarily due to the significant decreaseaverage
selling prices and the shift in product mix to NANAash products (which had a significantly lowesgg margin than DRAM products in 2008), mitigatgda:bst reductions.

The Company'’s gross margins for Memory in 2008 wetkiced by a $205 million charge in the fourthrtgreof 2008 to writedown inventories to their estimated market valus
a result of the significant decreases in averali@grices for both DRAM and NAND Flash ProductBhe Company’s inventory write-downs of $15 mifliand $62 million in the
second and first quarters of 2008, respectively ndit significantly impact 2008 gross margins asllastantial portion of the writteshewn inventory was sold in 2008. Gross margin
2007 were reduced by a $20 million inventory wdtewn in the fourth quarter of 2007. In future pels the Company would record additional inventorigerdowns if estimated
average selling prices of products held in finisgedds and work in process inventories at a quartdrdate are below the manufacturing cost of thesgucts.

The Company’s gross margin for DRAM products fo@2@eclined from 2007, primarily due to the dececiasaverage selling prices per gigabit of apprataty 50% mitigated
by a reduction in costs per gigabit. The Comparhyeved cost reductions for DRAM products througimsitions to higher-density, advanced-geometrycdsv Cost reductions in
2008 for DRAM products were partially offset by tineentory write-downs. Excluding the inventoryiterdowns, the Company reduced its DRAM costs [igalgt by approximately
35% for 2008 as compared to 2007.

The Company’s gross margin for NAND Flash prodtict2008 declined from 2007 primarily due to themase in average selling prices per gigabit of@pmately 65%
mitigated by a reduction in costs per gigabit. tGeductions in 2008 primarily reflect lower manetizring costs and lower costs of NAND Flash prodymtrchased for sale under the
Company’s Lexar brand. The Company achieved matwiag cost reductions for NAND Flash productswmtrily through increased production of higher-dgngidvanced-geometry
devices at the Company’s 300mm fabrication faesiti NAND Flash costs for 2008 were also reduced tacovery of $70 million for price adjustments fAND Flash products
purchased from other suppliers in prior periodsst@eductions in 2008 for NAND Flash Products weadially offset by the inventory write-downs. dxding the inventory write-
downs and the effect of pricing adjustments froheosuppliers, the Company reduced its NAND Flasdtscper gigabit by approximately 65%. Sales oNDAFlash products include
sales from IM Flash to Intel at long-term negotigpeices approximating cost. IM Flash sales tellntere $1,037 million, $497 million and $114 nuhi for 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
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The Company’s gross margin percentage for Memawyyoets of 17% for 2007 declined from 19% for 20@@narily due to the shift in product mix from DRAptoducts to
NAND Flash products, which had a significantly lovgeoss margin than DRAM products in 2007. Thisligke in gross margin percentage was mitigatedhigyrovements in the gro
margin for 2007 on sales of both DRAM and NAND FRlasoducts as compared to 2006. The gross masgiDRAM products for 2007 improved from 2006, prihadue to a
reduction in costs per gigabit of approximately 25#rtially offset by a decline in average sellprces of approximately 25%. The Company achiesasd reductions for DRAM
products through transitions to production of desiatilizing the Company’s 78nm process technokgiEhe Company’s gross margin for NAND Flash patslifior 2007 improved
slightly from 2006 primarily due to a reductiondasts per gigabit of approximately 55%, partialifset by a decline in average selling prices ofragjmately 55%. Cost reductions in
2007 reflect lower manufacturing costs, lower ca$tslAND Flash products purchased for sale underGbmpany’s Lexar brand and shifts in product nitke Company achieved
manufacturing cost reductions for NAND Flash pradyrimarily through increased production of highensity, advanced-geometry devices at the Compa880mm fabrication
facilities.

In 2008, the Company’s TECH Semiconductor Singaptee Ltd. (“TECH”) joint venture accounted for appimately 12% of the Company’s total wafer prodoict TECH
primarily produced DDR and DDR2 products in 200802 and 2006. Since TECH utilizes the Companygsipct designs and process technology and has simanufacturing cost
structure, the gross margin on sales of TECH prisdaigproximates gross margins on sales of simitadtyrts manufactured by the Company’s wholly-owopedrations. (See “ltem 8.
Financial Statements — Notes to Consolidated FinhStatements — Joint Ventures — TECH Semicond®itegapore Pte. Ltd.”)

Imaging: The Company’s gross margin for Imaging declire@8% for 2008 from 34% for 2007 primarily due tectines in average selling prices mitigated by cedtictions
and a shift to higher resolution products, whichlired better gross margins. The Company’s grasgjim for Imaging declined to 34% for 2007 from 4836 of 2006 primarily due to
declines in average selling prices that were nti¢éigdoy cost reductions and shifts in product mikigher resolution products.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expeador 2008 decreased 25% from 2007 primarily ddewer legal costs as well as lower payroll c@std other expenses
driven by the Company’s restructure initiativesheTreduction of payroll costs in 2008 was primattilg result of a decrease in headcount. In 20@/Cbmpany recorded a $31 million
charge to SG&A as a result of the settlement diagerntitrust class action (direct purchaser) latss SG&A expenses for 2007 increased 33% frof63&rimarily due to higher
personnel costs and higher legal costs includieds81 million charge for settlement of the direstghaser lawsuits. Personnel costs in 2007 inecetem 2006 primarily due to
increased headcount resulting from the acquisitfdrexar in the fourth quarter of 2006, the forratof IM Flash in the second quarter of 2006 arlssequent ramp of its operations,
and the consolidation of TECH in the third quad£2006. Future SG&A expense is expected to vastentially significantly, depending on, among ottieéngs, the number of legal
matters that are resolved relatively early in ti@rcycle and the number of matters that progtedsial. For the Compang’Memory segment, SG&A expenses as a percentaspe:
were 7% in 2008, 11% in 2007 and 8% in 2006. Rerllnaging segment, SG&A expenses as a percentagdes were 11% in 2008, 11% in 2007 and 12% 0620

Research and Development

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses vary guilgnwith the number of development wafers proeesshe cost of advanced equipment dedicated topnesuct and
process development, and personnel costs. Beoéttse lead times necessary to manufacture itsymtsgdthe Company typically begins to process vedbefore completion of
performance and reliability testing. The Compasagmds development of a product complete once thduptdas been thoroughly reviewed and tested fidopeance and
reliability. R&D expenses can vary significantlgpending on the timing of product qualificationcasts incurred in production prior to qualificatiare charged to R&D.

R&D expenses for 2008 decreased 16% from 2007 pitinthue to decreases in development wafers preceand lower payroll costs driven by the Compang&ructure
initiatives. R&D expenses for 2007 increased 288mf2006 primarily due to NAND pre-production wafgocessing mitigated by reimbursements receivem fintel under a NAND
Flash R&D cost-sharing arrangement. R&D expensae weduced by $148 million in 2008, $240 millior2007 and $86 million in 2006 for amounts reimibie from Intel under
the NAND Flash R&D cost-sharing arrangement. RerMemory segment, R&D expenses as a percentaggdasf were 10% for 2008, 13% for 2007 and 13% ®062 For the
Imaging segment, R&D expenses as a percentagéesfware 22% for 2008, 23% for 2007 and 11% for6200
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The Company'’s process technology R&D efforts aoei$ed primarily on development of successively Bnéhe-width process technologies which are desigto facilitate the
Company’s transition to next-generation memory potsland CMOS image sensors. Additional procedmtdogy R&D efforts focus on advanced computing arobile memory
architectures and new manufacturing materials d&ribdesign and development efforts are concenti@iehe Company’s 1 Gb and 2 Gb DDR2 and DDR3ymtzdas well as high
density and mobile NAND Flash memory (including Mt&zhnology), specialty memory products, memoryesys and CMOS image sensors.

Goodwill Impairment

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company perfdrameassessment of impairment for goodwill. Infiret and second quarters of 2008, the Compangmapced a sustained,
significant decline in its stock price. As a reésaflthe decline in stock price, the Companyiarket capitalization fell significantly belowetirecorded value of its consolidated net as
for most of the second quarter of 2008. The redumarket capitalization reflected, in part, the Meynsegment’s lower average selling prices and eegecontinued weakness in
pricing for the Company’s Memory products.

Based on the results of the Company’s assessmeuboifvill for impairment, it was determined thag tterrying value of the Memory segment exceedessiisnated fair
value. Therefore, the Company performed the sestapmlof the impairment test to determine the ietpfair value of goodwill. Specifically, the Conmyaallocated the estimated fair
value of the Memory segment as determined in tise $tep to recognized and unrecognized net asselisding allocations to intangible assets sucmtedlectual property, customer
relationships and brand and trade names. Thet@fsthle analysis indicated that there would beemaining implied value attributable to goodwilltire Memory segment and
accordingly, the Company wrote off all $463 milliohgoodwill associated with its Memory segmenb&Eebruary 28, 2008. The Compasgssessment of goodwill for impairmer
the second and fourth quarters of 2008 indicatetlttie fair value of the Imaging segment exceetiechirrying value and therefore goodwill in thersegt was not impaired. (See
“Item 8. Financial Statements — Notes to Consodéiddtinancial Statements — Supplemental Balancet $tfeemation — Goodwill.”)

Restructure

In an effort to increase its competitiveness affidieficy, in the fourth quarter of 2007, the Compéegan pursuing a number of initiatives to redemsts across its
operations. These initiatives included workforeductions in certain areas of the Company as #8bas was realigned. Additional initiatives ird#d establishing certain operations
closer in location to the Company’s global custaraerd evaluating functions more efficiently perfedrthrough partnerships or other outside relatisshin 2008, the Company
recorded charges of $33 million, primarily withts Memory segment, for employee severance ancetetatsts, relocation and retention bonuses andte-gawn of certain facilities t
their fair values. Since the restructure initiewvere initiated in the fourth quarter of 200% @ompany has incurred $52 million of restructosts.

On October 9, 2008 the Company announced a pleestaucture its Memory operations. The Company$-lash joint venture with Intel Corporation wilistontinue production
of 200mm wafer NAND flash memory at Micron’s Boiseility. The NAND Flash production shutdown wigduce IM Flash’s NAND flash production by approziely 35,000
200mm wafers per month. In addition, the Compary latel agreed to suspend tooling and the rangraduction at IM Flash’s Singapore wafer fabricatiant. As part of the
restructuring, the Company plans to reduce itsalalwrkforce by approximately 15 percent during 2@dd 2010. Cash costs for restructuring and atiated expenses incurred in
connection with this restructuring are anticipatete approximately $60 million, and the benefitte Company’s cash operating results for 200%peeted to exceed $175 million.

Other Operating (Income) Expense, Net

Other operating (income) for 2008 included gain$&6 million for disposals of semiconductor equiptnend $38 million for receipts from the U.S. gaveent in connection with
anti-dumping tariffs. Other operating expense2fah8 included losses of $25 million from changestirrency exchange rates. Other operating (inyéon€007 included gains of
$43 million from disposals of semiconductor equiptn&30 million from the sale of certain intelleatyproperty to Toshiba Corporation and $7 milliargrants received in connection
with the Company’s operations in China. Other afirg expense for 2007 included losses of $14 aniffrom changes in currency exchange rates. @ihenating (income) for 2006
included $230 million of net proceeds for the s#léhe Company’s existing NAND Flash memory designd certain related technology to Intel, net obants paid by the Company
for a perpetual, paid-up license to use and malifsh designs. Other operating (income) for 2086 aicluded $23 million in additional amounts expeldo be reimbursed resulting
from the extension of an economic development agea¢, which allows the Company to recover amougltging to certain investments in IM Flash.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes for 2008, 2007 and 2006 primarilyectftaxes on the Company’s non-U.S. operationd a8dalternative minimum tax. The Company haslaat&n allowance for
its net deferred tax asset associated with its &p8rations. The benefit for taxes on U.S. openatin 2008, 2007 and 2006 was substantially offgethanges in the valuation
allowance. As of August 28, 2008, the Company &ggregate U.S. tax net operating loss carryforwaf@®.7 billion and unused U.S. tax credit carryfards of $205 million. The
Company also had unused state tax net operatisgéosyforwards of $1.8 billion and unused statectedits of $189 million as of August 28, 2008ubStantially all of the net
operating loss carryforwards expire in 2022 to 2888 substantially all of the tax credit carryfordsaexpire in 2013 to 2028. Due to certain forestatutes of limitations, which
expired on December 31, 2007, the Company recodripproximately $15 million of previously unrecorgl tax benefits in the second quarter of 2008.

Noncontrolling Interests in Net (Income) Loss

Noncontrolling interests for 2008, 2007 and 200éprily reflects the share of income or losseshef €Company’s TECH joint venture attributable to tieecontrolling interests in
TECH. On March 30, 2007, the Company acquiredfaie shares of TECH common stock held by the &nge Economic Development Board, which had thecefif reducing the
noncontrolling interests in TECH as of that damfr57% to 27%. (See “Item 8. Financial StatemantsSupplementary Data — Notes to ConsolidatechEiabStatements — Joint
Ventures — TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd.”)

Stock-Based Compensation

Total compensation cost for the Company’s equignglin 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $48 million, $44ioniland $26 million, respectively. As of Augusi, 2008, August 30,
2007 and August 31, 2006, $3 million, $3 milliorde®l million of stock-based compensation expenseaagitalized and remained in inventory. As of Astg28, 2008, $107 million
of total unrecognized compensation cost relatetbtevested awards was expected to be recognizedghithe fourth quarter of 2012. In 2005, the Camypaccelerated the vesting of
substantially all of its unvested stock optionstbetstanding which reduced stock compensationgrézed in subsequent periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of August 28, 2008, the Company had cash anivalgunts and short-term investments totaling $1llibb compared to $2.6 billion as of August 30,020 The balance as of
August 28, 2008, included an aggregate of $508anileld at the Company’s IM Flash and TECH joientures. The Company'’s ability to access fundd hgljoint ventures to
finance the Company’s other operations is subfeagreement by the joint venture partners.

The Company'’s liquidity is highly dependent on ag selling prices for its products and the timofhgapital expenditures, both of which can varyngigantly from period to
period. Depending on conditions in the semicongluctemory market, the Company'’s cash flows fromratiens and current holdings of cash and investeeraty not be adequate to
meet the Company’s current and long-term needsdpital expenditures and operations. Historicalig, Company has used external financing to fuedemeeds. Due to conditions
in the credit markets, some financing instrumeseddby the Company in the past are currently naitae to the Company. As a result, the Comparpursuing financing
alternatives, delaying capital expenditures andemgenting further cost-cutting initiatives. Ther@oany has the ability and intent to significantyluce capital expenditures and limit
contributions to joint venture partners if neceggarmeet its operating obligations.

Operating Activities: The Company generated $1.0 billion of cash frararating activities in 2008, which primarily reftedche Company $1.6 billion of net loss adjusted by ¢
billion for noncash depreciation and amortizati@pense and a $463 million noncash goodwill impaitraharge.
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Investing Activities: Net cash used by investing activities was $2lbbiin 2008, which included cash expendituresgosperty, plant and equipment of $2.5 billion gty
offset by the net effect of purchases, sales artdnitias of marketable investment securities of&28llion and $187 million in proceeds from saléequipment. A significant portion
of the capital expenditures relate to the rampgvbflash facilities and 300mm conversion of manufeiog operations at TECH. The Company believestthdevelop new product a
process technologies, support future growth, aeh@merating efficiencies and maintain product duaii must continue to invest in manufacturinghealogies, facilities and capital
equipment and research and development. The Congaects 2009 capital spending to approximate Billion to $1.3 billion. As of August 28, 2008)¢ Company had
commitments of approximately $300 million for thegaisition of property, plant and equipment, neathof which are expected to be paid within onarye

Financing Activities: Net cash provided by financing activities was%dllion in 2008, which primarily reflects $837 iion in proceeds from borrowings and $268 million
cash contributions received (net of distributioaglp from joint venture partners partially offsgt $98 million in debt payments and $387 milliorpiyments on equipment purchase
contracts.

During the second quarter of 2008, the Company'€HHiEubsidiary borrowed $240 million against a aréattility at Singapore Interbank Offered Rate BOR") plus 2.5%. On
March 31, 2008, TECH entered into a new creditlitganabling it to borrow up to $600 million atBBDR plus 2.5%. The facility is available for drasveh through December 31,
2008. During 2008, TECH drew $600 million undez trew credit facility and retired the previous dréatility by paying off the $240 million outstaimd). The new credit facility is
collateralized by substantially all of the assdt$BCH (approximately $1,741 million as of Augu&, 2008) and contains covenants that, among offyelirements, establish certain
liquidity, debt service coverage and leverage satimd restrict TECH's ability to incur indebtedsiesreate liens and acquire or dispose of asetgments under the new facility are
due in approximately equal installments over 13rgus commencing in May 2009. Beginning March 200BCH will be required to maintain $30 millioniiestricted cash and this
restricted cash requirement will increase to $6lianiin September 2009. The Company has guardrapproximately 73% of the outstanding amount efftttility, with the
Company’s obligation increasing to 100% of the tartding amount of the facility upon the occurrenteertain conditions. As a condition to grantthg guarantee, the Company has
a second position priority interest in all of thesets of TECH behind the lenders. (See “ltem Bargial Statements — Notes to Consolidated Fine8tiements — Supplemental
Balance Sheet Information — Debt.”)

As of August 28, 2008, the Company had notes payai$108 million, denominated in Japanese yer wiaa subject to customary covenants, includingdtie of debt to
equity. As a result of financing that the Companpursuing for its acquisition of a 35.6% intenesinotera, the Company may prepay all of thistdelthe first quarter of 2009 to
avoid potential violations of these covenants.

Joint Ventures: As of August 28, 2008, IM Flash had $393 millimficash and marketable investment securities. IHplans to make distributions of approximatel2
million to Intel through the end of 2009. Timin§these distributions and any future contributidmsyever, is subject to market conditions and aygdrof the partners. The Company
anticipates additional investments as appropr@a&ipport the growth of IM Flash's operations.

As of August 28, 2008, TECH had $115 million ofltand marketable investment securities. The Cognpapects to make additional capital contributitmh§ECH in 2009. Th
timing and amount of these contributions is subjecharket conditions and partner participation.

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company entengdl & joint venture arrangement with Nanya. UrtHerarrangement,
the Company transferred and licensed certain @ttlll property related to the manufacture of si2RIAM products to Nanya and licensed certain iettlial property from Nanya. (
October 12, 2008, the Company announced that iehgted into an agreement to acquire Qimondas/A85:6% ownership stake in Inotera, a Taiwanese MRAemory manufacture
for $400 million in cash. The Company received oatments of $285 million of term loans to fund thisquisition in part. In connection with this aisition, the Company expects to
enter into a series of agreements with Nanya (@%85takeholder in Inotera) to restructure the Mgdfiat venture between the Company and Nanyas dnticipated that both parties
will cease future resource commitments to MeiYa @ettirect those resources to Inotera. The CompadyNanya each contributed $84 million in cash &Y in 2008. (Seeltem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Not€snsolidated Financial Statements — Joint fessts- DRAM Joint Ventures with Nanya Technology fi2wation.”)
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Contractual Obligations: The following table summarizes the Company’s ificemnt contractual obligations at August 28, 2088 the effect such obligations are expected to
have on the Company’s liquidity and cash flowsutufe periods.

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
(in millions)
Notes payabl&’ $ 229¢ $ 15¢  $ 614 $ 20z $ 1,32t
Capital lease obligatiort¥ 767 215 40¢ 62 81
Operating lease 94 18 28 22 26
Purchase obligatior 69t 511 147 10 27
Other lon-term liabilities 33¢ -- 20E 34 99
Total $ 4,190 $ 90z $ 1,400 $ 33C $ 1,55¢

D ncludes interest

The obligations disclosed above do not include remttial obligations recorded on the Company'’s liaasheet as current liabilities except for theentrportion of long-term
debt. The expected timing of payment amounts ebtbligations discussed above is estimated basedroent information. Timing and actual amount&lpaay differ depending on
the timing of receipt of goods or services, magkétes or changes to agreed-upon amounts for sbiigatons.

Purchase obligations include all commitments ta@pase goods or services of either a fixed or mininguantity that meet any of the following criter{a) they are noncancelable,
(2) the Company would incur a penalty if the agreehwas cancelled, or (3) the Company must makeifsggeminimum payments even if it does not takbwéey of the contracted
products or services (“take-or-pay”). If the ollign to purchase goods or services is noncaneglti# entire value of the contract was includetthéabove table. If the obligation is
cancelable, but the Company would incur a penéltgricelled, the dollar amount of the penalty wetduided as a purchase obligation. Contracted mimramounts specified in take-
or-pay contracts are also included in the abovke abthey represent the portion of each conthrettis a firm commitment.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In May 2007, in connection with the offering of tBenior Notes, the Company paid approximately $tBlion for three Capped Call transactions (the §ped Calls”). The
Capped Calls cover an aggregate of approximately @illion shares of common stock. The CappedsCak in three equal tranches with cap prices 8251 $20.13 and $23.00 per
share, respectively, each with an initial strike@iof approximately $14.23 per share, subjecettain adjustments. The Capped Calls expire oiowsidates between November 2011
and December 2012. (See “ltem 8. Financial Statésrend Supplementary Data — Notes to Consolidgiteehcial Statements — Supplemental Balance Shéehiation — Capped
Call Transactions.”)

In 2001, the Company received $480 million from ig®iance of warrants to purchase 29.1 millioneshaf the Company’s common stock. The warranifieghthe holders to
exercise their warrants and purchase shares of consiock for $56.00 per share at any time througly W6, 2008. All of the warrants expired unexerdisn May 15, 2008.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBoéFASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) NAPB 14-1, “Accounting for Convertible Debt Instrents That May Be
Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Pa@iash Settlement).” FSP No. APB 14-1 requiresiisaters of convertible debt instruments that magditied in cash upon
conversion separately account for the liability agdity components in a manner that will refleet émtity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate asiiest cost is recognized in
subsequent periods. The Company is required tptde®P No. APB 14-1 at the beginning of 2010. @opdion, the Company will retrospectively accowntifs $1.3 billion of
1.875% convertible senior notes issued in May @720nder the provisions of FSP No. APB 14-1. Based preliminary analysis, the Company estimatasdebt recognized on
issuance of the $1.3 billion convertible senioresoivould be approximately $400 million lower un8&P No. APB 14-1. The difference of approxima®0 million would be
accreted to interest expense over the approxineansyear term of the notes. A significant portddithe interest expense would be deferred asaleggitl interest costs in accordance
with the Company'’s regular accounting policies aiilimpact results of operations as the assets
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that include the capitalized interest are deprediaiThe Company is continuing to evaluate theifafiact that the adoption of FSP No. APB 14-1 Wwéle on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement offeinhAccounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141 (red907), “Business Combinatiohg“SFAS No. 141(R)"), which
establishes the principles and requirements for &wacquirer in a business combination (1) recagn@and measures in its financial statements theifiddle assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling inteséss the acquiree, (2) recognizes and measuregathewill acquired in the business combination gaan from a bargain purchase,
(3) determines what information to disclose. ThenPany is required to adopt SFAS No. 141(R) eféectit the beginning of 2010. The impact of theptido of SFAS No. 141(R)
will depend on the nature and extent of businessbiations occurring on or after the beginning @1@.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat8ments — an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS 0.réquires that
(1) noncontrolling interests be reported as a sgpatomponent of equity, (2) net income attribwgdblthe parent and to the non-controlling intebesseparately identified in the
income statement, (3) changes in a parent’s owirensterest while the parent retains its contrglinterest be accounted for as equity transactims,(4) any retained noncontrolling
equity investment upon the deconsolidation of ssglilry be initially measured at fair value. Thentpany is required to adopt SFAS No. 160 effectivihe beginning of 2010. The
Company is evaluating the impact that the adopifo®FAS No. 160 will have on its financial statertgen

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“Fhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finaldabilities — Including an amendment of FASBa&ment No.
115.” Under SFAS No. 159, the Company may eleat¢asure many financial instruments and certaiaratams at fair value on an instrument by instrotiEsis, subject to certain
restrictions. The Company is required to adopt SR®. 159 effective at the beginning of 2009. Tenpany did not elect to measure any existing itetiair value on the adoption
of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155 Walue Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 definesvialue, establishes a framework for measuringviaine in generally
accepted accounting principles and expands dis@esabout fair value measurements. SFAS No. 1pliespunder other accounting pronouncements tloatine or permit fair value
measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issu@dNesS FAS 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement N67 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accourfirghouncements
That Address Fair Value Measurements for PurpoSksase Classification or Measurement under Statédi®” which amends SFAS No. 157 to exclude actingrpronouncements
that address fair value measurements for purpddease classification or measurement under SFASLIRo In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP N& EB7-2, Effective Date o
FASB Statement No. 157,” which delays the effectia¢ée of SFAS No. 157 until the beginning of 20a04ll non-financial assets and non-financial ligies, except for items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis (at least diyjudn October 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. A&3-3, “Determining the Fair
Value of a Financial Asset when the Market for TAaset Is Not Active,” which clarifies the applizat of SFAS No. 157 for financial assets in a matkat is not active. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 157 for fai@nassets and liabilities effective at the begigrof 2009. The Company does not expect thaattogtion in 2009 of SFAS No.
157 for financial assets and financial liabilitiedl have a significant impact on its financial ®ments. The Company is evaluating the impactttreaadoption in 2010 of SFAS No.
157 for non-financial assets and non-financialilités will have on its financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No(“BBN 48"), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Incom&axes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No.”L&3N 48 contains a
two-step approach to recognizing and measuringrtaingax positions accounted for in accordancé BEAS No. 109. The first step is to evaluatetéxeposition for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidenceigades it is more likely than not that the positieitl be sustained on audit, including resolutidnelated appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to medsatax benefit as the largest amount which is rtitae 50% likely of being realized upon ultimatetlsetent. The Company adopted
FIN 48 on August 31, 2007. The adoption of FINH® not have a significant impact on the Compamg&uilts of operations or financial position. Thengany did not change its
policy of recognizing accrued interest and pensitédated to unrecognized tax benefits within tfemime tax provision with the adoption of FIN 4&eé “Item 8. Financial Statements
— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — Iec®axes.”)

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155ctAmting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrument$SFAS No. 155 permits fair value remeasurementrigrteybrid financie

instrument that contains an embedded derivativedterwise would require bifurcation. The Compauppted SFAS No. 155 as of the beginning of 20008 adoption of SFAS No.
155 did not have a significant impact on the Comgfsresults of operations or financial condition.
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and reldisdosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP requireanagement to make estimates and judgments tleat #f reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expeaseéselated disclosures. Estimates and judgmeatsased on historical experience, forecasteddiguents and various other
assumptions that the Company believes to be rebkpnader the circumstances. Estimates and judggnmeay vary under different assumptions or conadgtioThe Company evalual
its estimates and judgments on an ongoing basenalfement believes the accounting policies belevewdtical in the portrayal of the Company’s finalcondition and results of
operations and requires management’s most diffisulbjective or complex judgments.

Acquisitions and consolidations: Determination and the allocation of the purchasee of acquired operations significantly influesche period in which costs are
recognized. Accounting for acquisitions and coiastions requires the Company to estimate thevedire of the individual assets and liabilities doegh as well as various forms of
consideration given, which involves a number ofjjoréints, assumptions and estimates that could ralyeaffect the amount and timing of costs recogdiz The Company typically
obtains independent third party valuation studéeassist in determining fair values, including stssice in determining future cash flows, appropriiscount rates and comparable
market values.

Contingencies: The Company is subject to the possibility of é&ssfrom various contingencies. Considerable juddrisenecessary to estimate the probability anduarnof any
loss from such contingencies. An accrual is maldenait is probable that a liability has been inedror an asset has been impaired and the amologsofan be reasonably
estimated. The Company accrues a liability andgdsoperations for the estimated costs of adjtiditar settlement of asserted and unasserted €lexisting as of the balance sheet
date.

Goodwill and intangible assets:In the second quarter of 2008, the Company recbedgoodwill impairment charge of $463 millionheTCompany tests goodwill for impairment
annually and whenever events or circumstances ihakere likely than not that an impairment may haceurred, such as a significant adverse chantgeibusiness climate
(including declines in selling prices for produats)a decision to sell or dispose of a reportinig. uBoodwill is tested for impairment using a twtep process. In the first step, the fair
value of each reporting unit is compared to theyiag value of the net assets assigned to the Uinihe fair value of the reporting unit exceetisdarrying value, goodwill is considel
not impaired. If the carrying value of the repogtiunit exceeds its fair value, then the secorul st¢he impairment test must be performed in otdefetermine the implied fair value
of the reporting unit's goodwill. Determining tiaplied fair value of goodwill requires valuatiofi @l of the Company’s tangible and intangible ass®l liabilities. If the carrying
value of a reporting unit's goodwill exceeds itgpiied fair value, then the Company would recordrapairment loss equal to the difference.

Determining when to test for impairment, the Comysneporting units, the fair value of a reportimgit and the fair value of assets and liabilitieghim a reporting unit, requires
judgment and involves the use of significant estem@and assumptions. These estimates and assusjpiitude revenue growth rates and operating msugged to calculate project
future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount ratesjrieconomic and market conditions and deternunaif appropriate market comparables. The Compasgs fair value estimates on
assumptions it believes to be reasonable but thatrgpredictable and inherently uncertain. Acfutire results may differ from those estimatesadadition, judgments and
assumptions are required to allocate assets dbilitiés to reporting units.

The Company tests other identified intangible asaéth definite useful lives and subject to amatian when events and circumstances indicate thiog value may not be
recoverable by comparing the carrying amount tcstive of undiscounted cash flows expected to berg&steby the asset. The Company tests intangdisieta with indefinite lives
annually for impairment using a fair value methadtsas discounted cash flows. Estimating fair @slinvolves significant assumptions, especiallyarding future sales prices, sales
volumes, costs and discount rates.

Income taxes: The Company is required to estimate its provis@mrincome taxes and amounts ultimately payablecoverable in numerous tax jurisdictions aroure t
world. Estimates involve interpretations of regiadlas and are inherently complex. Resolution abime tax treatments in individual jurisdictions nret be known for many years
after completion of any fiscal year. The Compaglso required to evaluate the realizability sfdéferred tax assets on an ongoing basis in emecedvith U.S. GAAP, which
requires the assessment of the Company’s perforenamt other relevant factors when determining geslrfor a valuation allowance with respect to trieferred tax
assets. Realization of deferred tax assets isndiepe on the Company'’s ability to generate futaseble income. The Company adopted FIN 48 effeaivthe beginning of 2008.
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Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average @omarket value and in 2008 the Company recoaggglegate charges of $282 million to write dowa dhrrying
value of inventories of memory products to thetireated market values. Cost includes labor, maltend overhead costs, including product and psotzhnology costs. Determini
market value of inventories involves numerous judgts, including projecting average selling priced sales volumes for future periods and costs meptete products in work in
process inventories. To project average sellimceprand sales volumes, the Company reviews reades volumes, existing customer orders, curremtract prices, industry analysis
of supply and demand, seasonal factors, generabetic trends and other information. When thesédyara reflect estimated market values below the fzomw's manufacturing costs,
the Company records a charge to cost of goodsisa@ldvance of when the inventory is actually sdhifferences in forecasted average selling pricgsiun calculating lower of cost
market adjustments can result in significant changehe estimated net realizable value of pro@uantories and accordingly the amount of write-dawcorded. For example, a 5%
variance in the estimated selling prices would hehanged the estimated market value of the Compagrhiconductor memory inventory by approximatél fillion at August 28,
2008. Due to the volatile nature of the semicotatumemory industry, actual selling prices and wods often vary significantly from projected prieasl volumes and, as a result, the
timing of when product costs are charged to opamatcan vary significantly.

U.S. GAAP provides for products to be grouped tategories in order to compare costs to marketegalThe amount of any inventory write-down cary\sgnificantly
depending on the determination of inventory catiegorThe Company'’s inventories have been categhas Memory products or Imaging products. Thenwjaracteristics the
Company considers in determining inventory catexgoare product type and markets.

Product and process technologyCosts incurred to acquire product and processitdogy or to patent technology developed by thm@any are capitalized and amortized on a
straight-line basis over periods currently rangipgo 10 years. The Company capitalizes a podfaosts incurred based on its analysis of hisaband projected patents issued as a
percent of patents filed. Capitalized product pratess technology costs are amortized over theeshaf (i) the estimated useful life of the teclogy, (ii) the patent term or (iii) the
term of the technology agreement.

Property, plant and equipment:The Company reviews the carrying value of propgiant and equipment for impairment when events@rcumstances indicate that the carn
value of an asset or group of assets may not loweeable from the estimated future cash flows etqubto result from its use and/or disposition.céises where undiscounted expected
future cash flows are less than the carrying vadnempairment loss is recognized equal to the arloy which the carrying value exceeds the estithtde value of the assets. The
estimation of future cash flows involves numerossumptions which require judgment by the Compamgtuding, but not limited to, future use of theetsfor Company operations
versus sale or disposal of the assets, futurenggiliices for the Company’s products and futurepetion and sales volumes. In addition, judgmsmequired by the Company in
determining the groups of assets for which impaitests are separately performed.

Research and developmentCosts related to the conceptual formulation aeglgh of products and processes are expensedeasalesind development when
incurred. Determining when product developmerbisiplete requires judgment by the Company. The 2oy deems development of a product complete drecproduct has been
thoroughly reviewed and tested for performanceratfidbility.

Stock-based compensationUnder the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), stockdzthcompensation cost is estimated at the graatdaed on the fair-value of the award and is
recognized as expense ratably over the requisitéceeperiod of the award. For stock based comgtiors awards with graded vesting that were graaftst 2005, the Company
recognizes compensation expense using the strisgh@mortization method. For performance-basedksawards, the expense recognized is dependehegrobability of the
performance measure being achieved. The Compdizgsiforecasts of future performance to assessetiprobabilities and this assessment requiresdesable judgment.

Determining the appropriate fair-value model aniddating the fair value of stock-based awardsatgrant date requires considerable judgment, direfestimating stock price
volatility, expected option life and forfeiture est The Company develops its estimates basedstoribal data and market information which can deasignificantly over time. A
small change in the estimates used can resultétatively large change in the estimated valuatibhe Company uses the Black-Scholes option valnatiodel to value employee
stock awards. The Company estimates stock prililty based on an average of its historical vilitg and the implied volatility derived from trad options on the Company’s stock.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
Interest Rate Risk

As of August 28, 2008, $2,063 million of the Compar$2,726 million of debt was at fixed interestest As a result, the fair value of the debt fhatés based on changes in
market interest rates. The estimated fair marktesof the Company’s debt was $2,167 million a@dt$1 million as of August 28, 2008 and AugustBI)7, respectively. The
Company estimates that as of August 28, 2008, adéfease in market interest rates would changfathealue of the fixed-rate debt by approximat®#6 million. An increase in
interest rates of 1% would increase annual intengsénse on the Company’s variable-rate debt Asigfist 28, 2008 by approximately $7 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The information in this section should be readanjanction with the information related to changethe exchange rates of foreign currency in “Itefn Risk Factors.” Changes
in foreign currency exchange rates could materedlyersely affect the Company'’s results of openatior financial condition.

The functional currency for substantially all oét@ompany’s operations is the U.S. dollar. The gamy held aggregate cash and other assets intfioraigencies valued at U.S.
$425 million as of August 28, 2008 and U.S. $448ioni as of August 30, 2007. The Company also &ggregate foreign currency liabilities valued & U580 million as of August
28, 2008 and U.S. $979 million as of August 30,7208ignificant components of the Company’s asaetsliabilities denominated in foreign currenciesrevas follows (in U.S. dollar
equivalents):

2008 2007
Singapore Singapore
Dollars Yen Euro Dollars Yen Euro
Cash and equivalen $ 84 $ 13¢ % 25 % 58 $ 18C $ 11
Net deferred tax asse -- 85 2 -- 76 2
Accounts payable and accrued expel (20%) (127) (61) (11€) (16€) (237)
Debt (49) (10¢€) (@) (25¢€) (165) 5)

The Company estimates that, based on its asseimabilities denominated in currencies other thiaa t).S. dollar as of August 28, 2008, a 1% chandkd exchange rate versus
the U.S. dollar would result in foreign currencyrgeor losses of approximately U.S. $1 million foe euro and the yen.
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions except per share amounts)

August 28, August 30, August 31,

For the year ended 2008 2007 2006
Net sales $ 5841 $ 5,68¢ 5,27:
Costof goods solc 5,89¢ 4,61( 4,072

Gross margit (55) 1,07¢ 1,20(
Selling, general and administrati 45E 61C 46C
Research and developme 68C 80t 65€
Goodwill impairment 462 -- -
Restructure 33 19 --
Other operating (income) expense, net (92) (76) (26€)

Operating income (los: (1,595 (280) 35C
Interest incomt 79 14z 101
Interest expens (82 (40 (25)
Other nor-operating income (expense), | (13) 9 7

Income (loss) before taxes and noncontrolling exes (1,619 (16¢) 432
Income tax (provision (18) (30 (18)
Noncontrolling interests in net (income) Ic 10 (122) (7)
Net income (loss $ (1,619 $ (320) 40¢
Earnings (loss) per shai

Basic $ (210 $ (0.42) 0.5¢

Diluted (2.10 (0.42) 0.57
Number of shares used in per share calculat

Basic 772.5 769.1 691.7

Diluted 772.5 769.1 725.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanatéistents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions except par value amounts)

August 28, August 30,
As of 2008 2007
Assets
Cash and equivalen $ 1,24 $ 2,192
Shor-term investment 11¢ 424
Receivable: 1,03z 994
Inventories 1,291 1,537
Other current asse 94 92
Total current asse 3,77¢ 5,23¢
Intangible assets, n 364 401
Property, plant and equipment, | 8,811 8,27¢
Goodwill 58 51¢
Other assets 41€ 38¢
Total asset $ 13,43( $ 14,81¢
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 1,111 $ 1,38¢
Deferred incomi 114 84
Equipment purchase contra 98 134
Current portion of lon-term debt 27¢% 427
Total current liabilities 1,59¢ 2,02¢
Long-term debr 2,451 1,987
Other liabilities 33¢ 44€
Total liabilities 4,387 4,45¢
Commitments and contingenci
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiari 2,86t 2,607
Common stock, $0.10 par value, authorized 3 bilfibares, issued and outstanding 761.1 million &Td97million shares
respectively 7€ 7€
Additional capital 6,56¢€ 6,51¢
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (45€) 1,164
Accumulated other comprehensive (lo (8) (7)
Total shareholde’ equity 6,17¢ 7,752
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 13,43( $ 14,81¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagistents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

(in millions)
Accumulated
Common Stock Other Total
Number Additional Retained Comprehensive Shareholder¢
of Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity
Balance at September 1, 20C 616.2 $ 62 $ 4707 $ 1,07¢  $ - 3 5,847
Comprehensive income (los:
Net income 40¢ 40¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
investments, net of tax ) 2
Total comprehensive income (lo: 40€
Stock issued under stock ple 11.¢ 1 114 11F
Stocl-based compensation expel 26 26
Conversion of notes to stock, net of unamorti
issuance cos' 53.7 5 61¢€ 622
Stock and stock options issued in connection
the acquisition of Lexe 50.7 5 87¢ 882
Premium recognized on convertible debt assu
in Lexar acquisitior 43 43
Settlement of capped ca 171 171
Stock issued in connection with Intel stock rig 16.¢ 2 (2) --
Balance at August 31, 200 749..  $ %58 6,55 $ 148t $ 2 $ 8,11«
Net loss (320 (320
Stock issued under stock ple 8.7 1 73 74
Stocl-based compensation expel 44 44
Repurchase and retirement of common s (0.2 ) ) 4)
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net
tax benefit of $: (5) (5)
Purchase of capped ca (157) (152)
Balance at August 30, 200 757¢ % 76 $ 6,51¢ $ 1,16¢ $ 7 $ 7,752
Comprehensive income (los:
Net loss (1,619 (2,619
Other comprehensive income (los
Net change in unrealized gain (loss)
investments, net of tax Q) 1)
Total comprehensive income (lo: (1,620
Stock issued under stock ple 3.7 3 3
Stoclk-based compensation expel 48 48
Adoption of FIN 48 0] (0]
Repurchase and retirement of common s (0.5) (4) (4)
Balance at August 28, 200 7611 $ 7€ $ 6,56 $ (456) $ B8 $ 6,17¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanagistents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)
August 28, August 30, August 31,
For the year ended 2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss $ 1,619 $ (320 40€
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcprovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,06( 1,71¢ 1,281
Goodwill impairment 462 -- --
Provision to writ-down inventories to estimated market val 282 20 -
Gain from disposition of equipment, net of w-downs (66) 43 )
Change in operating assets and liabilit
(Increase) decrease in receivat (26) 5 (62)
Increase in inventorie (40) (59)) (12
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpedse 92 @ 13C
Increase (decrease) in customer prepayn (39) 4) 24¢
Other 94 152 27
Net cash provided by operating activit 1,01¢ 937 2,01¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equiprr (2,529 (3,6073) (1,365)
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (289) (1,46€) (3,080
Investments in nc-marketable equity instrumer (84) -- --
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest in TEC -- (73 -
Proceeds from maturities of availa-for-sale securitie 547 2,15¢ 2,18¢
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equip! 187 94 55
Proceeds from sales of availe-for-sale securitie 24 54C 33
Consolidation of TECF -- -- 31¢
Cash acquired in acquisition of Le> -- -- 97
Other 46 (39) (4)
Net cash used for investing activiti (2,0972) (2,397) (1,75€)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from del 837 1,30( -
Cash received from noncontrolling intere 40C 1,24¢ 984
Proceeds from equipment s-leaseback transactio 111 454 -
Proceeds from issuance of common si 4 69 11z
Repayments of del (69¢) (199 (415)
Payments on equipment purchase contt (387) (487) (209)
Distributions to noncontrolling interes (132) -- -
Cash received (paid) for capped call transact -- (15)) 171
Other (10) (26) --
Net cash provided by financing activiti 12E 2,21t 644
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equive (949) 761 907
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 2,197 1,431 524
Cash and equivalents at end of y $ 1,24: $ 2,192 1,431
Supplemental disclosure:
Income taxes paid, n $ 36 $ (42) (52
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: (84) (22 (29)
Noncash investing and financing activiti
Equipment acquisitions on contracts payable andatdpase: 501 1,01 32€
Stock and stock options issued in acquisition ofd -- -- 882
Conversion of notes to stock, net of unamortizedasice cos - - 623

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanatéistents.
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MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All tabular amounts in millions except per shamgoants)

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation: Micron Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries éueafter referred to collectively as the “Companyianufacture and market DRAM, NAND Flash mem
CMOS image sensors and other semiconductor compon&he Company has two segments, Memory and higagrhe Memory segment’s primary products are DR#& NAND
Flash and the Imaging segment’s primary produ€NEDS image sensors. The accompanying consolidai@acial statements have been prepared in accoedaith accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica and include the accounts of the Companyits consolidated subsidiaries. All significartercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

The Company'’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53-weekqzkending on the Thursday closest to August 31le Cbmpany’s fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 each ccedebi2 weeks. All
period references are to the Company'’s fiscal perimless otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements and edlaisclosures in conformity with accounting prpies generally accepted in the United States of ikaae
requires management to make estimates and judgnentaffect the reported amounts of assets, liegsi) revenues, expenses and related disclos&®#nates and judgments are
based on historical experience, forecasted futueats and various other assumptions that the Coynpelieves to be reasonable under the circumstariestimates and judgments
may differ under different assumptions or condisiorThe Company evaluates its estimates and judgno@ran ongoing basis. Actual results could diffem estimates.

Product warranty: The Company generally provides a limited warrdh#t its products are in compliance with Compapgrctfications existing at the time of delivery. dém the
Company’s general terms and conditions of salbjlilig for certain failures of product during a td warranty period is usually limited to repaireplacement of defective items or
return of, or a credit with respect to, amountsigar such items. Under certain circumstancesCibvapany may provide more extensive limited wagraolverage and general legal
principles may impose upon the Company more extergibility than that provided under the Company&neral terms and conditions. The Company’s wérabligations are not
material.

Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes product or license revermen persuasive evidence of a sales arrangemists,edelivery has occurred, the price is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is reasonably asdurSince the Company is unable to estimate retamd changes in market price and therefore tice fginot fixed or determinable,
sales made under agreements allowing pricing pioteor rights of return (other than for productrveaty) are deferred until customers have soldptioeluct.

Research and development: Costs related to the conceptual formulation agslgh of products and processes are expensedeasaiesnd development as incurred. Determining
when product development is complete requires juetgrny the Company. The Company deems developofi@nproduct complete once the product has beeoulybly reviewed an
tested for performance and reliability. Subseqoeproduct qualification, product costs are valirethventory. Product design and other reseanchdevelopment costs for NAND
Flash are shared equally among the Company anddaotgoration (“Intel”). These charges to Inte¢ aeflected as a reduction of research and devednpexpense. (See “Joint
Ventures — NAND Flash Joint Ventures with Intel.”)

Stock-based compensation: Stock-based compensation cost is measured gtahedate, based on the fair value of the awardljgrecognized as expense over the requisite
service period. For stock awards granted afteb#dggnning of 2006, expenses are amortized unéestthight-line attribution method. The Compargngs new shares upon the
exercise of stock options or conversion of shaitsur{See “Equity Plans.”)

Functional currency: The U.S. dollar is the Company’s functional caogfor substantially all of its operations.

Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share is computed based omeighted-average number of common shares and sgitk outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is

computed based on the weighted-average numbenohon shares and stock rights outstanding plusitheve effects of stock options, warrants and centible notes. Potential
common shares that would increase earnings pee sinaounts or decrease loss per share amountstitiuive and are, therefore, excluded from ditlifger share calculations.
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Financial instruments: Cash equivalents include highly liquid shtatm investments with original maturities to then@mny of three months or less, readily convertiblenowr
amounts of cash. Investments with original maesigreater than three months and remaining masitéss than one year are classified as shortiterastments. Investments with
remaining maturities greater than one year aresified as other noncurrent assets. Securitiesiiled as available-fosale are stated at market value. The carryingevafinvestmen
securities sold is determined using the specigaitfication method.

Amounts reported as cash and equivalents, shontiterestments, receivables, other assets, accpagéble and accrued expenses and equipment purabrtsacts approximate
their fair values. As of August 28, 2008 and Aug®®, 2007, the estimated fair value of the Comfmadgbt was $2,167 million and $2,411 million, restively, compared to their
carrying value of $2,726 million and $2,410 millicespectively. The estimated fair values preseh&zein were based on market interest rates el otarket information available
to management as of each balance sheet date g@sdrite use of different market assumptions arefimation methodologies could have a materigotfbn the estimated fair
values. The estimated fair values do not takedpttsideration expenses that could be incurred iacéual settlement.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of average @omarket value. Cost includes labor, matenal overhead costs, including product and proesssblogy
costs. Determining fair market values of invergsiinvolves numerous judgments, including projectimerage selling prices and sales volumes fordyteriods and costs to complete
products in work in process inventories. As altesfithese analyses, when fair market values atevibthe Company'’s costs, the Company records agetta cost of goods sold in
advance of when the inventory is actually solde TGompanys inventories have been categorized as Memory ptedu Imaging products for purposes of determiringrage cost ai
fair market value. The major characteristics tloen@any considers in determining categories areymtagpe and markets.

Product and process technology: Costs incurred to acquire product and procesmtdogy or to patent technology developed by then@any are capitalized and amortized on a
straight-line basis over periods currently rangipgo 10 years. The Company capitalizes a podfaosts incurred based on its analysis of hisabaod projected patents issued as a
percent of patents filed. Capitalized product pratess technology costs are amortized over theeshaf (i) the estimated useful life of the teclogy, (ii) the patent term or (iii) the
term of the technology agreement. Fully-amortiassets are removed from product and process texjynahd accumulated amortization.

Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment are stated atarastiepreciated using the straight-line method esémated useful lives of 5 to 30 years for
buildings, 2 to 20 years for equipment and 2 tearyg for software. Assets held for sale are ahatehe lower of cost or estimated fair value aralincluded in other noncurrent
assets. When property or equipment is retiredtogravise disposed of, the net book value of thetasgemoved from the Company’s accounts and any@ loss is included in the
Company’s results of operations.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowingsrdutihe active construction period of major capitajects. Capitalized interest is added to theé ebthe underlying assets and
is amortized over the useful lives of the ass&tse Company capitalized interest costs of $13 ami|li§18 million and $10 million in 2008, 2007 ar@DB, respectively, in connection
with various capital projects.

Recently issued accounting standards:In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardsul (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) N&PB 14-1, “Accounting for
Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settle€ash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash &agtht).” FSP No. APB 14-1 requires that issuersoofvertible debt
instruments that may be settled in cash upon ceioreseparately account for the liability and egaiimponents in a manner that will reflect the tgtgtinonconvertible debt borrowing
rate as interest cost is recognized in subseqegitds. The Company is required to adopt FSP NRB A4-1 at the beginning of 2010. On adoption,Gbenpany will retrospectively
account for its $1.3 billion of 1.875% convertilsienior notes issued in May of 2007 under the piowisof FSP No. APB 14: Based on a preliminary analysis, the Compatignate:
that debt recognized on issuance of the $1.3 bittionvertible senior notes would be approximatdi@@million lower under FSP No. APB 14-1. The eliince of approximately $400
million would be accreted to interest expense ¢lerapproximate seven-year term of the notes.gAifstant portion of the interest expense wouldlbéerred as capitalized interest
costs in accordance with the Company'’s regularatiiog policies and will impact results of operasicas the assets that include the capitalizedesttare depreciated. The Company
is continuing to evaluate the full impact that #uwoption of FSP No. APB 14-1 will have on its fiogi statements.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement offeinbAccounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141 (red907), “Business Combinationg“SFAS No. 141(R)"), which
establishes the principles and requirements for &wwacquirer in a business combination (1) recagnand measures in its financial statements theifiddle assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling intesés the acquiree, (2) recognizes and measuregothewill acquired in the business combination gaan from a bargain purchase,
(3) determines what information to disclose. ThenPany is required to adopt SFAS No. 141(R) eféectit the beginning of 2010. The impact of theptido of SFAS No. 141(R)
will depend on the nature and extent of businessbaations occurring on or after the beginning @1@.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financiat8ments — an amendment of ARB No. 51.” SFAS 0.réquires that
(2) noncontrolling interests be reported as a sgpailomponent of equity, (2) net income attribwgablthe parent and to the non-controlling intebesseparately identified in the
income statement, (3) changes in a parent’s owigensterest while the parent retains its contrglinterest be accounted for as equity transactams,(4) any retained noncontrolling
equity investment upon the deconsolidation of sskliary be initially measured at fair value. Thendpany is required to adopt SFAS No. 160 effectivihe beginning of 2010. The
Company is evaluating the impact that the adopfo®BFAS No. 160 will have on its financial statertgen

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159¢“FFhir Value Option for Financial Assets and Finadabilities — Including an amendment of FASBa&ment No.
115.” Under SFAS No. 159, the Company may elea¢asure many financial instruments and certaiaratams at fair value on an instrument by instrotimsis, subject to certain
restrictions. The Company is required to adopt SR. 159 effective at the beginning of 2009. Tenpany did not elect to measure any existing itatiair value on the adoption
of SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15r Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 definesvialue, establishes a framework for measuringvaine in generally
accepted accounting principles and expands dis@esabout fair value measurements. SFAS No. 1plfezpunder other accounting pronouncements tlogiine or permit fair value
measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issu@dNesS FAS 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement N67 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accourrghouncements
That Address Fair Value Measurements for PurpoSksase Classification or Measurement under Statédi®” which amends SFAS No. 157 to exclude actingrpronouncements
that address fair value measurements for purpddease classification or measurement under SFASLIRo In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP N& EB7-2, Effective Date o
FASB Statement No. 157,” which delays the effectia¢ée of SFAS No. 157 until the beginning of 20404l non-financial assets and non-financial ligies, except for items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a recurring basis (at least diyjudn October 2008, the FASB also issued FSP &S 157-3, Determining the Fa
Value of a Financial Asset when the Market for TAsset Is Not Active,” which clarifies the applieat of SFAS No. 157 for financial assets in a matkat is not active. The
Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 157 for faianassets and liabilities effective at the begigrof 2009. The Company does not expect thaattegption in 2009 of SFAS No.
157 for financial assets and financial liabilitigdl have a significant impact on its financial ments. The Company is evaluating the impactttreaadoption in 2010 of SFAS No.
157 for non-financial assets and non-financialilités will have on its financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No(“BBN 48"), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Incom&axes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No.”L&3N 48 contains a
two-step approach to recognizing and measuringrtaingax positions accounted for in accordancé \BFAS No. 109. The first step is to evaluatetéxeposition for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidenceigades it is more likely than not that the positieitl be sustained on audit, including resolutidnelated appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to medsatax benefit as the largest amount which is rtiwae 50% likely of being realized upon ultimatetlsetent. The Company adopted
FIN 48 on August 31, 2007. The adoption of FINH@ not have a significant impact on the Compamg&uilts of operations or financial position. Then@pany did not change its
policy of recognizing accrued interest and pensitédated to unrecognized tax benefits within tiewime tax provision with the adoption of FIN 4&eé “Income Taxes” note.)

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155ctAmting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instrument$SFAS No. 155 permits fair value remeasurementrigrteybrid financie

instrument that contains an embedded derivativedtferwise would require bifurcation. The Compadppted SFAS No. 155 as of the beginning of 2008 adoption of SFAS No.
155 did not have a significant impact on the Comgfmresults of operations or financial condition.
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Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Investment Securities 2008 2007
Available-for-sale securities

Commercial pape $ 271 $ 687
U.S. government and agenc 28¢ 64z
Certificates of depos 19¢ 532
Other 28 39

78€ 1,90
Less cash equivalen (641) (1,449
Less noncurrent investments in equ (26) (27)
Shor-term investment $ 11¢  $ 424

In 2008, the Company realized losses of $5 milbarsales of investment securities and recognizestof $8 million for other-than-temporary impants on investment
securities. As of August 28, 2008, the Companydrads unrealized losses of $7 million in accunadaither comprehensive income, substantially alituith was in commercial
paper that had a fair value of $86 million and badn in an unrealized loss position for less thany®ar. Gross unrealized losses and gains intadated other comprehensive
income as of August 30, 2007 were not materialos&realized gains and losses on sales of sesuritR007 and 2006 were also not material.

Receivables 2008 2007
Trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtfidoamts of $2 and $4,respective $ 741 $ 73t
Income and other tax: 43 47
Other 24¢€ 212

$ 1,03: $ 994

As of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007, otheeirables included $71 million and $108 millionspectively, due from Intel for amounts related #®N\D Flash product desi
and process development activities. Other recégads of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007 iatdaded $75 million and $83 million, respectivetiue from settlement of
litigation and $58 million as of August 28, 2008duom settlements of pricing adjustments withaiersuppliers.

Other noncurrent assets as of August 28, 2008 aryuigt 30, 2007 included receivables of $39 milkod $110 million, respectively, due from settlemefiitigation.

Inventories 2008 2007
Finished good $ 444 % 517
Work in proces: 671 772
Raw materials and supplies 17€ 242

$ 1,291 $ 1,53

The Company'’s results of operations for the fowst#ttond and first quarters of 2008 and fourth g@uat 2007 included charges of $205 million, $1%ion, $62 million and $20

million, respectively, to write down the carryinglue of work in process and finished goods invéasoof memory products (both DRAM and NAND Flagh}iteir estimated market
values.

Intangible Assets

2008 2007
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Product and process technolc $ 577 % 3200 $ 544 $ 273
Customer relationshig 127 (35 127 (19
Other 29 (14) 29 (9)
$ 73 $ (369 $ 70C $ (299)
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During 2008, the Company capitalized $43 million ooduct and process technology with a weighteztaye useful life of 10 years. During 2007, thenPany capitalized $86
million for product and process technology with eighted-average useful life of 9 years and $2 amilbf other intangible assets with a weighted-ayenaseful life of 4 years.

Amortization expense for intangible assets wasréion, $75 million and $52 million in 2008, 20@hd 2006, respectively. Annual amortization expes intangible assets is
estimated to be $72 million for 2009, $62 milliar 2010, $56 million for 2011, $47 million for 205Ad $44 million for 2013.

Property, Plant and Equipment 2008 2007

Land $ 99 3 107
Buildings (includes $142 and $131, respectively capital leases 3,82¢ 3,63¢
Equipment (includes $755 and $744, respectivelycépital leases 13,59 12,37¢
Construction in progres 611 20¢
Software 28¢ 267
18,41¢ 16,59¢

Accumulated depreciation (includes $327 and $2&&ectively, for capital lease (9,602) (8,319
$ 8,811 $ 8,27¢

Depreciation expense was $1,976 million, $1,664ioniland $1,258 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006 pectively.

Goodwill

As of August 30, 2007, the Company had goodwilitesd to its Memory segment of $463 million. Durthg second quarter of 2008, the Company wrotalbéff the segment’s
goodwill based on the results of the Company’sf@msimpairment. As of August 28, 2008 and Augg@t 2007, the Company had goodwill related toritading segment of $58
million and $52 million, respectively. The $6 rolh increase in goodwill for the Imaging segmentiniy 2008 was due to additional contingent paymerdde in connection with the
Company’s acquisition of the CMOS image sensorrass of Avago Technologies Limited. The Comparassessment of goodwill for impairment in the sdcand fourth quarters
2008 indicated that the fair value of the Imagirgreent exceeded its carrying value and therefooe\gidl in the segment was not impaired.

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetequires that goodwill be tested for impairmeang reporting unit level. The Company has deteechithat its reporting
units are its Memory and Imaging segments baseéts amganizational structure and the financial infation that is provided to and reviewed by manag@mThe Company tests
goodwill for impairment annually and whenever egemt circumstances make it more likely than not #@mimpairment may have occurred. Goodwill isgddor impairment using a
two-step process. In the first step, the fair gadfia reporting unit is compared to its carryirdue. If the fair value of a reporting unit excedlde carrying value of the net assets
assigned to a reporting unit, goodwill is considemet impaired and no further testing is requirédhe carrying value of the net assets assigoedreporting unit exceeds the fair ve
of a reporting unit, the second step of the impaithtest is performed in order to determine thdieddair value of a reporting unit's goodwill. Bemining the implied fair value of
goodwill requires valuation of a reporting unitsgible and intangible assets and liabilities mamner similar to the allocation of purchase piiica business combination. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit's goodwill exdesdts implied fair value, goodwill is deemed inmeal and is written down to the extent of the défese.

In the first and second quarters of 2008, the Compxperienced a sustained, significant declinésistock price. As a result of the decline incktprices, the Company’s market
capitalization fell significantly below the recoriealue of its consolidated net assets for mogt@fecond quarter of 2008. The reduced markdétatiaption reflected, in part, the
Memory segment’s lower average selling prices aqmeted continued weakness in pricing for the Cangisamemory products. Accordingly, in the secondrer of 2008, the
Company performed an assessment of goodwill foaimgent. Based on the results of the Company’'ssassent of goodwill for impairment, it was deteredrthat the carrying value
of the Memory segment exceeded its estimated &irev Therefore, the Company performed the sesteplof the impairment test to determine the inaplaer value of
goodwill. Specifically, the Company allocated #stimated fair value of the Memory segment as detexd in the first step to recognized and unrecgphinet assets, including
allocations to intangible assets such as inteli@qitoperty, customer relationships and brand esdktnames. The result of the analysis indicdtatithere would be no remaining
implied value attributable to goodwill in the Mergaegment and accordingly, the Company wrote 6463 million of goodwill associated with its Memyosegment as of February
28, 2008.
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In the first step of the impairment analysis, th@r@any performed extensive valuation analysesingiboth income and market approaches to deterthaéair value of its
reporting units. Under the income approach, the@my determined the fair value based on estinfatede cash flows discounted by an estimated weiifatverage cost of capital,
which reflects the overall level of inherent riskeoreporting unit and the rate of return an owsitrestor would expect to earn. Estimated fubtash flows were based on the
Company’s internal projection models, industry potions and other assumptions deemed reasonabhamggement. Under the market-based approach otmg&hy derived the fair
value of its reporting units based on revenue amndiegs multiples of comparable publicly-tradedrmeEsmpanies. In the second step of the impairrapalysis, the Company
determined the implied fair value of goodwill fétvet Memory segment by allocating the fair valuehaf segment to all of its assets and liabilitieadnordance with SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” as if the segment had laeguired in a business combination and the piig fo acquire it was the fair value.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expense 2008 2007
Accounts payabl $ 597 $ 85€
Salaries, wages and bene 244 247
Customer advance 13C 85
Income and other tax: 27 33
Other 112 164

$ 1,111 $ 1,38¢

As of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007, custcaeances included $129 million and $83 milliorspectively, for the Company’s obligation to provicirtain NAND Flash
memory products to Apple Computer, Inc. (“ApplefjtiiDecember 31, 2010 pursuant to a prepaid NAN&3IF supply agreement. As of August 28, 2008 anguat 30, 2007, other
accounts payable and accrued expenses includechifiih and $17 million, respectively, for amoumtse to Intel for NAND Flash product design and psxdevelopment and
licensing fees pursuant to a product designs dpuetot agreement.

As of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007, othercmorent liabilities included $83 million and $16llion, respectively, pursuant to the supply agneat with Apple.

Debt 2008 2007
Convertible senior notes payable, interest rate &75%, due June 20: $ 1,30 $ 1,30(¢
Notes payable in periodic installments through Ad¢5, weighte-average interest rates of 4.! 69¢ 374
Capital lease obligations payable in monthly idstehts through February 2023, weigt-average imputed interest rate

6.6% 657 66€
Convertible subordinated notes payable, intereéstab5.6%, due April 201 70 70
2,72¢ 2,41(

Less current portio (275) (423)
$ 2451 $ 1,981

As of August 28, 2008, notes payable and capitadebligations above included an aggregate of #filidn, denominated in Japanese yen, at a weijhterage interest rate of
1.6%, which was subject to customary covenantsyding the ratio of debt to equity. As of Augu&, 2008, the Company was in compliance with thestomary covenants. Notes
payable and capital lease obligations as of Aug8s2008 also included $49 million, denominate&ingapore dollars, at a weighted average inteagstaf 6.0%.

During the second quarter of 2008, the Companyrg jenture subsidiary, TECH Semiconductor Singegte. Ltd. (“TECH"), borrowed $240 million agairestredit facility at
Singapore Interbank Offered Rate (“SIBOR”) plus2.5During the third quarter of 2008, TECH enteiretd a new credit facility enabling TECH to borray to $600 million at
SIBOR plus 2.5%. During 2008, TECH drew $600 roilliunder the new credit facility and retired theyious credit facility by paying off the $240 milfi outstanding balance. The
new credit facility is collateralized by substalfijiall of the assets of TECH (approximately $1,fillion as of August 28, 2008) and contains covesahat, among other
requirements, establish certain liquidity, debvier coverage and leverage ratios, and restricttT’E@bility to incur indebtedness, create liens anduire or dispose of
assets. Payments under the new facility are dappnoximately equal installments over 13 quarteramencing in May 2009. Beginning March 2009, TE@H be required to
maintain $30 million in restricted cash and thistrieted cash requirement will increase to $60iotilin September 2009. The Company has guaraajggximately 73% of the
outstanding amount of the facility, with the Comyparobligation increasing to 100% of the outstaigdamount of the facility upon the occurrence otaiarconditions.
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In 2008, the Company received $111 million in pemtefrom sales-leaseback transactions and in cbaneuith these transactions, recorded capitaldeddigations aggregating
$110 million with a weighted-average imputed ins¢mate of 6.7% and payable in periodic installmehtough June 2012.

In May 2007, the Company issued $1.3 billion of7Z6% Convertible Senior Notes due June 1, 2014“@kaior Notes”). The issuance costs associatel tvé Senior Notes
totaled $26 million and the net proceeds to the @aimy from the offering of the Senior Notes were2$4, million. The initial conversion rate for therSor Notes is 70.2679 shares of
common stock per $1,000 principal amount of SeNiates, equivalent to an initial conversion pricaepproximately $14.23 per share of common stoc@ldéts may convert the
Senior Notes prior to the close of business orbtheness day immediately preceding the maturitg éatthe Senior Notes only under the followingoimstances: (1) during any
calendar quarter beginning after August 30, 200d @nly during such calendar quarter), if the eiggprice of the Company's common stock for at |2@dtrading days in the 30
consecutive trading days ending on the last tradingof the immediately preceding calendar quastemore than 130% of the then applicable converpiaoe per share of the Senior
Notes; (2) if the Senior Notes have been calledddemption; (3) if specified distributions to hetd of the Company's common stock are made, oifiggecorporate events occur,
specified in the indenture for the Senior Note$diring the five business days after any five esnsive trading day period in which the tradingcprper $1,000 principal amount of
Senior Notes for each day of that period was leas 88% of the product of the closing price of @@npany’s common stock and the then applicable @imn rate of the Senior
Notes; or (5) at any time on or after March 1, 20Upon conversion, the Company will have the righdeliver, in lieu of shares of its common stoc&sh or a combination of cash
shares of common stock. If a holder elects to edrits Senior Notes in connection with a make-whtdiange in control, as defined in the indentime Gompany will, in certain
circumstances, pay a make-whole premium by inangetbie conversion rate for the Senior Notes copddrt connection with such make-whole change irtrobnOn or after June 6,
2011, the Company may redeem for cash all or gaheoSenior Notes if the last reported sale poiciks common stock has been at least 130% ofaheersion price then in effect for
at least 20 trading days during any 30 consecttading day period ending within five trading day#or to the date on which the Company providesceatf redemption. The
redemption price is 100% of the principal amounthef Senior Notes to be redeemed, plus accruedmpaid interest. Upon a change in control or miteation of trading, as defined
in the indenture, the holders may require the Campa repurchase for cash all or a portion of tiSsinior Notes at a repurchase price equal to 1da¥%eprincipal amount of the
Senior Notes, plus accrued and unpaid intereahyif The Company expects that the accountindhSenior Notes will be significantly impacted loption of FSP No. APB 14-1,
which is effective at the beginning of 2010 and wehuire the Company to retrospectively accounttie Senior Notes from their issuance date. (Semificant Accounting Policies —
Recently issued accounting standards.”)

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of aeMedia, Inc. (“Lexar”) in the fourth quarter dd@6, the Company assumed Lexar’s $70 million 5.626%vertible notes due
April 1, 2010 (the “Lexar Notes”). The Lexar Now@® convertible into the Company’s common stogktame at the option of the holders of the Lexatdé¢oat a price equal to
approximately $11.28 per share and are subjeaigtbmary covenants. The Lexar Notes became redgerioa cash at the Company’s option on April 1020at a price equal to the
principal amount plus accrued interest plus thepnesent value of the remaining scheduled intgraginents through April 1, 2010. The Company mdy cedeem the Lexar Notes if
its common stock has exceeded 175% of the convepsioe for at least 20 trading days in the 30 ecnsive trading days prior to delivery of a notafeedemption.

Certain notes payable are collateralized by prgpetant and equipment with a carrying value of $#8ion as of August 28, 2008.

53




As of August 28, 2008, maturities of notes payainiéd future minimum lease payments under capitaklebligations were as follows:

Capital
Notes Lease
Payable Obligations

2009 $ 99 3 21¢
2010 31¢ 14¢
2011 20t 261
2012 15C 4€
2013 - 16
2014 and thereaftt 1,30(C 81
Discount and interest, respectivi (3) (110)
$ 2,06¢ $ 657

Commitments

As of August 28, 2008, the Company had commitmeh&pproximately $300 million for the acquisitiohproperty, plant and equipment. The Company leasetain facilities
and equipment under operating leases. Total rerf@nse was $39 million, $62 million and $30 millifor 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Minimfuare rental commitments
under operating leases aggregated $94 million &sigtist 28, 2008 and are payable as follows: $ill®min 2009; $15 million in 2010; $13 million i8011, $11 million in 2012, $11
million in 2013 and $26 million in 2014 and therteaf

Contingencies

The Company has accrued a liability and chargedatip@s for the estimated costs of adjudicatiosettiement of various asserted and unassertedckaiisting as of the balance
sheet date, including those described below. Téragainy is currently a party to other legal actiarising out of the normal course of business, rafrnehich is expected to have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s busimess|ts of operations or financial condition.

In the normal course of business, the Companyirty to a variety of agreements pursuant to whiakey be obligated to indemnify the other partyis not possible to predict
the maximum potential amount of future paymentseurtdese types of agreements due to the conditiaatate of the Company’s obligations and the unfagés and circumstances
involved in each particular agreement. Historicglayments made by the Company under these tfg@ements have not had a material effect o€trapany’s business, results
of operations or financial condition.

The Company is involved in the following patenttittast, securities and Lexar matters.

Patent Matters: As is typical in the semiconductor and other Higithnology industries, from time to time, otheasd asserted, and may in the future assert, taadimpany’s
products or manufacturing processes infringe tinéllectual property rights. In this regard, Bempany is engaged in litigation with Rambus, [fiRambus”) relating to certain of
Rambus’ patents and certain of the Compamjaims and defenses. Lawsuits between Rambuthar@ompany are pending in the U.S. District Céarrthe District of Delaware, U..
District Court for the Northern District of Califoia, Germany, France, and Italy. The Companyiaglemgaged in patent litigation with Mosaid Teclogiés, Inc. (“Mosaid”) in both
the U.S. District Court for the Northern Distridt®@alifornia and the U.S. District Court for thedfarn District of Texas. Among other things, thewe lawsuits pertain to certain of
Company’s SDRAM, DDR SDRAM, DDR2 SDRAM, DDR3 SDRARLDRAM and image sensor products, which accounafsignificant portion of net sales.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome ddréisss of infringement made against the Compamytharefore cannot estimate the range of possilsie |A court
determination that the Company’s products or mastufang processes infringe the intellectual propeights of others could result in significant ligly and/or require the Company to
make material changes to its products and/or matwfag processes. Any of the foregoing could haweaterial adverse effect on the Company’s busjmesults of operations or
financial condition.
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Antitrust Matters: At least sixty-eight purported class action pribenfy lawsuits have been filed against the Compamy other DRAM suppliers in various federal andesta
courts in the United States and in Puerto Ricoamal of indirect purchasers alleging price-fiximgviolation of federal and state antitrust law|ations of state unfair competition
law, and/or unjust enrichment relating to the sadd pricing of DRAM products during the period frépril 1999 through at least June 2002. The comfdaseek treble damages
sustained by purported class members in additioadtitution, costs and attorneys’ fees. A nundieéhese cases have been removed to federal auittansferred to the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California foonsolidated proceedings. On January 29, 2008\l¢iithern District of California court granted iapand denied in part the
Company’s motion to dismiss plaintiffsecond amended consolidated complaint. Plairiffsequently filed a motion seeking certificationifterlocutory appeal of the decision.
February 27, 2008, plaintiffs filed a third amenaednplaint. On June 26, 2008, the United StatagtQd Appeals for the Ninth Circuit accepted ptéfs’ interlocutory appeal.

In addition, various states, through their Attorm&eneral, have filed suit against the Companycdiner DRAM manufacturers. On July 14, 2006, andGeptember 8, 2006 in an
amended complaint, the following Attorneys Genétadl suit in the U.S. District Court for the Noeimn District of California: Alaska, Arizona, Arkaas, California, Colorado,
Delaware, Florida, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, lowagKtucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusgttshigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevadew Hampshire, New
Mexico, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklah@n®regon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, South @aroliennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virginia, \Masbn, West Virginia,
Wisconsin and the Commonwealth of the Northern Rtaailslands. Three states, Ohio, New HampshiceTaras, subsequently voluntarily dismissed thaints. The remaining
states filed a third amended complaint on Octob@007. Alaska, Delaware, and Vermont subsequeotiyntarily dismissed their claims. The amendenhplaint alleges, among
other things, violations of the Sherman Act, Caigivr Act, and certain other states’ consumer ptaie@nd antitrust laws and seeks damages, anddtiye and other
relief. Additionally, on July 13, 2006, the StateNew York filed a similar suit in the U.S. DisttiCourt for the Southern District of New York. attcase was subsequently transferred
to the U.S. District Court for the Northern Distraf California for pre-trial purposes. The StafeNew York filed an amended complaint on Octobe?d07. On October 3, 2008, the
California Attorney General filed a similar lawsintCalifornia Superior Court, purportedly on bdtadllocal California government entities, allegjragnong other things, violations of
the Cartwright Act and state unfair competition law

Three purported class action DRAM lawsuits alscehagen filed in Quebec, Ontario, and British ColianBanada, on behalf of direct and indirect pusehs, alleging violations
of the Canadian Competition Act. The substantilegations in these cases are similar to thosetaskim the cases filed in the United States. kyMnd June 2008 respectively,
plaintiffs’ motion for class certification was dewiin the British Columbia and Quebec cases. fflaisubsequently filed an appeal of each of thdseisions.

In February and March 2007, All American Semicortdudnc., Jaco Electronics, Inc., and the DRAMifis Liquidation Trust each filed suit against then@pany and other
DRAM suppliers in the U.S. District Court for theofthern District of California after opting-out afdirect purchaser class action suit that wasesktfThe complaints allege, among
other things, violations of federal and state amitand competition laws in the DRAM industry, aeek damages, injunctive relief, and other rensedie

On October 11, 2006, the Company received a graydspbpoena from the U.S. District Court for therfidern District of California seeking informatioegarding an investigatic
by the DOJ into possible antitrust violations ie tistatic Random Access Memory” or “SRAM” industrfhe Company believes that it is not a targehefitvestigation and is
cooperating with the DOJ in its investigation of tBRAM industry.

Subsequent to the issuance of subpoenas to the SRA\Mtry, a number of purported class action latsave been filed against the Company and otR&Ns suppliers. Six
cases have been filed in the U.S. District Courttie Northern District of California assertingiota on behalf of a purported class of individuald antities that purchased SRAM
directly from various SRAM suppliers during the iperfrom November 1, 1996 through December 31, 2088ditionally, at least seventy-four cases hagerbfiled in various U.S.
District Courts asserting claims on behalf of apmuted class of individuals and entities that iadily purchased SRAM and/or products containing BRAm various SRAM
suppliers during the time period from Novemberd9@ through December 31, 2006. In September 200Bss of direct purchasers was certified, anidtiffs were granted leave to
amend their complaint to cover Pseudo-Static RANRSRAM” products as well. The complaints allggee fixing in violation of federal antitrust lavesd state antitrust and unfair
competition laws and seek treble monetary damagsstution, costs, interest and attorneys’ fees.
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Three purported class action SRAM lawsuits alseetzeen filed in Canada, on behalf of direct andténtl purchasers, alleging violations of the CaaadCompetition Act. The
substantive allegations in these cases are sitnillwose asserted in the SRAM cases filed in thigedrStates.

In addition, three purported class action lawsaliesging pricefixing of Flash products have been filed in Canadserting violations of the Canadian Competitiat. AThese cas
assert claims on behalf of a purported class afiddals and entities that purchased Flash memwectlly and indirectly from various Flash memorypliers.

On May 5, 2004, Rambus filed a complaint in theeige Court of the State of California (San Frangi€ounty) against the Company and other DRAM sappl The complaint
alleges various causes of action under Califori@igedaw including conspiracy to restrict outpudldix prices on Rambus DRAM (“RDRAM"and unfair competition. Trial is curren
scheduled to begin in March 2009. The compladeks treble damages, punitive damages, attornegs, €osts, and a permanent injunction enjoiniagi#iendants from the conduct
alleged in the complaint.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome cfelawsuits and investigations and therefore caestihate the range of possible loss. The firsditgion of these alleged
violations of antitrust laws could result in sigoént liability and could have a material adverfect on the Company'’s business, results of opamator financial condition.

Securities Matters: On February 24, 2006, a putative class action caimiplivas filed against the Company and certaitsobfficers in the U.S. District Court for the Dist of
Idaho alleging claims under Section 10(b) and 26{ahe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenatedi Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. Fourtanbally similar complaints
subsequently were filed in the same Court. Thesasirport to be brought on behalf of a class offpasers of the Comparsystock during the period February 24, 2001 to radyr13
2003. The five lawsuits have been consolidatedsacgnsolidated amended class action complaintileason July 24, 2006. The complaint generallggés violations of federal
securities laws based on, among other things, eldimisstatements or omissions regarding allegegiillprice-fixing conduct. The complaint seekspaesfied damages, interest,
attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses. On Decet8h@007, the Court issued an order certifyingdlags but reducing the class period to purchasgteeaCompany’s stock during the
period from February 24, 2001 to September 18, 2002

In addition, on March 23, 2006, a shareholder @g¢rre action was filed in the Fourth District Cofat the State of Idaho (Ada County), allegedlyb@talf of and for the benefit
the Company, against certain of the Company’s atiaed former officers and directors. The Compalisp was named as a nominal defendant. An ameraiedlaint was filed on
August 23, 2006 and subsequently dismissed by thetC Another amended complaint was filed on Septr 6, 2007. The amended complaint is basedeosaime allegations of fe
as in the securities class actions filed in the. DiStrict Court for the District of Idaho and ajks breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of controlsgnmismanagement, waste of corporate
assets, unjust enrichment, and insider tradinge dhended complaint seeks unspecified damageig,tiest disgorgement of profits, equitable andiimgtive relief, attorneys’ fees,
costs, and expenses. The amended complaint isathed in nature and does not seek monetary danfegaghe Company. However, the Company may baired, throughout the
pendency of the action, to advance payment of liegel and costs incurred by the defendants. Queda25, 2008, the Court granted the Company’sandt dismiss the second
amended complaint without leave to amend. On Maf;2008, plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal e idaho Court of Appeals.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome cfdleases and therefore cannot estimate the rampessible loss. A court determination in any @&t actions against the
Company could result in significant liability andudd have a material adverse effect on the Comgamysiness, results of operations or financial itmmd
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Capped Call Transactions

In connection with the offering of the Senior NotedMay 2007, the Company entered into three cagpdidransactions (the “Capped Calls”). The Cappalls each have an
initial strike price of approximately $14.23 pemsé, subject to certain adjustments, which matteitial conversion price of the Senior Notdhe Capped Calls are in three equal
tranches, have cap prices of $17.25, $20.13 and@2%r share, and cover, subject to anti-dilutidjustments similar to those contained in the Se¥dades, an approximate combined
total of 91.3 million shares of common stock. Tepped Calls may reduce the potential dilution ugmmversion of the Senior Notes. Settlement ofdapped Calls in cash on their
respective expiration dates would result in the @any receiving an amount ranging from zero if treket price per share of the Company’s common swekor below $14.23 to a
maximum of $538 million. The Company paid $151limil to purchase the Capped Calls. The Capped @aflire on various dates between November 201 Dandmber 2012. Tt
Capped Calls are considered capital transactioti$renrelated cost was recorded as a charge ttaddicapital.

Shareholders’ Equity

Stock Rights: As of August 28, 2008, Intel held stock rightgleangeable into approximately 16.9 million sharfehe Company’s common stock. The shares areliésua
pursuant to the stock rights are included in weddkdverage common shares outstanding in the cotigngaf earnings per share.

Stock Warrants: In 2001, the Company received $480 million frdma issuance of warrants to purchase 29.1 milli@meshof the Company’s common stock. The warrants
entitled the holders to exercise their warrants@mthase shares of common stock for $56.00 pee sttany time through May 15, 2008. The warramfsired unexercised on May :
2008.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lossiccumulated other comprehensive income (losg)phtax, consisted of the following as of the eridhe periods shown
below:

2008 2007
Unrealized loss on investments, $ 3 $ (@)
Unrecognized pension liabilit (5) (5)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It $ B $ (7)

Equity Plans

As of August 28, 2008, the Company had an aggregfé260.6 million shares of its common stock resérfor issuance for stock options and restrictedksawards, of which
122.1 million shares were subject to outstandingrd® and 78.5 million shares were available fanreigrants. Awards are subject to terms and dondias determined by the
Company'’s Board of Directors.

Stock Options: Stock options granted by the Company are geyezaéircisable in increments of 25% during each yéamployment beginning one year from the date of
grant. Stock options issued after September 224 B@nerally expire six years from the date of grail other options expire ten years from therdrdate.
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Option activity for 2008 is summarized as follows:

Weightec-
average
Weightec- remaining
Number of average exercise  contractual life Aggregate
shares price per share (in years) intrinsic value
Outstanding at August 30, 20 1198 $ 20.0C
Granted 7.4 6.2C
Exercisec (0.2) 4.34
Cancelled or expire (13.9) 19.01
Outstanding at August 28, 20 112.¢ 19.2¢ 3.2 -
Exercisable at August 28, 20 95.¢ $ 20.8¢ 3.01 -
Expected to vest after August 28, 2( 16.2 10.2¢ 4.5€ -
The following table summarizes information abouti@ps outstanding as of August 28, 2008:
Outstanding options Exercisable options
Weightec- Weightec- Weightec-
average average average
remaining exercise exercise
Number contractual price Number
Range of exercise price of shares life (in years) per share of shares per share
$ 0.51- $14.02 61.1 3.7 % 11.7¢ 45.4 12.4¢
14.06- 22.83 25.2 3.5¢ 19.0¢ 23.¢ 19.32
23.25- 34.0€ 17.C 1.8¢ 29.9¢ 17.C 29.9¢
34.09- 40.0€ 6.C 1.4C 36.9( 6.C 36.9(
40.57 - 96.56 3.€ 2.11 66.9¢ 3.€ 66.9¢
112.¢ 3.2t 19.2¢ 95.¢ 20.8¢

The weighted-average grant-date fair value peresivas $2.52, $4.87 and $5.92 for options granteehgl2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The totainsic value was $1
million, $32 million and $46 million for options exkcised during 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Changes in the Company’s nonvested options for 20808ummarized as follows:

Weightec-
average grant
Number of date fair value
shares per share
Nonvested at August 30, 20 16.€ $ 5.5C
Granted 7.4 2.52
Vested (5.0 5.6t
Cancellec (1.9 5.1Z
Nonvested at August 28, 20 17.1 4.21

As of August 28, 2008, $51 million of total unreoimed compensation cost related to nonvested awead®xpected to be recognized through the fourgtntgr of 2012, resulting
in a weighted-average period of 1.2 years. The @oy's nonvested options as of August 28, 2008 hawveighted-average exercise price of $10.22, ghweil-average remaining
contractual life of 4.6 years and no aggregaténisitt value.
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The fair value of each option award is estimatedfdabe date of grant using the Black-Scholes aptialuation model. The Black-Scholes model wastimed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options whielvéno vesting restrictions and are fully trandferand requires the input of subjective assumptiortiuding the expected stock pr
volatility and estimated option life. The expectedatilities utilized by the Company are basedraplied volatilities from traded options on the Goamy’s stock and on historical
volatility. The expected life of options grantedsbased on the simplified method provided by #euSties and Exchange Commission as historica dit not provide a reasonable
basis to estimate future terms due to significéiainges in the terms of prior grants. The risk-feges utilized by the Company are based on the T#esury yield in effect at the time
of the grant. No dividends have been assumedeilCtimpany’s estimated option values. Assumptices in the Black-Scholes model are presented below:

2008 2007 2006
Average expected life in yea 4.2t 4.2t 4.2t
Expected volatility 37%-54% 33%-42% 42%-48%
Weightec-average volatility 47% 39% 47%
Weightec-average ris-free interest rat 2.9% 4.7% 4.4%

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (“Reged Stock Awards”): As of August 28, 2008, there were 9.2 million skavkrestricted stock awards outstanding, of wiid
million were performance-based restricted stockrdeiaFor service-based restricted stock awardgjcgons generally lapse either in one-fourttone-third increments during each
year of employment after the grant date. For perémc-based restricted stock awards, vesting is comtinggon meeting certain Company-wide performan@dsgoRestricted stock
awards activity for 2008 is summarized as follows:

Weightec-
average
remaining
Number of contractual life Aggregate
shares (in years) intrinsic value
Outstanding at August 30, 20 5.2
Granted 5.€
Restrictions lapse 1.2
Cancellec 0.9
Outstanding at August 28, 2008 9.2 22 g 40
Expected to vest after August 28, 2( [2s 24 % 32

The weighted-average grant-date fair value forieetl stock awards granted during 2008, 2007 &6 2vas $8.41, $14.91 and $13.04 per share, régplgctThe aggregate
value at the lapse date of awards for which regiris lapsed during 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $1i®mil$11 million and $2 million, respectively. A$ August 28, 2008, there was
$56 million of total unrecognized compensation cost of estimated forfeitures, related to nonwséstricted stock awards, which is expected teebegnized over a weighted-
average period of 1.3 years.

Stock Purchase Plan: The Company’s 1989 Employee Stock Purchase PEBRP”) allowed eligible employees to purchase ehaf the Company’s common stock through
payroll deductions. Shares could be purchase8%t®& the ending closing stock price of each offgruarterly period and could be resold when pugetia Purchases were limited to
20% of an employes’eligible compensation. During 2008, the ESPPauapended by the Company. As of August 28, 2D@3million shares were reserved for future isseanule
this plan.

Non-Employee Director Stock Incentive PlanShares are issued under the Director Stock liveeRtan (“DSIP”) as compensation to nemployee directors of the Company.
of August 28, 2008, 69,808 shares of the Comparismon stock had been issued under the DSIP and3®6hares were reserved for future issuance uhegian.
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Stock-Based Compensation Expensd:otal compensation costs for the Company’s ecqulans were as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Stocl-based compensation expense
caption:
Cost of goods sol $ 15 % 11 % 8
Selling, general and administrati 19 21 11
Research and developme 14 12 7
$ 48 3 4 3 2€
Stocl-based compensation expense by t
award:
Stock options $ 26 $ 26 $ 17
Restricted stock awarc 22 18 9
$ 48 8 4 $ 2€

As of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007, $3 onillof stock-based compensation expense was capiadind remained in inventory, and $1 million wagitlized and
remained in inventory as of August 31, 2006. Adofust 28, 2008, $107 million of total unrecogrmizlBzmpensation costs, net of estimated forfeitusdated to non-vested awards
was expected to be recognized through the fourgiteuof 2012, resulting in a weighted-averagequeof 1.2 years. Stock-based compensation experike above presentation does
not reflect any significant income tax benefits,iathis consistent with the Company’s treatmennhebime or loss from its U.S. operations. (See “tned axes” note.)

Employee Benefit Plans
The Company has employee retirement plans at s &hd international sites. Details of the mogaificant plans are discussed as follows:

Employee Savings Plan for U.S. Employeehe Company has a 401(k) retirement plan (“RABINP) under which U.S. employees may contribute up to 45%eir eligible pa:
(subject to IRS annual contribution limits) to \ars savings alternatives, none of which includeaimvestment in the Company’s common stock. Utite RAM plan, the Company
matches in cash eligible contributions from empésyap to 4% of the employee’s annual eligible e@®ior $2,000, whichever is greater. Contribuggpense for the Company’s
RAM Plan was $32 million, $31 million and $26 milfi in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Retirement Plans The Company has pension plans in various counv@ldwide. The pension plans are only availablocal employees and are generally government
mandated. Upon adoption of FAS 158 as of Augus2807, the Company increased its liability by $i8iam related to the unfunded pension liabilitiefsthe plans.

Restructure

In an effort to increase its competitiveness affidieficy, in the fourth quarter of 2007, the Compéegan pursuing a number of initiatives to redemsts across its
operations. These initiatives included workforeductions in certain areas of the Company as #8bas was realigned. Additional initiatives ird#d establishing certain operations
closer in location to the Company’s global custaraerd evaluating functions more efficiently perfedrthrough partnerships or other outside relatisshin 2008, the Company
recorded charges of $33 million, primarily withts Memory segment, for employee severance ancetetatsts, relocation and retention bonuses andtegown of certain facilities t
their fair values. Since the restructure initiawvere initiated in the fourth quarter of 200% @ompany has incurred $52 million of restructwsts. As of August 28, 2008 and
August 30, 2007, $6 million and $5 million, respeely, of the restructure costs remained unpaidwerk included in accounts payable and accruedneese

On October 9, 2008 the Company announced a plegstoucture its memory operations. The Company'§lash joint venture with Intel Corporation willstontinue production
of 200mm wafer NAND flash memory at Micron’s Boiseility. The NAND Flash production shutdown wigduce IM Flash’s NAND flash production by approziely 35,000
200mm wafers per month. In addition, the Compary latel agreed to suspend tooling and the rangraduction at IM Flash’s Singapore wafer fabricatgant. As part of the
restructuring, the Company plans to reduce itsajlalwrkforce by approximately 15 percent during 2@®d 2010. Cash costs for restructuring and atiated expenses incurred in
connection with this restructuring are anticipai@the approximately $60 million.
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Other Operating (Income) Expense, Net

Other operating (income) for 2008 included gain$@6 million for disposals of semiconductor equipinend $38 million for receipts from the U.S. gaveent in connection with
anti-dumping tariffs. Other operating expense2f@08 included losses of $25 million from changesurrency exchange rates. Other operating (ingdon007 included gains of
$43 million from disposals of semiconductor equiptn&30 million from the sale of certain intelleatyproperty to Toshiba Corporation and $7 milliargrants received in connection
with the Company'’s operations in China. Other apag expense for 2007 included losses of $14 enilfrom changes in currency exchange rates. Q@itenating (income) for 2006
included $230 million of net proceeds for the s#léhe Company’s existing NAND Flash memory designd certain related technology to Intel, net obants paid by the Company
for a perpetual, paid-up license to use and maglifsh designs. Other operating (income) for 2066 aicluded $23 million in additional amounts expedo be reimbursed resulting
from the extension of an economic development agee¢, which allows the Company to recover amougltting to certain investments in IM Flash. (Saeirit Ventures — NAND
Flash Joint Ventures with Intel.”)

Income Taxes

Income (loss) before taxes and noncontrolling gg&y in net income and the income tax (provisi@meliit consisted of the following:

2008 2007 2006
Income (loss) before taxes and noncontrolling gg&s in net income
.S. $ 1,719) $ (57) $ 351
Foreign 102 402 82
$ (161) $ (168) $ 43¢
Income tax (provision) benefi
Current:
U.S. federa $ 7 % 5 $ (12
State -- -- Q)
Foreign (17) (39 (29
29) (a4) @2)
Deferred:
U.S. federa - - --
State -- -- --
Foreign 6 14 24
6 14 24
Income tax (provision $ 18 $ 30 $ (18
The Company’s income tax (provision) benefit conegutising the U.S. federal statutory rate recont¢detie Company’s income tax (provision) follows:
2008 2007 2006
U.S. federal income tax (provision) benefit atstiaty rate $ 564 $ 58 $ (152
State taxes, net of federal ben 38 3 5
Tax credits 8 25 7
Change in valuation allowan: (44€) (219 10z
Goodwill impairment (155) -- --
Foreign operation (21) 93 3
Export sales benel -- 8 13
Other (6) 1 3
Income tax (provision) $ (18 $ (30 $ (18)

State taxes reflect investment tax credits of $1Bom, $10 million and $23 million for 2008, 20G#hd 2006, respectively.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effetterporary differences between the bases of aasettiabilities for financial reporting and incortex purposes. The Company’s
deferred tax assets and liabilities consist offttiewing as of the end of the periods shown below:

2008 2007
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss and credit carryforwa $ 1,35¢ $ 1,13¢
Inventories 23t 35
Basis differences in investments in joint ventt 20C 23€
Deferred incomt 15E 16C
Accrued salaries, wages and bene 76 64
Other 48 61
Gross deferred tax ass: 2,072 1,692
Less valuation allowanc (1,56¢) (1,147)
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowe 502 55C
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess tax over book depreciat (14) (225
Unremitted earnings on certain subsidia (114 (68)
Intangible asset (51) (59
Product and process technolc (48) (44)
Receivable: 43 (76)
Other (16) (13)
Deferred tax liabilities (419) (48E
Net deferred tax asse $ M 3 65
Reported as
Current deferred tax assets (included in otheretirassets $ 25 % 25
Noncurrent deferred tax assets (included in othsets, 74 65
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities (included imet liabilities) (9) (25)
Net deferred tax assets $ 90 $ 65

The Company has a valuation allowance against aatisily all of its U.S. net deferred tax asseis. of August 28, 2008, the Company had aggregéa®e tdx net operating loss
carryforwards of $2.7 billion and unused U.S. teadit carryforwards of $205 million. The Compangcahas unused state tax net operating loss cangfds of $1.8 billion and
unused state tax credits of $189 million as of As1d@8, 2008. Substantially all of the net opetoss carryforwards expire in 2022 to 2028 andstaurtially all of the tax credit
carryforwards expire in 2013 to 2028. As a congege of prior business acquisitions, utilizatiorttef tax benefits for some of the tax carryforwasdsubject to limitations imposed
by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code andesmortion or all of these carryforwards may notbeilable to offset any future taxable income.

The changes in valuation allowance of $427 milow $227 million in 2008 and 2007, respectivelg, rimarily due to uncertainties of realizing certd.S. net operating losses
and certain tax credit carryforwards. The chamgtaé valuation allowance in 2007 included $6 miilfor stock plan deductions, which will be credite additional capital if realized.

Provision has been made for deferred taxes on witdited earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries to tktera that dividend payments from such companieeapected to result in
additional tax liability. During 2008 a decisiorag'rmade to not be indefinitely reinvested in carfaieign jurisdictions. For the year ended Aud2&t2008, $322 million of earnings
that in prior years had been considered indefipiteinvested in foreign operations were determioedo longer be indefinitely reinvested. This demi resulted in no impact to the
consolidated statement of operations as the Comipasia full valuation allowance against its net.\d&erred tax assets. Remaining undistributedimgs of $608 million as of

August 28, 2008 have been indefinitely reinvestierefore, no provision has been made for taxesuidoae remittance of these earnings. Determinatfdhe amount of unrecognized
deferred tax liability on these unremitted earniisgsot practicable.
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Effective at the beginning of 2008, the Companypaeld the provisions of FIN 48. In connection witle adoption of FIN 48, the Company increasedatsility and decreased
retained earnings by $1 million for net unrecogditex benefits at August 31, 2007. Below is a rediation of the beginning and ending amount ofacognized tax benefits:

2008
Beginning unrecognized tax benel $ 16
Foreign exchange fluctuatio 1
Settlements with taxing authoriti @
Expiration of foreign statutes of limitatiol (15)
Ending unrecognized tax benel $ 1

The balance at August 28, 2008 represents unrexedjimcome tax benefits, which if recognized, waaffedct the Company’s effective tax rate. As ofglat 28, 2008 and August
31, 2007, accrued interest and penalties relateddertain tax positions were de minimis.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income taurres with the United States federal governmenipua U.S. states and various foreign jurisdictitmeughout the world. The

Company’s U.S. federal and state tax returns reiwaém to examination for 2005 through 2008 and 286gugh 2008, respectively. In addition, tax geapen to examination in
multiple foreign taxing jurisdictions range from@0to 2008. The Company is currently undergoingjtatin the U.K. for years 2004 through 2007.

Earnings Per Share

2008 2007 2006
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol- Basic $ (1,619 $ 320 $ 40¢
Net effect of assumed conversion of d -- -- 6
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol- Diluted $ (1,619 $ (320 $ 414
Weighte-average common shares outstan- Basic 7725 769.1 691.7
Net effect of dilutive stock options and assumeaveosionof deb -- -- 33.4
Weightet-average common shares outstan« Diluted 772.F 769.1 725.1
Earnings (loss) per shai
Basic $ (210 $ 042 $ 0.5¢
Diluted (2.10 (0.42) 0.57
Listed below are the potential common shares, éiseoénd of the periods shown below, that couldtélibasic earnings per share in the future thag¢ wet included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becaude so would have been antidilutive:
2008 2007 2006
Employee stock plar 122.1 124.¢ 68.7
Convertible note 97.€ 97.€ 6.2
Common stock warran -- 29.1 29.1
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Acquisitions

Lexar Media, Inc. (“Lexar”): On June 21, 2006, the Company acquired Lexaesmuder, developer, manufacturer and marketerasftHnemory products, in a stock-for-stock
merger to broaden the Company’s NAND Flash memaoguyct offering, enhance its retail presence arehgthen its portfolio of intellectual propertyurBuant to the terms of the
merger agreement, the Company issued 50.7 miliares of common stock, issued 6.6 million stockomgtand incurred other acquisition costs resulitingn aggregate purchase p
of $886 million. In the final allocation of the 88 million purchase price, the Company recordeal iésets of $1,344 million (including cash andsterm investments of $101
million, receivables of $317 million, intangiblesets of $183 million, deferred tax assets of $180om and goodwill of $458 million) and total lidliies of $458 million (including
accounts payable and accrued expenses of $16@midleferred tax liabilities of $176 million andbdef $113 million).

The following unaudited pro forma information pretethe consolidated results of operations of thegany as if the acquisition of Lexar had takerglat the beginning of
2006. The pro forma information does not necelysailect the actual results that would have opedimor is it necessarily indicative of future iésof operations.

2006
(unaudited’
Net sales $ 5,74¢
Net income 26€
Earnings per shar diluted $ 0.3t

Effective September 15, 2006, the Company and BasBorporation entered into agreements settlinguaitanding NAND Flash memory-related litigaticztieeen the
companies. Toshiba purchased certain of the Coy'aamiconductor technology patents and licensethin patents previously owned by Lexar in exclediog payments totaling
$288 million over three years, a substantial parabéwhich was included in the allocation of theghase price for Lexar as a receivable at an inthinterest rate of 5.9%. As of
August 28, 2008 and August 30, 2007, $116 and $ii8®n of the settlement proceeds remained in@urand noncurrent receivables.

Avago Technologies Limited Image Sensor Busines&yégo”): On December 11, 2006, the Company acquired th®EMnhage sensor business of Avago for an initishca
payment of $53 million and additional contingenhsideration at the date of acquisition of up to #ilfion if certain milestones were met througheradar 2008. Through August 28,
2008, the Company has paid a total of $10 millibadditional contingent consideration, which hasrbeecorded as an increase in goodwill subsequehetacquisition date. The
Company recorded total assets of $64 million (iditig intangible assets of $17 million and goodwil$46 million) and total liabilities of $1 millianThe Company’s results of
operations subsequent to the acquisition datededhe CMOS image sensor business acquired frorgdaa part of the Company’s Imaging segment. MiEsdohnson, a member
of the Company’s Board of Directors, was the Selice President, Finance and Chief Financial OffizeAvago at the time of the transaction. Ms.nkidn recused herself from all
deliberations of the Company’s Board of Directavaeerning this transaction.

Joint Ventures

NAND Flash Joint Ventures with Intel (“IM Flash”): The Company has formed two joint ventures witiellto manufacture NAND Flash memory products Fer éxclusive
benefit of the partners: IM Flash TechnologiesCland IM Flash Singapore LLP. As of August 28,208e Company owned 51% and Intel owned 49% oFldsh. The Company
has determined that both of the IM Flash joint vees are variable interest entities as definedi4®6 (R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Bigs — an interpretation of ARB No.
51,” (“FIN 46(R)") and that the Company is the pamg beneficiary of both. Accordingly, IM Flash &incial results are included in the consolidatedrfaial statements of the
Company and all amounts pertaining to Intel’s iasts in IM Flash are reported as noncontrollingrigst.
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IM Flash sells products to the joint venture parsrgenerally in proportion to their ownership atdeterm negotiated prices approximating cost. IsFk sales to Intel were $1,037
million, $497 million and $114 million for 2008, Q@ and 2006, respectively. As of August 28, 2088 August 30, 2007, IM Flash had receivables frotellfor sales of NAND Flas
products of $144 million and $121 million, respeety. Under the terms of a lease agreement, IMH-teas the use of approximately 50% of the Compamginufacturing facility in
Manassas, Virginia through January 2016. IM Flasithases and installs manufacturing equipmenttitdeased facility, which is operated and mairgdiby the Company. The ¢
of operating and maintaining the equipment is chdip IM Flash. The Company and Intel entered vatous service contracts with IM Flash under wattieey provide operational
and administrative support services, and genecallyge IM Flash for the costs of providing suclvieess. As of August 28, 2008 and August 30, 200I7Flash had payables to Intel
of $4 million and $1 million, respectively.

IM Flash manufactures NAND Flash memory productebleon NAND Flash designs developed by the Compadyintel and licensed to the Company. Produdgdesnd other
research and development (“R&D") costs for NANDdHare generally shared equally between the Comaaghyntel. As a result of reimbursements recefvenh Intel under a
NAND Flash R&D cos-sharing arrangement, the Company’s R&D expenses reeluced by $148 million, $240 million and $86liom in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Under the terms of a wafer supply agreement, theg@my manufactured wafers for IM Flash in its Bplsiaho facility. On October 9, 2008, the Companyounced that it had
agreed with Intel to discontinue production of 2@@mwafer NAND flash memory at Micron’s Boise fagjlit In the first quarter of 2009, IM Flash subsialiy completed construction
of a new 300mm wafer fabrication facility in Singa@, which has not been equipped. Additionallg, @ompany and Intel agreed to suspend tooling leadamp of production at IM
Flash’s Singapore facility.

Intel contributed to IM Flash $261 million and $3@million (net of $132 million of distributions tatel in 2008) in 2008 and 2007, respectively.nPany’s ability to access IM
Flash’s cash and marketable investment securti&d3 million as of August 28, 2008) to finance @@mpany’s other operations is subject to agreefmettte joint venture
partners. IM Flash’s cash and marketable investiseturities ($393 million as of August 28, 2008) aot anticipated to be made available to fingheeCompany’s other
operations. The creditors of IM Flash have recewrdy to the assets of IM Flash and do not haveuese to any other assets of the Company.

TECH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“TECH”):Since 1998, the Company has participated in TEEC$&miconductor memory manufacturing joint venimr8ingapore
among the Company, Canon Inc. and Hewlett-Packardpany (“HP”). As of August 28, 2008, the Compamyned an approximate 73% interest in TECH. Theedtaders’
agreement for the TECH joint venture expires in20The Company began consolidating TECH's findrreisults as of the beginning of the third quaaie2006.

In March, 2007, the Company acquired all of theeb@f TECH common stock held by the Singapore Beoa Development Board for approximately $290 moilli (including a
note payable that was fully paid in 2008) incregshe Company’s ownership interest in TECH from 48%3%.

TECH uses the Company’s product and process teapynod manufacture its memory semiconductor prau@he Company generally purchases all the semigtior memory
products manufactured by TECH, subject to spetgfims and conditions, at prices determined qugrteadsed on a discount from average selling prieatzed by the Company for t
preceding quarter. The Company performs assenmolyest services on product manufactured by TEChe Company also provides certain technology, exgging and training to
support TECH. Through the second quarter of 2p€i6r to the consolidation of TECH, all of thesertsactions with TECH were recognized as part oh#teost of products
purchased from TECH. The net cost of productstmsed from TECH amounted to $287 million for thstfsix months of 2006.

The Company'’s ability to access TECH’s cash andketable investment securities ($115 million as afjst 28, 2008) to finance the Company’s otheratfmns is subject to
agreement by the joint venture partners. In Ma2€i98, TECH entered into a $600 million credit fiagi which is guaranteed, in part, by the Compaf(gee “Debt” note.)

DRAM Joint Ventures with Nanya Technology Corporati (“Nanya”): On June 8, 2008, the Company and Nanya formeth&yenture corporation ("MeiYa") to manufacture
stack DRAM products and sell such products exchigito the Company and Nanya. The Company and &laagh contributed approximately $84 million intces MeiYa in 2008
and each owns 50% of MeiYa. The Company has déteththat MeiYa is a variable interest entity afrd=l in FIN 46(R) and that the Company is notphienary beneficiary of
MeiYa. The Company's maximum loss in MeiYa is ddoat’s investment as of August 28, 2008 of $8dlion. The Company accounts for its interest ieiMa under the equity
method because of the Company’s ability to exemigrificant influence over the operating and ficiahpolicies of MeiYa.
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In the third quarter of 2008, the Company transimnd licensed certain intellectual property ezldd the manufacture of stack DRAM products toysaand licensed certain
intellectual property from Nanya. The Company &lathya also agreed to jointly develop process tddgyaand designs to manufacture stack DRAM produwitis each party bearing
its own development costs until such time thatdéeelopment costs exceed a specified amount, faipwhich such costs would be shared. The Compaaigvelopment costs are
expected to exceed Nangalevelopment costs by a significant amount. Uttdsrarrangement, the Company is to receive aregage of $232 million from Nanya and MeiYa throt
2010 for licensing and technology transfer feesylith the Company realized $40 million of revem@008. As of August 28, 2008, receivables froenia were $40 million related
to licensing of intellectual property. The Companijl also receive royalties from Nanya for stacRBM products manufactured by or for Nanya.

On October 12, 2008, the Company announced thatlientered into an agreement to acquire Qimonda B%&6% ownership stake in Inotera Memories, (flootera”), a
Taiwanese DRAM memory manufacturer, for $400 millio cash. The Company received commitments f86%gillion of term loans to fund this acquisitianpart. Inotera is
expected to implement the Company’s stack DRAM @ssdechnology and it is anticipated that the Compell receive royalties on the sale of Inotergroduction that is delivered
Nanya, a 35.6% stakeholder in Inotera. The Compélheventually gain access to approximately 60,800mm DRAM wafers per month, 50% of Ino’s output. In connection
with this acquisition, the Company expects to einttr a series of agreements with Nanya to restredvleiYa. It is anticipated that both partieslwéase future resource commitme
to MeiYa and redirect those resources to Inotera.

MP Mask Technology Center, LLC (“MP Mask”): In 2006, the Company formed a joint venture, M&sk] with Photronics, Inc. (“Photronics”) to proéyzhotomasks for
leading-edge and advanced next generation semictordu As of August 28, 2008, the Company owne@®B% and Photronics owned 49.99% of MP Mask. Thmg@any purchases
a substantial majority of the reticles producedvy Mask pursuant to a supply arrangement. Then6iig results of MP Mask are included in the accanying consolidated financial
statements of the Company. In connection withjaire venture, the Company received $72 millior2006 in exchange for entering into a license ageggmwith Photronics, which is
being recognized over the term of the 10-year agese.

In 2008 the Company completed the constructionfatdity to produce photomasks and leased sudiitfato Photronics under a build to suit leaseesgnent. Under the terms of
the lease agreement, the Company will receive éuttinimum lease payments in approximately equaitgrg installments through January 2013. As ofAst 28, 2008, other
receivables included $12 million and other nonautresssets included $46 million of these minimunséepayments.

Segment Information

The Company'’s reportable segments are Memory aadilng. The Memory segment’s primary products aR&ABl and NAND Flash and the Imaging segment’s priymaoduct
is CMOS image sensors. Segment information regdrédow is consistent with how it is reviewed andleated by the Company’s chief operating decisiakers and is based on the
nature of the Company’s operations and productredfto customers. The Company does not identifggort depreciation and amortization, capitalengitures or assets by
segment.

2008 2007 2006
Net sales
Memory $ 518t $ 5001 $ 4,52¢
Imaging 652 687 74¢
Total consolidated net sal $ 5841 $ 568t $ 5,27
Operating income (loss
Memory $ 1,569 $ (28¢) $ 197
Imaging (31) 8 15z
Total consolidated operating income (lo $ (1,59 $ (280 $ 35C
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Certain Concentrations

Approximately 50% of the Company’s net sales fdd@@ere to the computing market, including desi®qs, servers, notebooks and workstations. Saleselovere 19% of the
Company’s net sales in 2008 and were includeddérMemory segment. Sales of DRAM, NAND Flash and@3Image sensor products constituted 54%, 35% &% despectively,
of the Company’s net sales for 2008. Certain camepts used by the Company in manufacturing semigzind products are available from a limited numifesuppliers.

Financial instruments that potentially subject@@npany to concentrations of credit risk consigtgipally of cash, investment securities and tresteeivables. The Company
invests through high-credit-quality financial instions and, by policy, generally limits the contration of credit exposure by restricting investisenith any single obligor. A
concentration of credit risk may exist with respectrade receivables as a substantial portioh®Qompany’s customers are affiliated with the cotimg industry. The Company
performs ongoing credit evaluations of customerddwaide and generally does not require collaterairf its customers. Historically, the Company hasexperienced significant
losses on receivables.

Geographic Information

Geographic net sales based on customer locatios agefollows:

2008 2007 2006
Asia Pacific (excluding China and Jap: $ 1,69¢ $ 1,49¢ $ 1,06¢
United State: 1,48¢ 1,71¢ 1,721
China 1,372 1,064 1,04¢
Europe 55¢ 66€ 71¢
Japar 441 477 494
Other 287 26€ 221
$ 5841 $ 568t $ 5,27:

Net property, plant and equipment by geographia am@s as follows:

2008 2007 2006
United State: $ 6,00¢ $ 6,54t $ 4,42:
Singapore 2,34t 1,212 867
Italy 25¢ 26¢ 31¢
Japar 171 22¢ 26¢
Other 32 28 12
$ 8,811 $ 8,27¢ % 5,88¢
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2008

Net sales
Gross margit
Operating los!
Net loss

Diluted loss per shai

2007

Net sales

Gross margit
Operating income (los:
Net income (loss

Diluted earnings (loss) per she

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
(in millions except per share amounts)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 153t $ 1,35¢ $ 1,49¢ $ 1,44¢
5 (43 48 (65)
(260) (772) (22%) (33¢)
(262) 777 (236) (349
$ 039 % (1.0) $ 030 $ (0.45)
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 1,53C $ 1427 $ 1,29¢ $ 1,437
44z 357 10€ 17z
11C (34) (19%) (161)
115 (52 (225) (159)
$ 0.1t % (0.07) $ 029 $ (0.23)

The results of operations for the second quart@068 included a charge of $463 million to writé @f the goodwill associated with the Company’srivey segment.

The Company’s results of operations for the fousdtond and first quarters of 2008 and fourth guanft 2007 included charges of $205 million, $1%iom, $62 million and $20
million, respectively, to write down the carryinglue of work in process and finished goods inveasoof memory products (both DRAM and NAND Flash}ieir estimated market

values.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, costs of goods sadefited by $70 million due to settlements of ipgcadjustments with certain suppliers.

As a result of a settlement agreement with a désirect purchasers of certain DRAM products, @@npany recorded a $50 million charge to revenae$®1 million net charge
to selling, general and administrative expensekerfirst quarter of 2007. The aggregate net ahargluding the impact on the Company’s compensgtiograms was a $77 million

reduction in net income.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Micron Technology, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index appearing uftéer 8 present fairly, in all material respecks financial position of Micron
Technology, Inc. and its subsidiaries at AugustZZ®8 and August 30, 2007, and the results of tiygrations and their cash flows for each of theetlyears in the period ended
August 28, 2008 in conformity with accounting piples generally accepted in the United States oAca. In addition, in our opinion, the financi&htement schedule listed in the
accompanying index appearing under ltem 8 predainlg, in all material respects, the informatiost $orth therein when read in conjunction with thiated consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maietd, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial reporting as of August 2808, based on criteria establishet
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compangsagement is responsible for
these financial statements and financial stateseredule, for maintaining effective internal cohteer financial reporting and for its assessmédithe effectiveness of internal cont
over financial reporting, included in ManagemeiR&port on Internal Control Over Financial Reportapgpearing under Iltem 9A. Our responsibility i®ipress opinions on these
financial statements, on the financial statemehédale, and on the Company's internal control imencial reporting based on our integrated audit® conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compapunting Oversight Board (United States). Thetsadards require that we plan and perform thésatadobtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatse® of material misstatement and whether effedtiternal control over financial reporting wasintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statemerdisided examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finan¢&tksents, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made &yagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. Our audit of internal contradr financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugancial reporting, assessing the risk that aematweakness exists, and testing and evaludtiaglésign and operating effectiven
of internal control based on the assessed risk. aldits also included performing such other procesl as we considered necessary in the circumstaWmebelieve that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaaesuregarding the reliability of financial repog and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanoce with generally accepted accounting principfegompany’s internal control over financial regiog includes those policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenanceodnds that, in reasonable detail, accurately ainy freflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are baadge only in accordance with authorizations of nganzent and directors of the company; and (iii) feveasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unautted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that could have a material effect erfittancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohoiver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of any evébumadf effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
October 27, 2008
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was carried out under the supervisioh with the participation of the Compasiyhanagement, including its principal executivéceff and principal financial office
of the effectiveness of the design and operatich®Company’s disclosure controls and procedwresléfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeB#turities Exchange Act of
1934) as of the end of the period covered by #g®rt. Based upon that evaluation, the princigatative officer and principal financial officermduded that those disclosure conti
and procedures were effective to ensure that irdtion required to be disclosed by the Companyénréports that it files or submits under the ExcgjeaAct is (i) recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periodx#jed in the Commission’s rules and forms anga@cumulated and communicated to the Company’sagement, including the
Company’s principal executive officer and princifiabncial officer, as appropriate to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, there &/ap changes in the Company'’s internal control éimancial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company'’s internal contreeofinancial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estdbf and maintaining adequate internal controt éimancial reporting for the Company. Internahtl over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide readeresurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America. The Comjsaimyernal control over financial reporting inclkeslthose policies and
procedures that i) pertain to the maintenanceadrds that in reasonable detail accurately refleetransactions and dispositions of the assdatseo€ompany; ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngcesgarmit preparation of financial statementa@cordance with generally accepted accountingiples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made ordg@ordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the Company; and iii) provide reasonalsiurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asion, use or disposition of the Company’s assiea$ could have a material effect on the Compafigancial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannodyide absolute assurance regarding the preventidetection of misstatements because of inhenaitidiions. These inherent
limitations are known by management and considiréide design of the Company’s internal controlrdgancial reporting which reduce, though not éfiate, this risk.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentive of the Company’s internal control over finahméporting based on the framework in “Internah@ol — Integrated
Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@izations of the Treadway Commission. Basedizneivaluation, management concluded that the Coypanternal control
over financial reporting was effective as of Augk8t 2008. The effectiveness of the Company’siiratiecontrol over financial reporting as of Augast 2008 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfmrblic accounting firm, as stated in their répohich is included in Part II, Item 8, of this ffo 10-K.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Ill
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence
Iltem 11. Executive Compensation
Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiManagement and Related Stockholder Matters
Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
Certain information concerning the registrant'saieve officers is included under the caption, ‘&itors and Executive Officers of the Registramt,Part I, Item 1 of this
report. Other information required by Items 10, 12, 13 and 14 will be contained in the registeaRtoxy Statement which will be filed with the Sieities and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after August 28, 2008 and is inocoaped herein by reference.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as part of tkepart:
1. Financial Statement: See Index to Consolidatedriial Statements under ltem
g (E:;r]ti%ii?:inancial Statement Schedules have beetteshsince they are either not required, not appli or the information is otherwise includ

Exhibit Number
Description of Exhibits

1.1 Underwriting Agreement dated as of May 17, 2007abgt between Micron Technology, Inc. and Morgamigta& Co. Incorporated, as representative of
underwriters (1

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Micrachfelogy, Inc., March 2006 Merger Corp. and Lexadh4, Inc., dated as of March 8, 2006

2.2 First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergeedials of May 30, 2006, by and among Micron Techmgltnc., March 2006 Merger Corp. and Lexar Me
Inc. (3)

2.3 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Mergeddss of June 4, 2006, by and among Micron Tedgyolinc., March 2006 Merger Corp. and Lexar Me
Inc. (4)

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Regist (5)

3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended

4.2 Securities Purchase Agreement dated Septembeb@3, Between the Registrant and Intel Capital Qartjn (7)

4.3 Stock Rights Agreement dated September 24, 20@8&eke the Registrant and Intel Capital Corporaiyr

4.4 Indenture dated March 30, 2005, by and betweenredlia, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association

4.5 First Supplemental Indenture to the Lexar Indendated as of June 21, 2006, between Lexar andBausk National Association (¢

4.6 Indenture dated as of May 23, 2007 by and betweienoll Technology, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, NagioAissociation, as trustee (

10.1 Executive Officer Performance Incentive Plan (

10.2 1989 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

10.3 1994 Stock Option Plan (1.

10.4 1994 Stock Option Plan Form of Agreement and TeantsConditions (11

10.5 1997 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (.

10.6 1998 Noi-Employee Director Stock Incentive Plan (:
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10.44*
10.45
10.46
10.47

1998 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (.

2001 Stock Option Plan (1!

2001 Stock Option Plan Form of Agreement (

2002 Employment Inducement Stock Option Plan

2004 Equity Incentive Plan (2

2004 Equity Incentive Plan Forms of Agreement aath¥ and Conditions (1

Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (1

Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan Form of Agreemert &iarms and Conditions (1

Lexar Media, Inc. 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (

Micron Quantum Devices, Inc. 1996 Stock Option RIE2)

Micron Quantum Devices, Inc. 1996 Stock Option F3ample Stock Option Assumption Letter (

Rendition, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan (:

Rendition, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan Sampiec® Option Assumption Letter (1'

Settlement and Release Agreement dated Septemb200f, by and among Toshiba Corporation, Microahifelogy, Inc. and Acclaim Innovations, LLC (Z
Patent License Agreement dated September 15, B§Gfd among Toshiba Corporation, Acclaim Innovatjd_LC and Micron Technology, Inc. (2
Omnibus Agreement dated as of February 27, 20QWeea Micron Technology, Inc. and Intel Corporat{&h

Limited Liability Partnership Agreement dated ag-ebruary 27, 2007, between Micron Semiconductéa Rée. Ltd. and Intel Technology Asia Pte. Ltd.
Supply Agreement dated as of February 27, 200Wesst Micron Semiconductor Asia Pte. Ltd. and IMsRI&ingapore, LLP (¢

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company @gieg Agreement of IM Flash Technologies, LLC daasdf February 27, 2007, between Micron Technal
Inc. and Intel Corporation (¢

Supply Agreement dated as of February 27, 200Wedmst Intel Technology Asia Pte. Ltd. and IM Flasig@pore, LLP (9

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Reegig and its officers and directors (

Form of Severance Agreement between the Companitsaofficers (22

Form of Agreement and Amendment to Severance Ageaebetween the Company and its officers

Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 1998, betweeRdgistrant and TECH Semiconductor SingaporelRte(24)

Business Agreement dated September 24, 2003, hetiedregistrant and Intel Corporation

Securities Rights and Restrictions Agreement daeggtember 24, 2003, between the Registrant anlddafstal (7)

Master Agreement dated as of November 18, 2008;g@et Micron Technology, Inc. and Intel Corporat{@h)

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of IMash Technologies, LLC dated as of January 662066tween Micron Technology, Inc. and Intel Cogtimn
(25)

Manufacturing Services Agreement dated as of Jgrue2006, between Micron Technology, Inc. and Idsh Technologies, LLC (2!

Boise Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 286,een IM Flash Technologies, LLC and Micron Treadbgy, Inc. (25

MTV Lease Agreement dated as of January 6, 20a@;desm Micron Technology, Inc. and IM Flash Techigis, LLC (25)

Product Designs Assignment Agreement dated Jargy&§06, between Intel Corporation and Micron Tedbgy, Inc. (25)

NAND Flash Supply Agreement, effective as of Japr2006, between Apple Computer, Inc. and Micfechnology, Inc. (25

Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 2006, leetwicron Technology, Inc. and IM Flash Technolsgiel C (25)

Supply Agreement dated as of January 6, 2006, leetweel Corporation and IM Flash Technologies, L({25)

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No.CEODLSG6) byl hetween Micron Technology, Inc. and Morgan Sta@d Co. International plc (1

Capped Call Confirmation (Reference No. 532288@0artd between Micron Technology, Inc. and CredisSeiInternational (1

Capped Call confirmation (Reference No. 53228855d between Micron Technology, Inc. and Credis&eiInternational (1
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2007 Equity Incentive Plan (2

2007 Equity Incentive Plan Forms of Agreements

Severance Agreement dated April 9, 2008, betweemdvliTechnology, Inc. and Ronald C. Foster |

Master Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2008, by b&tween Nanya Technology Corporation and Micreahfiology, Inc. (26

Joint Venture Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2088and between Micron Semiconductor B.V. and Nahgchnology Corporation (2

Supply Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2008, byaar@hg Micron Technology, Inc., Nanya Technologypgoeoation and MeiYa Technology Corporation (.
Joint Development Program Agreement, dated as af Ap, 2008, by and between Nanya Technology Ceatan and Micron Technology, Inc. (2
Technology Transfer and License Agreement fo688m Process Nodes, dated as of April 21, 200&noybetween Micron Technology, Inc. and Nanya Teldgy
Corporation (26

Technology Transfer and License Agreement, dated Agril 21, 2008, by and between Micron Technglolnc. and Nanya Technology Corporation (
Technology Transfer Agreement for-50nm Process Nodes, dated as of May 13, 2008, dyetween Micron Technology, Inc. and MeiYa Corpiora(26)
Technology Transfer Agreement, dated as of May2088, by and among Nanya Technology Corporatiowydfi Technology, Inc. and MeiYa Technolc
Corporation (26

Services Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2008, dyeiveen Nanya Technology Corporation and MeiYehfielogy Corporation (2€

Micron Guaranty Agreement, dated April 21, 2008yl between Nanya Technology Corporation and Mi&emiconductor B.V. (2¢

TECH Facility Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, ag®BCH Semiconductor Singapore Pte. Ltd. and ABNiédBank N.V., Citibank, N.A., Singapore Bran:
Citigroup Global Markets Singapore Pte Ltd., DB$iBatd and Overse-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, as Originalidated Lead Arrangers (2
Guarantee, dated March 31, 2008, by Micron Techgyltnc. as Guarantor in favor of ABN Amro Bank N,%ingapore Branch acting as Security Trustee
Form of Severance Agreement (@

Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Offic

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Offic:

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuaat8 U.S.C. 135!

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. 135!

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F§-K dated May 17, 200

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Ré-K dated March 8, 200

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F§-K dated May 30, 200

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Ré-K dated June 4, 20(

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Rg-K dated December 5, 20l

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F§-K dated September 24, 20

Incorporated by reference to Lexar Media,’s Current Report on Forn-K dated March 30, 20C
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 1, 2
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 2, 2
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 3, 2
Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateropriform -8 (Reg. No. 33-50353)

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter endiNovember 28, 200
Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 3, 1
Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterorritorm -8 (Reg. No. 33-102545)

Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F8-K dated April 3, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterorritorm -8 (Reg. No. 33-103341)

Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateropriform -8 (Reg. No. 33-135459)

Incorporated by reference to Registration Staterorritorm -8 (Reg. No. 33-65449)

Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended November 30, 2
Incorporated by reference to Proxy Statement ferltd86 Annual Meeting of Sharehold
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(22) Incorporated by reference to Annual Report on Fb€-K for the fiscal year ended August 28, 2(

(23) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended February 27, 1
(24) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 3, 1
(25) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omFd(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended December 1, 2
(26) Incorporated by reference to Quarterly Report omF(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended May 29, 2(
(27) Incorporated by reference to Registration Stateraprform -8 (Registration No. 3%-148357)

(28) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on F8-K dated April 9, 200¢

(29) Incorporated by reference to Current Report on Ré-K dated October 26, 20(

* Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purdua a request for confidential treatment filedhwthe Commission.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Reayisthas duly caused this report to be signedsobebalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Boisegt8tof Idaho, on the 27th day of October 2008.

Micron Technology, Inc

By: /s/ Ronald C. Foste
Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @ific
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been sidiedow by the following persons on behalf of tregRtrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Steven R. Applet Chairman of the Board, October 27, 2008
(Steven R. Appleton) Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ Ronald C. Foste Vice President of Financ October 27, 200
(Ronald C. Foster) Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial an
Accounting Officer)

/sl Teruaki Aok Director October 27, 200
(Teruaki Aoki)

/s/ James W. Bagle Director October 27, 200
(James W. Bagley

/s/ Robert L. Baile Director October 27, 200
(Robert L. Bailey)

/s/ Mercedes Johnsc Director October 27, 200
(Mercedes Johnson

/s/ Lawrence N. Mondr Director October 27, 200
(Lawrence N. Mondry)

/s/ Robert E. Swit Director October 27, 2008
(Robert E. Switz)
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Allowance for Doubtful Account

MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Year ended August 28, 20!
Year ended August 30, 20!
Year ended August 31, 20!

Deferred Tax Asset Valuation Allowan

Year ended August 28, 20!
Year ended August 30, 20!
Year ended August 31, 20!

SCHEDULE I
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in millions)
Charged
Balance at Acquisitions and (Credited) to Balance
Beginning of Consolidation of Costs and Deductions/ at End of
Year TECH Expenses Write -Offs Year

$ 4 3 -- 1) 1 $ 2
4 - 1 (2) 4
2 -- 2 -- 4
$ 1,14: $ == 44¢€ a9 $ 1,56¢
91t (12) 21¢ 20 1,142
1,02¢ (36) (203) 25 91t




Name

MICRON TECHNOLOGY, INC.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

State (or Jurisdiction)
in which Organized

EXHIBIT 21.1

Lexar Media, Inc
Micron Europe Limitec

Also does business as Lexar Me
Micron Japan, Ltd
Micron Semiconductor Asia Pte. Lt

Also does business as Lexar Me
Micron Semiconductor (Deutschland) Gm
Micron Semiconductor Products, Ir

Also does business as Crucial Technol
Micron Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., L
Micron Semiconductor (Xiamen) Co., Li
Micron Semiconductor (>’an) Co., Ltd.
Micron Technology lItalia S.r.
Micron Technology Puerto Rico, In
Micron Technology Texas, LL!

Delaware
United Kingdom

Japar
Singapore

Germany
Idaho

China
China
China

Italy

Puerto Ricc
Idaho




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statement on Forms S-3 (Fids.N833-71620, 333-143026) and Forms S-8 (File B®s148357, 33-27078,
33-57887, 33-65050, 333-07283, 333-17073, 333-50383-65449, 333-71249, 333-82549, 333-99271, 3@H45, 333-103341, 333-111170, 333-120620, 333-AB3B33-135459,
333-140091) of Micron Technology, Inc. of our refpdeted October 272008, relating to the financial statements, finahstatement schedule and the effectiveness ahiaiteontrol
over financial reporting, which appears in thisfdr0-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
October 27 , 2008




EXHIBIT 31.1

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Steven R. Appleton, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Micron Technology, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fact necessary to make the statisrmade, in light of th
circumstances under which such statements were,matimisleading with respect to the period covédrgdhis report

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,odimer financial information included in this refdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results
operations and cash flows of the registrant aardd, for, the periods presented in this ref

4. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdatemd procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RiBe-15(e) anc
15c¢-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagti@as defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutas ttesigned under our supervision, to ensuremiagrial informatior
relating to the registrant, including its consolethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by otherisimthose entities, particularly during the periodvhich this report is being
prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisiomrovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financigdoging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneealtepted accounting
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusions about the effecteégnof the disclosure contr
and procedures, as of the end of the period cousrélis report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regi’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regist's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual r@gbat has materially affected, or is reasondikly to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial
reporting; anc

5. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financial reporting, to the registr's auditors and th
audit committee of the registri’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likedyadversely affect the
registran’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmanhcial information; ant

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: October 27, 20C /sl Steven R. Applett

Steven R. Appleto
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

RULE 13a-14(a) CERTIFICATION OF
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Ronald C. Foster, certify the

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Micron Technology, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométtéde a material fact necessary to make the statisrmade, in light of th
circumstances under which such statements were,matimisleading with respect to the period covdrgdhis report

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results «
operations and cash flows of the registrant aardd, for, the periods presented in this ref

4. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdatemd procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RiBe-15(e) anc
15c¢-15(e)) and internal control over financial repagti@as defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduttes ttesigned under our supervision, to ensurembgrial informatior
relating to the registrant, including its consolethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by otherisimthose entities, particularly during the periodvhich this report is being
prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisiomrovide reasonab
assurance regarding the reliability of financigoging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneealyepted accounting
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presénthis report our conclusions about the effectagsnof the disclosure contr
and procedures, as of the end of the period cousrelis report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatoed during the registre’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regist's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual regbat has materially affected, or is reasondiily to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial
reporting; anc

5. The registrar's other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internafrobover financial reporting, to the registr's auditors and th
audit committee of the registri’s board of directors (or persons performing thewedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contraéofinancial reporting which are reasonably likelyadversely affect the
registran’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmancial information; ant

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significémin the registra’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: October 27, 20C /s/ Ronald C. Foste

Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @iff




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

I, Steven R. Appleton, certify, pursuant to 18 I€.S1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#inbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual RepbMlicron Technology, Inc. on
Form 10K for the period ended August 28, 2008, fully cormplwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thiarmation contained i
the Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presentsalinmaterial respects, the financial condition agsults of operations of Micron Technology, Inc.

Date: October 27, 20C By: /s/ Steven R. Applet:

Steven R. Appleton
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. 1350

I, Ronald C. Foster, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SL850, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of tHeaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Reporatron Technology, Inc. on
Form 10K for the period ended August 28, 2008, fully cormpiwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thiarmation contained i
the Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presentsalinmaterial respects, the financial condition agsults of operations of Micron Technology, Inc.

Date: October 27, 20( By: /s/ Ronald C. Foste
Ronald C. Foster
Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial @if




